Agenda

Meeting:
Date:
Time:

Place:

@ Metro

600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC)
Friday, February 4, 2022

9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

Virtual meeting held via Zoom

Connect with Zoom
Passcode: 042255
Phone: 877-853-5257 (Toll Free)

9:00 a.m.
9:10 a.m.

9:20 a.m.

9:25 a.m.

9:30 a.m.

10:30 a.m.

10:45 a.m.

Call meeting to order, declaration of quorum and introductions Chair Kloster

Comments from the Chair and Committee Members

e Committee input on Creating a Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)

Updates from committee members around the Region (all)

Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken Lobeck)

Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

DLCD Climate Friendly & Equitable Communities Rulemaking

February update (Kim Ellis)

e Competitive Infrastructure Funding Opportunities for Local Governments
https://files.constantcontact.com/d3dffeed501/1d1116d2-65d3-4220-9efd-afa26953ff51.pdf
(Ted Leybold)

Public communications on agenda items

Consideration of TPAC minutes, January 7, 2022 (action item) Chair Kloster

2018 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Amendment 21-1467
I-205 Toll Project (action item, Recommendation to JPACT)
Purpose: Request TPAC’s recommendation to JPACT on amending the
2018 RTP to include the preliminary engineering phase of the 1-205 Toll
Project, and to clarify the financial connection of the [-205 Toll Project
to the [-205 Improvement Project

Kim Ellis, Metro
Mandy Putney, ODOT
Garet Prior, ODOT

Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) Ken Lobeck, Metro

Formal Amendment 21-5234; I-205 Toll Project

(action item, Recommendation to JPACT)

Purpose: For the purpose of amending the 2021-26 Metropolitan
Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) to add the preliminary
engineering phase for ODOT’s I-205 Tolling Project allowing NEPA and
design activities to begin (FB22—6-FEB)

Regional Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA) revenue forecast update Margi Bradway, Metro
Purpose: Update TPAC on the impacts of the federal funding authorization Ted Leybold, Metro
bill on the RFFA funding forecast and proposed allocation of revenues.

Note: Information on agenda item not available at time of mailing; this will

be distributed at later date.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85748109929?pwd=aWNzQmZOdlR6OVZkNkJDYTdTWU9MZz09
https://files.constantcontact.com/d3dffeed501/1d1116d2-65d3-4220-9efd-afa26953ff51.pdf

11:15 a.m.

11:35 a.m.

11:55 a.m.

12:00 p.m.

2024-27 ODOT Administered Funding Program - Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Funding Scenarios and

Timeline Update

Purpose: To provide TPAC an update on the process and current
discussions taking place at the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC)
on which funding categories and programs to invest new revenues as a
result of the IIJA.

Public and Active Transportation selection process input
Purpose: Input on development of 100% list.

Committee comments on creating a safe space at TPAC

Adjournment

Chris Ford, ODOT
Glen Bolen, ODOT

Jessica Horning, ODOT

Chair Kloster

Chair Kloster



Metro respects civil rights

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and other
statutes that ban discrimination. If any person believes they have been discriminated against regarding the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color,
national origin, sex, age or disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information on Metro’s civil rights program, or to obtain a discrimination
complaint form, visit oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1890. Metro provides services or accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and
people who need an interpreter at public meetings. If you need a sign language interpreter, communication aid or language assistance, call 503-797-1890 or TDD/TTY
503-797-1804 (8 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 5 business days before the meeting. All Metro meetings are wheelchair accessible. Individuals with service animals are
welcome at Metro facilities, even where pets are generally prohibited. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet's website at trimet.org

Théng bdo vé sy Metro khdng ky thi cua

Metro tén trong din quy&n. Muén biét thém théng tin vé chuang trinh din guyén
clia Metro, ho3c mudn I&y don khigu nai v sir ky thi, xin xem trong
www.oregonmetro.govj/civilrights. Néu quy vi can théng dich vién ra ddu bang tay,
trg gitp vé tiép xtc hay ngén ngif, xin goi s6 503-797-1700 (tir & gity sdng dén S gier
chigu vao nhitng ngay thudng) trude budi hop 5 ngay 1am viéc.

MNoeigomneHHs Metro npo 3a60poHy gUCKPUMIHaLT

Metro 3 noBaroto CTaBMTLCA A0 TPOMAAAHCEKKX NPaB. 1A oTpUMaHHA iHGopmMaLi
npo nporpamy Metro i3 3axucTy rpoMaaaHCbKUX Npas abo Gopmu ckapru npo
AWCKPUMIHALO BigBifaiTe cailT www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. abo flkwo sam
notpibeH nepeknagay Ha 36opax, ANA 3340BONEHHA BALWOTo 3anuTy 3atenedoHyite
32 Homepom 503-797-1700 3 8.00 go 17.00 y poboui gHi 3a n'aATe pob6o4ux aHiB A0
36opie.

Metro FR ISR A5

CHERAE - AR Metro R HESTHRATRENY BRI R - SYRITEAE S
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights » #1 S TR 155 s el » S5r @
HEE BHATS{EE 5 0 #47503-797-

1700 ( TfFH EF8EEET58E) » DUERITHZ a2k -

Ogeysiiska takooris la’aanta ee Metro

Metro waxay ixtiraamtaa xuquugda madaniga. Si aad u heshid macluumaad ku
saabsan barnaamijka xuquugda madaniga ee Metro, ama aad u heshid wargadda ka
cabashada takoorista, boogo www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Haddii aad u baahan
tahay turjubaan si aad uga gaybqaadatid kullan dadweyne, wac 503-797-1700 (8
gallinka hore illaa 5 gallinka dambe maalmaha shagada) shan maalmo shago ka hor
kullanka si loo tixgaliyo codsashadaada.

Metrod] 718 FA] B#d A4

Metro2] A 713 Z &3] )3 AR == 2PE gho) M Al S Yo, i
o] o) gk 272 4151 3 SFwww.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. 41 2] ¢1o

2 gle] B a7, 8l oo ek 5P (.F 54 FF ol 2.7 84])503-797-
17008 &3

Metro®D ZERIIZE - HE40

Metro T XA RIEAMEL TV 2T « MetroDARIEZ O 7 5 AL T DA
(ZD0T ~ EEEREH 7 4 — A8 AT T 5120 - www.oregonmetro.gov/
civilrights » ¥ THEIE ZaWARSHETEEMRELZE L SR 5L -
Metro TEFHICHHILT &5 L 5 - APISOSE R AT £ TI2503-797-

1700 CEAFHisH~F185HF) F THEE 231y -

ieAESSANAA RIS SITaENIUR Metro

FIEINGE NUIRIUN 1 INUFASESHARETSHENUIRIUN Metro
s gumAui s RyuG s gsSIEN Sl
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights
idhnnsgmEirEausiummsSiinuHg

[USNSIAN: YU SIS NUMIUE 503-797-1700 (ENH 8 [FREM0ENE 5 0N
igiSenn) ooy

igiSen gsigudiSgogisugusuaiafiuainnsgs 4

Metro (e il asny jadl

S p Iy Asad) G sl Metro meli s Jss e ghall (o 1 3all Asiadl G sisll Metro p_sas
dalay =€ o) www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights 5 ASIY! a8 sall 355 (o2 5 « uall 2
i Lalia 8 ALl o) 503-797-1700 <ilgll ad p Lo Jai¥) dlide Cany 3l i B2elis )
B e 50 0 Jae ol (5) fsads 08 (a1 o4 clelins 5 L)

Paunawa ng Metro sa kawalan ng diskriminasyon

Iginagalang ng Metro ang mga karapatang sibil. Para sa impormasyon tungkol sa
programa ng Metro sa mga karapatang sibil, o upang makakuha ng porma ng
reklamo sa diskriminasyon, bisitahin ang www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Kung
kailangan ninyo ng interpreter ng wika sa isang pampublikong pulong, tumawag sa
503-797-1700 (8 a.m. hanggang 5 p.m. Lunes hanggang Biyernes) lima araw ng
trabaho bago ang pulong upang mapagbigyan ang inyong kahilingan.

Notificacién de no discriminacion de Metro

Metro respeta los derechos civiles. Para obtener informacién sobre el programa de
derechos civiles de Metro o para obtener un formulario de reclamo por
discriminacion, ingrese a www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights . Si necesita asistencia
con el idioma, llame al 503-797-1700 (de 8:00 a. m. a 5:00 p. m. los dias de semana)
5 dias laborales antes de la asamblea.

YBeAoMAeHWe 0 HeAONYLWEeHUH AUCKPMMWHALMK OT Metro

Metro yBaaeT rpaxaaHckue npaga. ¥YaHate o nporpamme Metro no cobaiogeHuio
rPaXAAHCKMX NPaB 1 NONYYMTE GOpMY Kanobbl 0 AUCKPUMHMHALUKMIK MOMKHO Ha Beb-
caiite www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Ecnv Bam HymeH nepeBoa4mK Ha
obwecrseHHOM cobpaHuK, OcTasbTe CBOM 3anpoc, NO3BOHKUE No Homepy 503-797-
1700 e pabouure aHu ¢ 8:00 go 17:00 1 3a nATb paboumnx gHel Ao AaTel cOBPaHMA.

Avizul Metro privind nediscriminarea

Metro respecta drepturile civile. Pentru informatii cu privire la programul Metro
pentru drepturi civile sau pentru a obtine un formular de reclamatie impotriva
discrimindrii, vizitati www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Dac3 aveti nevoie de un
interpret de limba la o sedintd publicd, sunati la 503-797-1700 (intre orele 8 5i 5, In
timpul zilelor lucrdtoare) cu cinci zile lucrdtoare inainte de sedint3, pentru a putea sa
va raspunde Tn mod favorabil la cerere.

Metro txoj kev ntxub ntxaug daim ntawv ceeb toom

Metro tributes cai. Rau cov lus ghia txog Metro txoj cai kev pab, los yog kom sau ib
daim ntawv tsis txaus siab, mus saib www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Yog hais tias
koj xav tau lus kev pab, hu rau 503-797-1700 (8 teev sawv ntxov txog 5 teev tsaus
ntuj weekdays) 5 hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej ntawm lub rooj sib tham.

January 2021



2022 TPAC Work Program
As of1/28/2022
NOTE: Items in italics are tentative; bold denotes required items

February 4, 2022 9:00 - 12:00 p.m.
Comments from the Chair:

Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)

Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)

Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

DLCD Climate Friendly & Equitable Communities
Rulemaking Feb. update (Kim Ellis)
Competitive Infrastructure Funding
Opportunities for Local Governments (Ted
Leybold)

Agenda Items:

2018 RTP Amendment 21-1467 1-205 Toll
Project Recommendation to JPACT (Kim Ellis,
Metro/ Mandy Putney & Garet Prior, ODOT, 60
min)

MTIP Formal Amendment 21-5234
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)
[-205 Toll Project

Regional Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA)
revenue forecast update (Margi Bradway / Ted
Leybold, Metro, 30 min)

2024-27 ODOT Administered Funding Program -
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA)
Funding Scenarios and Timeline Update (Chris
Ford/Glen Bolen, 20 min)

Public & Active Transportation selection process
input. (Jessica Horning, ODOT, 20 min)
Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

February 16,2022 - MTAC/TPAC Workshop
10 am - noon

Agenda Items:

e Regional Mobility Policy Update: Case Study
Findings (Kim Ellis, Metro/ Lidwien Rahman
and Glen Bolen, ODOT/Susie Wright,
Kittelson & Associates, 45 min)

e Emerging Trends Initial Findings (Eliot Rose,
Metro/ Briana Calhoun, Fehr & Peers, 30
min)

e 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Draft
Work Plan and Engagement Plan -
Introductions (Kim Ellis & Molly Cooney-
Mesker, Metro, 30 min)




March 4,2022 9:00-11:30 a.m. March 9, 2022 - TPAC Workshop

Comments from the Chair: 10 am - noon
e Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
¢ Committee member updates around the Region Agenda Items:
(Chair Kloster & all) e 2019-2021 Regional Flexible Fund - Local
e  Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken Agency Project Fund Exchanges Update
Lobeck) (Grace Cho, 20 min)
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe) e 2023RTP pqlicy brief - Safe.and Healthy.
e RFFA update, timeline, next steps (Dan Kaempff) Urban Arterials (John Mermin/Lake McTighe,
45 min)
Agenda Items: e 2023 RTP policy brief - Congestion Pricing
e MTIP Formal Amendment 21-%*%* Policy Development (Alex Oreschak / Kim
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min) Ellis, 45 minutes)

e 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
Work Plan and Engagement Plan -
Recommendation to JPACT (Kim Ellis/ Molly
Cooney-Mesker, 40 min.)

e Draft 2022-23 UPWP Review & Discussion (John
Mermin, 20 min)

e DLCD Climate Friendly Equitable Communities
(CFEC) Rules - Review & Discussion (Kim Ellis,
40 min)

e 2024-27 ODOT Administered Fund Program
Allocations & Scoping updates (Chris Ford 5 min)

e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

April1,2022 9:00 am-11:30 a.m. April 20,2022 - MTAC/TPAC Workshop
Comments from the Chair: 10 am - noon

e C(Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
e Committee member updates around the Region Agenda Items:

(Chair Kloster & all) e Regional Freight Delay and Commodities
e  Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Lobeck) Movement Study (Tim Collins, Chris Johnson,
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe) Kyle Hauger, Metro; 60 min)

e Interstate Bridge Replacement (IBR) findings
Agenda Items: on the project (Elizabeth Mros-O’Hara &

e MTIP Formal Amendment 21-**** others TBD)

Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min) * 2020 Census Report Update (Chris Johnson,
e 2022-23 UPWP Resolution 22-5244 TBD)

Recommendation to JPACT (Mermin, 15 min)

e Regional Mobility Policy Update: Shaping the
Recommended Policy and Action Plan - (Kim
Ellis, Metro/ Lidwien Rahman, ODOT, 60 min)

e Updated 2024-27 MTIP revenue forecast (Grace
Cho/Ted Leybold, Metro; 20 min)

e 2024-27 ODOT Administered Fund Program
Allocations & Scoping updates (Chris Ford 5 min)

e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)




May 6,2022 9:00 am - 11:30 a.m.
Comments from the Chair:

e Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)

¢ Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)

e Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Lobeck)

e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

Agenda Items:

e MTIP Formal Amendment 21 -****
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)

e Transportation Equity Analysis for the 2023 RTP
(Eliot Rose, Metro, 30 min)

e Transport Work Program update (Caleb Winter,
Metro/ Kate Freitag, ODOT, 30 min)

e 2024-27 ODOT Administered Funding-OTC
Program Allocations among Fix-It & Enhance
Highway Programs(Chris Ford; 20 min)

e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

May 11,2022 - TPAC Workshop
10 am - noon

Agenda Items:

e Regional Flexible Funds Allocation (RFFA)
Outcomes Evaluation and Risk Assessment
review (Dan Kaempff, 30 min)

e 2024-2027 MTIP Performance Evaluation -
Approach & Methods (Grace Cho, 30 min)

June 3,2022 9:00 am-11:30 a.m.
Comments from the Chair:
e Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
e Committee member updates around the Region

(Chair Kloster & all)
e Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)
Agenda Items:

e MTIP Formal Amendment 21-****
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)

e Regional Mobility Policy Update: Recommended
Policy and Action Plan - Discussion (Kim Ellis,
Metro/ Lidwien Rahman, ODOT, 60 min)

e Emerging Transportation Trends Study
Recommendations (Eliot Rose, Metro, 30 min)

e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

June 15,2022 - MTAC/TPAC Workshop

10 am - noon

Agenda Items:

e RTP - Equitable Finance 2023 RTP (Lake
McTighe, Metro) 45 min

e DLCD Climate Friendly & Equitable
Communities Rulemaking item (Kim Ellis)

e Urban Growth Management Functional Plan
Amendments - discussion (Ted Reid & Tim
O’Brien, Metro; 60 min)

July 8,2022 9:00 am - 11:30 a.m.
Comments from the Chair:
e Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
e Committee member updates around the Region

(Chair Kloster & all)
e Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)
Agenda Items:

e MTIP Formal Amendment 21-****
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)

e High Capacity Transit Strategy Update for 2023
RTP (Ally Holmgqvist, Metro, 30 min)

e Transportation Needs and Disparities Analysis
for 2023 RTP (Eliot Rose, Metro, 30 min)

e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

July 13,2022 - TPAC Workshop

10 am - noon

Agenda Items:




August 5,2022 9:00 am -11:30 a.m.
Comments from the Chair:
e Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
¢ Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)
¢ Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

Agenda Items:

e MTIP Formal Amendment 21-****
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)

¢ Regional Mobility Policy Update:
Recommended Policy and Action Plan
Recommendation to JPACT (Kim Ellis, Metro/
Glen Bolen & Lidwien Rahman, ODOT; 30 min)

e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

August 17,2022 - MTAC/TPAC Workshop

10 am - noon

Agenda Items:

September 2,2022 9:00 am - 11:30 a.m.
Comments from the Chair:
e C(Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
e Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)
e Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

Agenda Items:
e MTIP Formal Amendment 21 -****
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)
e RTP needs assessment and performance
measures (Eliot Rose, Metro, 30 min)
e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

September 14, 2022 - TPAC Workshop
10 am - noon

Agenda Items:

October 7, 2022 9:00 am - 11:30 a.m.
Comments from the Chair:
e C(Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
e Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)
e Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

Agenda Items:
e MTIP Formal Amendment 21 -****
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)
e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

October 19, 2022 - MTAC/TPAC Workshop
10 am - noon

Agenda Items:




November 4, 2022 9:00 am - 11:30 a.m.
Comments from the Chair:
e Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
¢ Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)
¢ Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

Agenda Items:
e MTIP Formal Amendment 21-****
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)
e High Capacity Transit Strategy Update for 2023
RTP (Ally Holmgqvist, Metro, 30 min)
e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

November 9, 2022 - TPAC Workshop
10 am - noon

Agenda Items:

December 2, 2022 9:00 am -11:30 a.m.
Comments from the Chair:
e C(Creating Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster)
e Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)
e Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)
e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

Agenda Items:
e MTIP Formal Amendment 21 -****
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 15 min)
e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

December 21,2022 - MTAC/TPAC Workshop

10 am - noon

Agenda Items:

Parking Lot: Future Topics/Periodic Updates

e Update on SW Corridor Transit

¢ Burnside Bridge Earthquake Ready Project
Update (Megan Neill, Multnomah Co)

¢ Columbia Connects Project

e Best Practices and Data to Support Natural
Resources Protection

¢ Ride Connection Program Report (Julie Wilcke)

¢ Get There Oregon Program Update (Marne Duke)

e RTO Updates (Dan Kaempff)

e 2021 PILOT Grants Update (Eliot Rose)

e Telework affects post COVID on transportation
(TriMet/Eliot Rose)

Agenda and schedule information E-mail: marie.miller@oregonmetro.gov or call 503-797-1766.

To check on closure or cancellations during inclement weather please call 503-797-1700.



mailto:marie.miller@oregonmetro.gov

@ Metro

Memo ~" 500 NE Grand Ave.

Portland, OR 97232-2736

Date: January 26, 2022
To: TPAC and Interested Parties
From: Ken Lobeck, Funding Programs Lead

Subject:  TPAC Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) Monthly Submitted
Amendments from Early to Mid- January 2022

BACKGROUND

Formal Amendments Approval Process:
Formal/Full MTIP Amendments require approvals from Metro JPACT& Council, ODOT-Salem, and

final approval from FHWA/FTA before they can be added to the MTIP and STIP. After Metro
Council approves the amendment bundle, final approval from FHWA and/or FTA can take 30 days
or more from the Council approval date. This is due to the required review steps ODOT and
FHWA/FTA must complete prior to the final approval for the amendment.

Administrative Modifications Approval Process:

Projects requiring only small administrative changes as approved by FHWA and FTA are completed
via Administrative Modification bundles. Metro normally accomplishes one “Admin Mod” bundle
per month. The approval process is far less complicated for Admin Mods. The list of allowable
administrative changes are already approved by FHWA/FTA and are cited in the Approved
Amendment Matrix. As long as the administrative changes fall within the approved categories and
parameters, Metro has approval authority to make the change and provide the updated project in
the MTIP immediately. Approval for inclusion into the STIP requires approval from the ODOT. Final
approval into the STIP usually takes between 2-4 weeks to occur depending on the number of
submitted admin mods in the approval queue.



MONTHLY SUBMITTED AMENDMENTS FROM: KEN LOBECK DATE: JANUARY 26, 2022

MTIP Formal Amendments

Proposed January 2022 Formal Amendment Bundle
Amendment Type: Formal/Full
Amendment #: JA22-07-JAN2
Total Number of Projects: 12

323(/3; MTI: 12 Lead Agency Project Name Project Description Description of Changes
List of SFY 23 UPWP Related Project Amendments
Freight and Regional planning to support ADVANCE PROJECT,
. gnta 9 p y to supp The program bucket is being
Project Economic freight systems planning and
’ . advanced to the current FFY
#1 71118 Metro Development economic development planning 2022 to be used as part of
Key Planning (FF¥ activities. (UPWP RFFA Step 1 Metro's SFY 23 UnifFi)ed
22145 2022) (SFY 23 STBG FFY 2022 allocation Planning Work Program
UPWP) supporting SFY 2023 UPWP) (UPWP)
Funding for Metro to meet ADVANCE/COMBINE
Metropolitan Planning The project STBG and match
Organization mandates, are being advanced and
Project established through the federal combined in the Key 21839
#2 70870 Metro Regional MPO regulations. Note: Remaining which will act as the project
Key Planning (2021) funding currently programmed grouping bucket key for the
20877 reflect allocated funding not SFY 23 UPWP Master
obligated from the SFY 22 UPWP | Agreement. As a result, Key
program and carried over to 20877 is now “zeroed”
support the SFY 23 UPWP programmed
ADVANCE/COMBINE
. Funding to support transportation | The project STBG and match
Project . T o .
43 ) planm_ng activities and maintain are bt_alng e_ldvanced and
Ke Regional MPO compliance with federal planning combined in the Key 21839
221%/1 71131 Metro Planning (FFY regulations. (FY 2022 UPWP which will act as the project
2022) allocation year). Funding will be grouping bucket key for the
combined into Key 21839 in SFY 23 UPWP Master
support of the SFY 23 UPWP Agreement. As a result, Key
20877 is now “zeroed”
programmed
. COMBINE FUNDS:
Project Portland Metro MPO planning Combine STBG funds from
funds for SFY 23 (FFY2022).
#4 Portland Metro - . Keys 20877 and 22151 for
71224 Metro . Projects will be selected and
Key Planning SFY23 h | ified Key 21839 to act as the SFY
21839 support the annual Metro Unified | 57 5\yp \aster Agreement
Planning Work Program (UPWP). key
Promotes through planning, .
Project Safe Routes to funding and outreach activities ADVANCE PROJECT.
#5 Schools Program | the ability for youth to safely. Advance the SRTS program
71109 Metro .y ! funds from FFY 2025 to FFY
Key {(FFY-2022) affordably and efficiently access
. - 2022 to become part of the
22160 (SFY23 UPWP) school by walking, biking and
: : SFY 2023 UPWP
transit. (FY 2022 allocation year)




MONTHLY SUBMITTED AMENDMENTS

FROM: KEN LOBECK

DATE: JANUARY 26, 2022

ADVANCE PROJECT:

Transport committee. (FY 2022
allocation year)

Complete the design of select

Przjse ct Statewide Travel gl?rcglbfgl?nr};?;tt?;ig; de travel Advance the Statewide
71105 Metro Survey (SFY 23 vk Travel Survey funds from
Key forecasting models. (FFY 2022
22172 UPWP) allocation to the SFY23 UPWP) | Y 2025 to FFY 2022 to
become part of the SFY 2023
UPWP
Partnerwith-developers-and-local
jurisdictions-to-attract private
development sartransitstations .
o to-feduce adto tHps-and-improve ADVANCE PROJECT:
the e.es_t erectiveness ot region: Advance the annual fund
. Development transitinvestments: (F¥-2022 exchange project which
Project ¢ ) 9 yean) TriMet will commit to their
#7 Metro {(FRY-2022) Metro (RFFA Step 1) . h
71102 . F Preventative Maintenance
Key TriMet Preventative STBG/Local exchange
. : : \ program funds from FFY
22163 Maintenance supporting TriMet’s Bus and
" ; - 2025 to FFY 2022 and
Support (FFY Rail Preventative Maintenance
change lead agency to be
2022) program needs for labor and )
: ; TriMet
materials/services used for on-
going maintenance of Bus and
Rail fleets in TriMet's 3-county
service district
e e | apvance erosecr.
Project TSMO prog P ng Advance the TSMO
= . program strategy and direction, L - .
#8 Administration - ) administrative support project
71124 Metro administration of grant
Key {FEY-2022) (SFY allocations. and staffing of the and program funds from FFY
22169 23 UPWP) ’ 9 2025 to FFY 2022 as part of

the SFY UPWP

End SFY 23 UPWP Project Amendment List

ADD NEW ROJECT:

Project

Per;Ct Willamette Source Control Measures (PE and ROW Phases only)
Key River: (SCMs) to i_mprove stormwater The formal amendment adds
29552 TBD ODOT Stormwater quality within the Portland Harbor | the PE and ROW phases for
Source Control from Fremont Bridge and St. the new Willamette
New ; . . :
Project improvements Johns Br!dge including Stormwater Source Control
surrounding areas. Improvements project.
Design and construct a
Project Rectangular Rapid Flashing
#10 US26: SE Beacon (RRFP) traffic signal to ADD NEW PROJECT:
Key ’ increase pedestrian safety. This The amendment adds the
TBD ODOT Powell Blvd & h .
22551 SE 36th Ave location was part of the ODOT new safety improvement
New Inner Powell Road Safety Audit project to the 2021-26 MTIP
Project determining location will merit by
adding traffic signal at location.
Project ADD NEW PROJECT:
#11 Columbia Columbia Create a print and interactive The formal amendment adds
Key TBD Slough Slough Water online paddlers guide to launch the new Oregon Parks
22545 Watershed Trail sites and water trail conditions Recreational Trails Program
New Council along the Columbia Slough. grant awarded project to the

2021-26 MTIP




MONTHLY SUBMITTED AMENDMENTS

FROM: KEN LOBECK

DATE: JANUARY 26, 2022

Project
#12
Key

22543
New

Project

TBD Troutdale

North
Beavercreek
Bridge
Replacement

Replacement of a failed timber
pedestrian bridge across Beaver
Creek in the City of Troutdale.

ADD NEW PROJECT:

The formal amendment adds
the new Oregon Parks
Recreational Trails Program
grant awarded project to the
2021-26 MTIP

Current approval progress for the January MTIP Formal Amendment bundle:
1. TPAC approval date: January 7, 2022
2. JPACT approval date: January 20, 2022
3. Metro Council approval date: Scheduled for February 10, 2022.
4. Upon Metro Council approval, the three amendment bundles will be sent to ODOT
and FHWA for final review and approval.

Key

22414

January 2022 Administrative Modifications

Administrative Modification Bundle AM22-09-JAN1

Lead
Agency

ODOT

Name

[-84: Gorge Corridor-Community
Engagement and Outreach

Change

The Administrative Modification
updates the project for recent
transfers to support the initial
obligation. The funds are sourced
from outside of the MP

22075

ODOT

Columbia Bottomlands
Mitigation/Conservation

The Administrative Modification
slips the ROW phase from FFY 2022
to FFY 2023 as RW files not in place
to certify RW.

21632

Washington
County

NW West Union Rd at Neakahnie Ave
(Washington County)

The Administrative Modification
reduces the project construction
phase to bring the total project cost
down to the maximum $1 million
level for approved SFLP project

20339

ODOT

East Systemic Signals and Illumination
(ODOT)

The Administrative Modification
increases the construction phase cost
due to higher bids. No scope change
is occurring. Since no scope change is
occurring, and the total cost increase
is less than 30%, the cost threshold
for the Amendment Matrix is waived
allowing the cost increase to be
process administratively.

21614

ODOT

US26: SE 8th Ave - SE 87th Ave

The Administrative Modification
convert the SFLP back to state funds
and cancels the ROW phase per
ODOT request




MONTHLY SUBMITTED AMENDMENTS FROM: KEN LOBECK

DATE: JANUARY 26, 2022

22483

ODOT

Advanced Traffic Controller (ATC):
Portland Metro Upgrades

The Administrative Modification
updates the project name to reflect a
broader improvement approach
based on available funding.

21607

ODOT

OR213 at NE Glisan St and NE Davis St

The Administrative Modification
slips the ROW phase from FFY 2022
to FFY 20223. Project was part of the
EOY phase slips amendment initially
missed during the review

19327

Tigard

Fanno Crk Trail: Woodard Pk to Bonita
Rd/85th Ave - Tualatin BR

The Administrative Modification
addresses two small cost increases
with local funds to PE and ROW. The
net change increases the project by
$217,614 and represents a 2.82%
cost increase to the project

Added Note: Upon additional review for Key 19327 (Fanno Creek), additional minor
adjustments to the PE and ROW phases are required which will be addressed for the

project in the next submitted administrative modification




AGENDA ITEM 6

FEBRUARY 3-4, 2022-LCDC MEETING

ATTACHMENT A

Climate-Friendly and

Equitable Communities

Rulemaking Advisory Committee

MEETING 11

Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities Rulemaking Advisory Committee Members
Bill Holmstrom and Kevin Young, DLCD Rulemaking Lead Staff

TO:
FROM:
SUBJECT:
DATE:

RAC 11 Item 3: Rulemaking Schedule
January 11, 2022

—
)~

DLCD

The schedule below is an updated summary of remaining activities in the Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities
Rulemaking, including activities of the Rulemaking Advisory Committee (RAC) and the Land Conservation and

Development Commission (LCDC).

Date RAC LCDC
January 20, RAC 11
2022 e Final rule review
e Impact Statement review
February 3 e Review draft rules, discuss key policy
and 4, 2022 guestions
Requested Input:
e Discussion of key policy questions
February — Staff Work
March 2022 | ¢ Rules prepared per Secretary of State requirements
February 7 — Draft rules to Department of Justice for legal review
February 21 — Draft rules to Rules Coordinator
March 1 — Draft rules published by Secretary of State
March 31, e First public hearing to consider the draft
April 1, 2022 administrative rules
Requested Input:
e |dentification of any necessary corrections or
amendments
May 19 and ¢ Final public hearing
20, 2022 e Adoption

Item 3: Rulemaki

ng Schedule

RAC Meeting 11

Pagelof1



Meeting minutes

@ Metro

600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736

Meeting: Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC)
Date/time: Friday, January 7,2022 | 9:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.

Place: Virtual online meeting via Web/Conference call (Zoom)

Members Attending
Tom Kloster, Chair
Karen Buehrig
Allison Boyd

Chris Deffebach
Lynda David

Eric Hesse

Dayna Webb

Jay Higgins

Don Odermott
Chris Ford

Karen Williams
Laurie Lebowsky
Lewis Lem

Idris Ibrahim

Alternates Attending
Jamie Stasny

Jaimie Lorenzini

Julia Hajduk

Jamie Snook

Glen Bolen

Gerik Kransky

Members Excused
Jessica Stetson
Wilson Munoz
Yousif Ibrahim
Donovan Smith
Rachael Tupica
Katherine Kelly
Rob Klug

Shawn M. Donaghy
Jeremy Borrego
Rich Doenges

Affiliate

Metro

Clackamas County

Multnomah County

Washington County

SW Washington Regional Transportation Council
City of Portland

City of Oregon City and Cities of Clackamas County
City of Gresham and Cities of Multnomah County
City of Hillsboro and Cities of Washington County
Oregon Department of Transportation

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality
Washington State Department of Transportation
Port of Portland

Community Representative

Affiliate

Clackamas County

City of Happy Valley and Cities of Clackamas County
City of Sherwood and Cities of Washington County
TriMet

Oregon Department of Transportation

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality

Affiliate

Community Representative
Community Representative
Community Representative
Community Representative
Federal Highway Administration
City of Vancouver

Clark County

C-Tran System

Federal Transit Administration
Washington Department of Ecology

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 1



Guests Attending Affiliate

Alice Bibler Oregon Department of Transportation
Jean Senechal Biggs City of Beaverton

Cody Field City of Tualatin

Brad Choi

Bob Kellett Portland Bureau of Transportation
Garet Prior Oregon Department of Transportation
Vanessa Vissar Oregon Department of Transportation
Jeff Owen

Mike Foley

Kat Hawkins Oregon Department of Transportation
Talena Adams Oregon Department of Transportation
Cindy Dauer

Metro Staff Attending

Ted Leybold, Resource & Dev. Manager John Mermin, Senior Transportation Planner
Kim Ellis, Principal Transportation Planner Caleb Winter, Senior Transportation Planner
Ken Lobeck, Senior Transportation Planner Lake McTighe, Senior Transportation Planner
Dan Kaempff, Principal Transportation Planner Grace Cho, Senior Transportation Planner
Eliot Rose, Transportation Tech & Analyst Chris Johnson, Research Manager

Al Mowbray, Sr. GIS Specialist Andrea Pastor, Senior Regional Planner
Marne Duke, Senior Regional Planner Marie Miller, TPAC Recorder

Call to Order, Declaration of a Quorum and Introductions

Chair Kloster called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. Introductions were made. A quorum of
members present was declared. Guests, public and staff were noted as attending. Reminders where
Zoom features were found online was reviewed.

Comments from the Chair and Committee Members

Committee input form on creating a Safe Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster) The link to adding
comments and input for creating a safe space at TPAC was noted in the chat area of the
meeting, which members are welcome to use at any time during the meeting. Comments will
be collected and shared at the end of the meeting.

Updates from committee members and around the Region (Chair Kloster and all) Jamie Snook
announced her new position at TriMet; Director, Major Projects. Tara O’Brien begins her
position soon and may be named the TriMet TPAC member.

Glen Bolen noted ODOT is hosting an online open house for the Oregon Transportation Plan - :
https://odotopenhouse.org/oregon-transportation-plan-update. ODOT will be accepting
applications for Safe Routes to School grants in March. There is a webinar for those interested
in applying on January 13th from 2:00 to 3:30. You can find more info here:
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Programs/Documents/A-Workshops-SRTS-2022-1.pdf.

Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken Lobeck) Chair Kloster referred to the memo in the
packet provided by Ken Lobeck on the monthly submitted MTIP formal amendments during
December 2021. As noted in the memo, formal/full amendments and administrative approval
processes were described. For any questions on the monthly MTIP amendment projects you
may contact Mr. Lobeck directly.

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 2


https://odotopenhouse.org/oregon-transportation-plan-update
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Programs/Documents/A-Workshops-SRTS-2022-1.pdf

e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe) Ms. McTighe provided the monthly fatal crashes report.
As of the 12/28/21 ODOT fatal crash report and available police notices, 131 people have died
in car crashes (an average of 11 people a month) in the three counties. The number of fatalities
decreased slightly from 2020 (139) and 2019 (136). However, over the past six years fatalities
trending upwards. The increase appears to be primarily in Multnomah County. In Clackamas
and Washington Counties, fatalities appear to be trending downward. A safety Federal Report
is coming in February. A safety workshop for transportation engineers and planners is being
planned again this year.

e 2022 TPAC overview of meetings/workshops, update on TPAC community representatives
(Chair Kloster) The TPAC work program and schedule of meetings for 2022 was noted in the
packet. For consistency, TPAC meetings will begin at 9:00 a.m. first Fridays. Chair Kloster
noted recruitment for TPAC community members is on pause for the moment. Margi Bradway
and Chair Kloster are discussing next steps with community engagement for the committee
with President Peterson. Current community members have been invited to serve informally at
the start of the year. Chair Kloster will report back to TPAC on Metro Council feedback and
direction with this issue.

Chris Ford shared interest in the conversation to support community members on the
committee. Garet Prior noted ODOT has been using sub-group meetings as an effective space
for community members pre- and post- official committee meetings. It takes time/energy, but
is really the only way we have found effective engagement in virtual monthly meetings. Chair
Kloster added meetings at Metro are expected to stay virtual this year, but would encourage
public participation and engagement.

Public Communications on Agenda Items Chair Kloster noted two letters submitted by Chris Smith, No
More Freeways. The first letter registered No More Freeways’ formal opposition to items on the
January 7th agenda:

® Resolution 21-5215 amending FY 2021-22 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) to amend
funding and add detail to existing I-5 Boone Bridge Planning Project

® Resolution 21-5216 amending FY 2021-22 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) to add
Regional Mobility Pricing Project

The second letter regarded Comments on Regional Mobility Pricing Project draft Purpose and Need
previously submitted to ODOT. These letters were added to the meeting packet.

Consideration of TPAC Minutes from December 3, 2021

Karen Williams noted adding “not” to the sentence on page 7 to read: “Karen Williams asked where in
the analysis studies we would find impacts on vehicle miles traveled (VMT). Ms. Putney noted these
have not been done yet, but will be part of the environmental assessment available for review and
public comment in June 2022.”

MOTION: To approve minutes from December 3 2021 with correction

Moved: Karen Williams Seconded: Karen Buehrig

ACTION: Motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 3



Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) Formal Amendment 21-5241

(Ken Lobeck, Metro) The January 2022 formal amendment bundle contains several Metro planning
project grouping buckets (PGB) currently programmed in FFY 2025 forward to the current federal fiscal
year of 2022. The projects and/are funding is being committed to the development of the SFY 23
UPWP. The programming advancements represent a preliminary budget action to establish the possible
availability of the type and amounts of federal funds for the UPWP. The final developed SFY 2023
UPWP will determine the actual approved projects and funding levels.

The remaining four projects in the bundle are new project submissions. Two projects originate from the
Oregon Parks and Recreation Department’s Recreational Trails Program (RTP) discretionary funding
program. The projects are active transportation projects which normally would not be programmed in
the MTIP and STIP However, the awarded funds are federal and FHWA requires both projects to
complete their federal funds obligation process through FHWA Financial Management Information
System (FMIS) process. So, MTIP and STIP programming now becomes mandatory. A detailed overview
of each project amendment in the bundle is included in the packet.

MOTION: Provide JPACT an approval recommendation of Resolution 22-5241 consisting of twelve
projects which will support development of the SFY 2023 UPWP and ensure required federal process
and obligation approvals can occur for four new projects being added to the MTIP through this
amendment.

Moved: Chris Deffebach Seconded: Eric Hesse

ACTION: Motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Resolution 21-5211, amending FY 2021-22 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) to add Sunrise
Community Visioning Project funded since UPWP adopted (John Mermin, Metro) Mr. Mermin
provided an overview of the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) resolutions that TPAC is being
asked to recommend to JPACT. The legislative materials, exhibits and staff reports on each resolution
were mentioned in the meeting packet.

Approval of Resolution 21-5211 will result in the Sunrise Gateway Corridor Community Visioning
Project begin added to the UPWP, which will allow Clackamas County to initiate planning work in the
current fiscal year (prior to June 30, 2022). This project was funded by the Oregon legislature during the
2021 session. House Bill 5006 contributed $4 million to the project. Clackamas County and the City of
Happy Valley will be contributing another $1.5 million for the project through staff time. The project
will be getting underway once the funds becoming available in early 2022 and is scheduled to be
completed over an 18 — 24 month timeframe.

Comments from the committee:

e Eric Hesse asked if shifts in timelines with scopes of projects and budgets would necessitate
additional amendments to the UPWP. Mr. Mermin noted there is a threshold for budget
changes that would trigger amendments needed, which are monitored in project planning.

e Karen Buehrig noted the overlay of documents (UPWP, MTIP, RTP), and asked what
appropriate activities relate to the UPWP. From the Boone Bridge project description, this
project would “analysis study the effects of bridge widening on travel patterns to complete the
Planning Phase, further refine a cost estimate range, update traffic analysis with tolling
assumptions, advance seismic design, determine bicycle and pedestrian access, evaluate land

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 4



use, conduct environmental analysis, and complete other pre- NEPA activities.” It was asked
what makes this design pre-NEPA, and then moves to the preliminary engineering stage.

e Chris Ford noted ODOT has the same questions on scope of projects, and works with FHWA on
their definitions of each phase. Garet Prior noted they receive direction from Federal on
planning linkage phases before shortening the NEPA activities with help on definitions between
planning and PE phases. Glen Bolen and Chair Kloster proved links on the issue:
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/23/450.318
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=3062

Ted Leybold added funding references on projects and how they coordinate with UPWP
between ODOT and Federal planning, and when it moves into PE phases and MTIP. Several
other factors make alignment between documents challenging, such as MTA guidance with
transit projects, time of funding sources spent between the documents, and tracking Federal
funding.

e Karen Buehrig asked for clarification in the Regional Mobility Pricing Project UPWP narrative
that seems to need ‘no’ added, which would read: “It has advanced out of the planning phase
into the preliminary engineering and environmental review phase and is NO longer included
within the Unified Planning Work Plan.

In this same project narrative timeline, the 4™ quarter of the UPWP (ending by June 30, 2023),
project deliverables read “Finalize purpose and need; identify alternatives for environmental
study”. It was asked if this was planned to be completed by July 1, 2023, therefore not
included in the next UPWP. Garet Prior noted they plan to transition into the NEPA phase at
that point but will know more specifically as the project develops.

e Lewis Lem noted that when he worked at NDOT, managing the UPWP program administration,
working with all the state's MPOs. If | had a question or uncertainty about how the UPWP
program should be administered, often | would just ask the FHWA state Division office for some
written guidance or guidelines. This provided better understanding on definitions and
requirements.

MOTION: To approve and recommend to JPACT Resolution 21-5211 amending FY 2021-22 Unified
Planning Work Program (UPWP) to add Sunrise Gateway Corridor Community Visioning Project
funded since the UPWP was adopted.

Moved: Karen Buehrig Seconded: Chris Ford

ACTION: Motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Resolution 21-5215 amending FY 2021-22 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) to amend funding
and add detail to existing I-5 Boone Bridge Planning Project (John Mermin, Metro) Mr. Mermin noted
that approval of resolution 21-5215 will result in funds added to the existing I-5 Boone Bridge Project,
which will allow ODOT to initiate planning work in the current fiscal year (prior to June 30, 2022). The
Planning Phase is estimated to be completed in Fiscal Year 2023 and will further refine a cost estimate
range, update traffic analysis with tolling assumptions, advance seismic design, determine bicycle and
pedestrian access, evaluate land use, conduct environmental analysis, and complete other pre-NEPA
activities.

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 5


https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/23/450.318
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=3062

MOTION: To approve and recommend to JPACT Resolution 21-5215 amending FY 2021-22 Unified
Planning Work Program (UPWP) to amend funding and add detail to existing I-5 Boone Bridge
Planning Project.

Moved: Chris Ford Seconded: Chris Deffebach

ACTION: Motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Resolution 21-5216 amending FY 2021-22 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) to add Regional
Mobility Pricing Project funded since UPWP adopted (John Mermin, Metro) Mr. Mermin noted that
approval of resolution 21-5216 will result in adding the Regional Mobility Pricing Project to the UPWP,
which will allow ODOT to initiate planning work in the current fiscal year (prior to June 30, 2022). ODOT
initiated a federal Planning and Environmental Linkage (PEL) process in 2021 for the Regional Mobility
Pricing Project. The goal is to identify -- through outreach with agency partners and the public -- the
project purpose, needs, and area of impact, and initial concepts that will be evaluated for
environmental impacts under the federal National Environmental Policy Act. This initial planning phase
for the Regional Mobility Pricing Project is expected to be completed in 2022.

Comments from the Committee:

e Karen Buehrig noted language in the narrative and staff report of the I-205 segment of
Interstate 205 in Clackamas County (OR213 to Stafford Road), that is now pulled out from this
part of the Regional Mobility Pricing Project (RMPP) because of it moving forward. It was asked
how this segment would be analyzed in the RMPP? Garet Prior noted The [-205 Toll Project has
advanced out of the planning phase into the preliminary engineering and environmental review
phase and is longer included within the Unified Planning Work Plan. Information from the I-
205 section will be used to develop different scenarios and analysis for larger areas of the
tolling project.

Ms. Buehrig noted it was hoped the RMPP would look at the I-205 segment as a complete
segment, not just what we learned from the |-205 project. Implications from the whole system
may range differently when assumptions are made from only one segment. Mr. Prior noted
they will be looking at what could work best in this area long-term within the regional context.
Several factors will allow better analysis; time between the draft and final environmental
assessment, community feedback, updated scenarios, and time before tolling on 1-205 (later
2023) with more comprehensive understanding of congestion pricing at the regional level.

e Chris Deffebach asked if language should be included concerning I-205 toll rates. Is one toll
rate plan for the whole region in the planning phase the intent to catch up with other rates, or
is this the wrong assumption? Mr. Prior noted funding sources are not yet known, so variable
rates in the system that includes Interstate Bridge, I-205 and other areas on I-5 and |-205 are
still be planned where they fit for different times of day and sections.

e Karen Buehrig asked if it was relevant to keep the language in the description of as the project
for past planning phases on the I-205 project. ODOT members noted this wording in the
amendment was for transparency, but was not necessary for current description. It was agreed
the two sentences in the amendment narrative could be removed with the motion to approve.

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 6



MOTION: To approve and recommend to JPACT Resolution 21-5216 amending FY 2021-22 Unified
Planning Work Program (UPWP) to add Regional Mobility Pricing Project funded since UPWP
adopted, with the following edit:

Remove 2 sentences in Exhibit A to Resolution 21-5216 that read “The 1-205 Toll Project is ODOT’s
other active toll project. It has advanced out of the planning phase into the preliminary engineering
and environmental review phase and is longer included within the Unified Planning Work Plan.”
Moved: Karen Buehrig Seconded: Chris Ford

ACTION: Motion passed unanimously with edit.

2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Vision and Priority Outcomes (Kim Ellis, Metro) Ms. Ellis
provided an update on scoping engagement activities since Oct. 2021. Since October, staff continued
to seek input from local, regional and state partners, community and business leaders and the public.
The engagement activities have focused on identifying transportation trends and challenges affecting
the quality of life in the region, priorities for the update to address, and ways to engage local, regional
and state public officials and staff, community and business leaders and members of the public in
shaping the updated plan.

Scoping engagement activities will continue in early 2022 to seek feedback on the vision and priorities
for the future transportation system, topics to be the focus of the technical work and policy discussions
and ideas for how best to engage public officials, community and business leaders and the public in
shaping the updated plan. The central themes and topics identified through these different
engagement activities will be summarized in a scoping engagement report. The topics identified during
the scoping phase in combination with recommendations from the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan
and more recently completed studies, and new federal and state requirements will inform the draft
work plan and engagement plan developed to guide the plan update.

Next steps to finalizing the work plan and engagement plan:

¢ January and February Metro Council, regional advisory committees discuss values, priorities and
desired outcomes, on-line public survey, consultation with Tribes and federal and state agencies

¢ February and March Metro Council and regional advisory committees consider stakeholder input and
discuss draft work plan and engagement strategy

e March 17 JPACT considers approval of work plan and engagement plan

e March 23 MPAC recommendation to Metro Council on work plan and engagement plan

¢ March 31 Metro Council considers approval of work plan and engagement plan

Ms. Ellis provided discussion questions and asked for feedback from the committee.

Comments from the committee:

e Don Odermott noted the lack of support with businesses in the last transportation measure,
and how important it was to gain better engagement with businesses across the region. It was
suggested to provide outreach to them for help attracting and keeping employees with access
to transit. Ms. Ellis noted several stakeholder interviews on this subject and planned business
industry forums and discussions for business leaders across the region.

e Jamie Snook noted the timing with projects, such as TV Highway and 82" Avenue, and
coordination with RTP planning. It was suggested that with investment development strategies
the projects align with RTP planning development. It was asked what type of timeline for

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 7



project development was planned, Ms. Ellis noted the project list update would be developed
for review this fall, followed by evaluation and feedback winter through spring 2023.

e Chris Ford noted the Vision Statement was aspirational, and suggested defining equity with
more emphasis on transportation and housing goals. With the current housing crisis it is
important to find transportation service to additional housing developments, not just in
Portland but across the region. The 2040 Growth Plan should be reflected in the RTP that
include outlying areas where transportation is harder to reach.

It was noted the RTP is a balanced document, aiming to reach a range of projects and
investments with outcomes and goals that not all polices can achieve. There are stakeholders
outside the region that need to be reached and engaged with the RTP, following federal
direction. It was suggested to gain real-time input and ideas at workshops with live polling.

e Eric Hesse suggested the Vision Statement reflect key values highlighted that have developed
from the Mobility Policy update and other relevant projects. Regarding climate vision, more
clarity for better understanding and purpose would be advantageous. Possible moving the top
11 goals to 4 may be needed at some time. Performance based plans that recognize gaps in
expected outcomes and policy expectations will help deliver the goals.

e Chris Deffebach recommended no need for change with the Vision Statement. Regarding the 4
top priorities, it was suggested to look at all 11 to find interaction and interrelated connections
among projects for better support and coordination. It was felt the congestion pricing policy
was narrowly written that excludes any capacity projects in the system, which is important to
achieve the reliability vision and affects with more congestion on arterial roads happening now.

The safety analysis being prepared by Lake McTighe is looked forward to receiving, as diversion
on roads has increased safety issues in the region. Washington County is working on their
County-wide transit system plan with identified access to transit locations, and highlighting the
importance to coordination among projects when updating systems. Regarding project
priorities, a discussion on who decides these with different needs and goals is suggested.

e Karen Buehrig noted the good work ODOT has done with their interactive approach to
outreach and engage the public, which is hoped would be taken with the RTP work. Regarding
the 4 top priorities, it was suggested to show what was already laid out when asked if others
have priorities so the full extent is covered in the RTP. The Vision Statement appears solid with
only a minor refreshment to climate change for relevancy.

e Don Odermott noted that with new JPACT members and other elected in the region
understanding the top 4 priorities better articulation between these issues was suggested.
Current thought on congestion was mostly all vehicular, but other modes of travel in the region
are planned, forming an urbanized multimodal transit system. It was noted not all resources of
funding for transportation prioritizations comes from Federal funding. The region differs where
populations and access to transit are, which should be respected and understood developing
funding and policy issues. Ms. Ellis noted capacity and demand models would be formed
strategically, and key policy discussions in the RTP would include congestion pricing and how
this is related.

e Karen Williams suggested that, if not already done, outreach with businesses/employers that
ODOT has engaged with their Get There Program on employer commute programs. Marne

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 8



Duke, contact for Get There program in the region, shared her email:
Marne.duke@oregonmetro.gov.

For the 4™ top priority, congestion, it was suggested advocate expanding, and renaming to
mobility. This makes the connection between getting people to work, land use issues, and
limited housing options hear employment a strong connection.

Ms. Ellis appreciated the thoughtful feedback and insights form TPAC. For any further comments or
submission of the worksheet she can be reach at Kim.Ellis@oregonmetro.gov Depending on availability
of materials with the process, updates will be provided at the Feb. 4 TPAC meeting and Feb. 16
workshop with MTAC.

2024-27 Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) Administered Funding Program —
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (1lJA) (Chris Ford, ODOT) Mr. Ford provided an overview of the
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) with implications to funds and program allocations in
Oregon. The $1.2 billion funding over the next 5 years was shown by percentage estimates, including
Flexible funds 32%, Bridge 21%, Transit 14%, Resilience 7%, Safety 4%, and several climate friendly
programs (carbon reduction 5%, EV charging 4%, and active transportation 3%).

Local programs breakdown were estimated as:
Statewide Programs

¢ ARTS: $20m

e Local Bridge: $S34m

e Community Paths: $20m

* CMAQ: $8m

¢ MPO planning: $6m

e STBG fund share with cities/counties/small MPOs: $32m
Transportation Management Areas

« Surface Transportation Block Grants: $30m

* Transportation Alternatives: $11m

e Carbon Reduction: $27m

Several links were shared to follow updates and provide feedback to the IlJA:
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Pages/IlJA.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Documents/IIJA-FAQ.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law

Ways to provide feedback to the Oregon Transportation Commission:

¢ Submit comments and letters through OTC website at www.oregon.gov/odot/Get-
Involved/Pages/OTC-Comments.aspx

¢ Watch for online open house in February

¢ Provide public comment at OTC meetings January 20, February 17 (special meeting on IlJA), March
10, March 30 (special meeting on IlJA).

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 9


mailto:Marne.duke@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Kim.Ellis@oregonmetro.gov
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Pages/IIJA.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Documents/IIJA-FAQ.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law
http://www.oregon.gov/odot/Get-Involved/Pages/OTC-Comments.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/odot/Get-Involved/Pages/OTC-Comments.aspx

Questions for stakeholders to inform development of funding scenarios for the OTC were suggested:
¢ Given the investments already made in the STIP and the federal infrastructure bill, how should the
OTC allocate flexible funding to best advance the OTC/ODOT Strategic Action Plan and the state’s
transportation goals?

* Do the priorities expressed in 2020- particularly strong support for public and active transportation
and Fix-It— remain? Or have these priorities changed in some ways?

¢ What are the specific priorities for investment of funds in public and active transportation?

Comments from the committee:

e Grace Cho asked what major trends or priorities has been heard or emerging from these
presentations in the region. Mr. Ford noted nothing specific from the OTC office, but regionally
topics included availability for vehicles and trucks to travel further, climate change issues, the
transit system, bridges in the region and a mix of operational help for resiliency & climate.

e Lewis Lem asked how ODOT might be thinking about the bridge program in terms of funding
eligibility. It was heard that prior IGA bridge programs had limited funds. Would ODOT funds
be re-prioritized with more funding in the program? Mr. Ford noted the local and statewide
bridge programs based on technical analysis of each, but at this time had no specifics on
project plans with the program.

e Eric Hesse acknowledged a good summary presented with possible considerations noted for
ongoing programs such as Flexible Funds. Adding to the bridges discussion, there is the
“Protect Program” that addresses resiliency, a key new program that is important to bridges in
our region. It was suggested that with adoption of the resiliency plan we aim to get higher
Federal funds match under the Protect Program.

e Lewis Lem noted the Port is starting to evaluate competitive grant programs and is eager to
hear more. There are the bigger bridge funds which would be applied for the I-5 bridge
replacement project, and the formula grants program where eligibility and criteria is being
sought. The Port would be interested in working with other agencies to coordinate together on
funding opportunities.

*An additional slide was presented “Major IlIJA Discretionary Grant Programs” that was added to the
packet following the meeting.

Committee comments on creating a safe space at TPAC (Chair Kloster) The following was received
unanimously: “While challenges to meaningful engagement experienced by our community reps are
exacerbated by Zoom, feels like it might be time to take a step back and consider if a different
approach is merited for how/where they participate in what types of decisions.”

Adjournment
There being no further business, meeting was adjourned by Chair Kloster at 11:35 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Marie Miller, TPAC Recorder

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 10



Attachments to the Public Record, TPAC meeting, January 7, 2022

frem DOCUMENT TYPE DOCUMENT
DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION DocuMENT No.
1 Agenda 1/7/2022 1/7/2022 TPAC Agenda 010722T-01
2 TPAC Work Program | 12/30/2021 TPAC Work Program as of 12/30/2021 010722T-02
TO: TPAC and interested parties
From: Ken Lobeck, Funding Programs Lead
RE: TPAC Metropolitan Transportation Improvement
3 Memo 12/28/2021 Program (MTIP) Monthly Submitted Amendments for 010722T-03
November and December 2021 (Formal Amendments) and
December 2021 for Administrative Modifications
TO: TPAC and interested parties
From: Marie Miller
4 M 12/7/21 010722T-04
emo /71 RE: 2022 Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee
(TPAC) Meeting Schedule
5 Draft Minutes 12/03/2021 Draft TPAC minutes from December 3, 2021 010722T-05
Resolution 21-5241 FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE
2021-26 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (MTIP) TO ADVANCE EIGHT
6 Resolution N/A METRO UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 010722T-06
PROJECTS INTO THE CONSTRAINED MTIP TO ASSIST IN THE
DEVELOPMENT OF THE SFY 2023 UPWP, PLUS ADD FOUR
NEW PROJECTS TO THE MTIP (JA22-07-JAN2)
7 Exhibit A N/A Exhibit A to Resolution 21-5241 010722T-07
TO: TPAC and interested parties
From: Ken Lobeck, Funding Program Lead
8 Staff Report 12/25/2021 RE: January 2022 MTIP Formal Amendment & Resolution 0107227-08
21-5241 Approval Request (Regular Bundle)
Resolution 21-5211 FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE
FY 2021-22 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP)
Legislative Package TO ADD THE SUNRISE GATEWAY CORRIDOR COMMUNITY
9 for Resolution 21- N/A VISIONING PROJECT THAT WAS FUNDED SINCE THE UPWP | 010722T-09
5211 WAS ADOPTED
Exhibit A to Resolution 21-5211
Staff Report to Resolution 21-5211
Resolution 21-5215 FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE
Legislative Package FY 2021-22 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP)
. TO AMEND THE FUNDING AND ADD DETAIL TO THE I-5
10} for Re?zhi;"’" 21- | N/A BOONE BRIDGE PLANNING PROJECT 0107221-10
Exhibit A to Resolution 21-5215
Staff Report to Resolution 21-5215
Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022 Page 11




Item

DOCUMENT TYPE

DOCUMENT
DATE

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

DocuMENT No.

11

Legislative Package
for Resolution 21-
5216

N/A

Resolution 21-5216 FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE

FY 2021-22 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP)
TO ADD THE REGIONAL MOBILITY PRICING PROJECT THAT
WAS FUNDED SINCE THE UPWP WAS ADOPTED

Exhibit A to Resolution 21-5216

Staff Report to Resolution 21-5216

010722T-11

12

Memo

12/30/2021

TO: TPAC and interested parties

From: Kim Ellis, Principal Transportation Planner

RE: 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Update —
Vision and Priority Outcomes

010722T-12

13

Memo

1/6/2022

TO: TPAC and interested parties
From: Lake McTighe, Regional Planner
RE: December 2021 fatal crash update

010722T-13

14

Slide

01/07/2022

Dec 2021 fatal crash report
Clackamas, Multnomah and Washington Counties

010722T-14

15

Letter

01/05/2022

TO: TPAC and Interested Parties
From: Chris Smith, No More Freeways
RE: Comments on January 7th TPAC agenda items

010722T-15

16

Letter

09/29/2021

TO: Oregon Toll Program (ODOT)

From: Aaron Brown, No More Freeways

Chris Smith, No More Freeways

Joe Cortright, No More Freeways

Mary Peveto, Neighbors for Clean Air

Paxton Rothwell, Sunrise PDX

RE: Comments on Regional Mobility Pricing Project draft
Purpose and Need

010722T-16

17

Presentation

01/07/2022

January 2022 Formal MTIP Amendment Summary
Resolution 22-5241

010722T-17

18

Presentation

01/07/2022

2021-22 Unified Planning Work Program Amendments

010722T-18

19

Presentation

01/07/2022

2023 Regional Transportation Plan update

010722T-19

20

Presentation

01/07/2022

Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act
Implications for Oregon

010722T-20

21

Slide

N/A

Major IlJA Discretionary Grant Programs

010722T7-21

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee, Meeting Minutes from January 7, 2022

Page 12




BEFORE THE METRO COUNCIL

FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE 2018 )  ORDINANCE NO. 21-1467
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN TO ) . . .
INCLUDE THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING )  Introduced by Chief Operating Officer
PHASE OF THE 1-205 TOLL PROJECT, ANDTO ) Marissa Madrigal in concurrence with
CLARIFY THE FINANCIAL CONNECTION OF ) Council President Lynn Peterson
THE 1-205 TOLL PROJECT TO THE 1-205 g

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) is the federally-recognized metropolitan
transportation plan for the greater Portland region, and must be updated every five years; and

WHEREAS, the RTP fulfills statewide planning requirements to implement Statewide Planning
Goal 12 (Transportation), as implemented through the Transportation Planning Rule and the Metropolitan
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Targets Rule; and

WHEREAS, the RTP is a central tool for implementing the Region 2040 Growth Concept, and
constitutes a policy component of the Regional Framework Plan; and

WHEREAS, the most recent update to the RTP was completed on December 6, 2018, following
approval by the Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT) and the Metro Council; and

WHEREAS, JPACT and the Metro Council must approve any subsequent amendments to add
new projects or policies or to substantially modify existing projects or policies in the RTP; and

WHEREAS, amendments to the RTP must be reviewed for consistency with the priority
outcomes, goals, objectives and policies in the RTP, including verification of fiscal constraint, consistent
with the process and procedures defined in Chapter 8 of the RTP; and

WHEREAS, the public must be provided an opportunity to review and comment on proposed

amendments to the RTP, consistent with the policies and procedures in Metro’s Public Engagement
Guide; and

WHEREAS, the greater Portland region has experienced significant growth and demographic
changes, that are forecasted to continue into the future; and

WHEREAS, the region’s significant growth has resulted in increasing congestion, particularly on
the greater Portland area’s throughways; and

WHEREAS, ongoing efforts to address congestion in the region include directing growth in
designated centers and corridors served by high-quality transit in combination with investments in system
and demand management strategies, improving transit service and reliability, increasing bicycle and
pedestrian connections and adding roadway capacity in targeted ways; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 RTP found that these strategies are not sufficient for addressing growing
congestion and that the region must also manage demand; and

WHEREAS, congestion pricing, wherein drivers are charged directly for their use of roadways,
bridges, or parking, is used in congested regions around the world to improve mobility, reduce pollution

Page 1 Ordinance No. 21-1467



and greenhouse gas emissions, and to raise revenue to fund investments in their transportation systems;
and

WHEREAS, the 2018 RTP identifies congestion pricing as a high priority, high impact strategy to
address congestion in ways that also advance achievement of the region’s climate, equity, and safety
goals; and

WHEREAS, the Metro Council and JPACT adopted policies in the 2018 RTP to expand the use
of pricing strategies to manage vehicle congestion and encourage shared trips and the use of transit; and
in combination with increased transit service, consider use of pricing strategies to manage congestion and
raise revenue when one or more lanes are being added to throughways designated in the RTP; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) is studying options for a variable
rate toll on all lanes of Interstate 205 (1-205) between Stafford Road and Oregon Route 213 (OR 213),
known as the 1-205 Toll Project, and the tolls would raise revenue to complete financing for the
planned 1-205 Improvement Project and manage congestion on this section of 1-205; and

WHEREAS, ODOQOT is preparing to move the 1-205 Toll Project forward in the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) review process and, as part of this process, requested an amendment to
the 2018 RTP; and

WHEREAS, the requested RTP amendment would add a preliminary engineering phase for the I-
205 Toll Project to the RTP financially constrained project list, and clarify the financial connection of the
1-205 Toll Project to the 1-205 Improvement Project in Chapter 8 of the RTP; and

WHEREAS, the ODOT 1-205 Toll Project has been coordinated with other ODOT planning and
project development efforts, including the Regional Mobility Pricing Project and the 1-205 Improvements
Project, and will continue to be coordinated in the future; and

WHEREAS, the planning work to date has been conducted with input from several state, regional
and local committees, elected bodies and commissions, such as the Transportation Policy Alternatives
Committee (TPAC), the Metro Technical Advisory Committee (MTAC), the Metro Policy Advisory
Committee (MPAC), the Oregon Transportation Commission, the Region 1 Area Commission on
Transportation (RLACT), ODOT’s Equitable Mobility Advisory Committee (EMAC), and County
Coordinating Committees (staff and policymakers) in the greater Portland area; and

WHEREAS, Metro held a 45-day public comment period on the requested amendment from
October 1 to November 15, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Metro Council held a public hearing on November 4, 2021 to accept public
testimony and comments regarding ODOT’s requested RTP amendment; and

WHEREAS, approval of the requested amendment to the 2018 RTP will allow the 1-205 Toll
Project to continue to move forward in the NEPA review process and allows a separate amendment to the
2021-2024 Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) to move forward for consideration
by JPACT and the Metro Council to program funding for the preliminary engineering phase for the 1-205
Toll Project, now therefore,

THE METRO COUNCIL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

1. The 2018 Regional Transportation Plan is hereby amended, as indicated in attached Exhibit A,
attached and incorporated into this ordinance.

Page 2 Ordinance No. 21-1467



2. The "Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions," attached as Exhibit B, is
incorporated by reference and any amendments reflected in the recommended actions are
incorporated in Exhibit A.

3. The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in Exhibit C, attached and incorporated into this

ordinance, explain how this amendment complies with the Regional Framework Plan, statewide
planning laws and the Oregon Transportation Plan and its applicable components.

ADOPTED by the Metro Council this___ day of , 2022,

Lynn Peterson, Council President

Approved as to Form:

Carrie MacLaren, Metro Attorney

Page 3 Ordinance No. 21-1467



Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 21-1467
@ Metro

1/27/22

1. Amend 2018 RTP Chapter 8 (Table 8.3 and Section 8.1.3.8) to add the
following information about the I-205 Toll Project as shown in

strikethreugh and underscore:

Table 8.3 Completed and Current Major Project Development

Project Status

Interstate 5/Columbia River
Crossing Project

LPA approved in July 2008.
Record of decision signed by FHWA in December 2011.

Project development work discontinued in 2013 in Washington and
2014 in Oregon.

Joint Washington and Oregon Legislative Action Committee discussions
begin in 2017.

Sunrise Project and Sunrise Jobs
and Transportation Act Project

LPA approved in July 2009.

Record of decision for Phase 1, Units 1, 2 and 3 signed by FHWA in
February 2011.

Phase 1 related projects were completed in June 2016.

Environmental approval received for improvements on OR 224 at Rusk
Road.

Phase 2 and Phase 3 may require future NEPA reevaluation for
improvements east of SE 122nd Ave, given changes in the built
environment since 2010.

Division Transit Project

LPA approved in June 2017.

Southwest Corridor Project

LPA approved in Nov. 2018.

I-5 Rose Quarter Improvement
Project

Environmental Assessment anticipated to be published in 2019.

Design anticipated to begin in 2019.

MAX Red Line Improvements
Project

LPA approval anticipated in January 2019.
Documented Categorical Exclusion approval anticipated in 2019.

OR 217 Project

OR 217 Southbound:
e Categorical Exclusion anticipated by October 2019.

e OR 217 Northbound: Categorical Exclusion anticipated by April 2020.

1-205 South Corridor Widening
and Seismic Improvements
Project

Categorical Exclusion approved in December 2018.

As identified in HB 3055 (and ORS Chapter 383), toll revenue will be
needed to complete construction of this project. A separate
Environmental Assessment for the [-205 Toll Project began in August
2020; expected completion in December 2022.

Basalt Creek Parkway

IGA to plan for Basalt Creek signed by partners in 2011.

Basalt Creek Transportation Refinement Study to define alignment
completed in 2013 and adopted as an amendment to IGA.

Categorical Exclusion anticipated in 2019.

Page 1 of 4




Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 21-1467 1/27/22
@ Metro

8.3.1.8 1-205 South Corridor Widening and Seismic Improvements Project

Preliminary design work is underway to widen 1-205 between OR 213 and Stafford Road and improve
the 1-205/Abernethy Bridge to ensure it remains functional after a catastrophic earthquake. Fre-design

identified- Construction financing for Phase 1A, including Abernethy Bridge and adjacent
intersections, is identified in HB 3055 (2021 Session). Variable Rate Tolls priced to manage travel
demand as well as provide revenue will be used to fund the rest of the project (Phase 1B, 1C, 1D and

Phase 2).

The I-205 South project widens 1-205 to add a third lane in each direction between Stafford Road and
OR 213 and an auxiliary lane across the Abernethy Bridge in each direction. The 1-205/Abernethy
Bridge project provides for seismic upgrades of the Abernethy Bridge and includes seismic retrofit or
replacement of eight additional bridges in the corridor. The project also adds Active Traffic
Management System improvements, such as Traveler Information Signs, throughout the corridor and a
new parallel multi-use path as designated in the Chapter 3 RTP bicycle and pedestrian system maps.

The proposed 1-205 Toll Project would toll [-205 near the Abernethy and Tualatin River Bridges (see
Figure 8.13b) to raise revenue for construction of the planned I-205 Improvements Project and

manage congestion between Stafford Road and Oregon Route 213 to give travelers a better and more

reliable trip. Significant impacts caused by tolling will need to be addressed as part of this project

through mitigation. More information about the 1-205 Toll Project can be found at
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/1-205-Tolling.aspx.

The Oregon Transportation Commission approved a Cost to Complete Report for the project that was
shared with the Oregon Legislature in January 2018, as mandated by HB 2017. The Cost to Complete
Report defines the project scope and recommends a project delivery method and phasing plan to
complete the project by 2025. Read the report and find more project information at
www.i205corridor.org.

Page 2 of 4


http://www.i205corridor.org/

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 21-1467 1/27/22
@ Metro

Figure 8.13a 1-205 South Widening and Seismic Improvements Project Area Map

sonano _ © z GLADSTONE
2oAB" TUALATIN 5
RIVER P e v

%, ] MAIN STREET,

™~

BERNETHY ‘v‘

Shlber 4

L®

WEST LINN

\VER
o \V\(‘\
Pup
@D 1-205 WIDENING

€N BRIDGE REPLACEMENTS

REMOVED

{® seismic UPGRADES

@ INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENTS
. OREGON CITY

REMOVED

@ TRAVELER INFORMATION SIGNS

Source: ODOT

Figure 8.13b 1-205 Toll Project Draft Map

Tualatin River Bridges Toll Gantry Area

‘7.

tafford

K ] Abcraethy Bridge |

Oregon City

West Linn

Legend

[ ol Garlry Area

N

,’i\‘ 0 T2 D3
R e— T |
= Villes.

Source: ODOT

Page 3 of 4



Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 21-1467 1/27/22
@ Metro

2. Amend 2018 RTP Appendix A to add I-205 Toll Project (Preliminary Engineering Phase) as follows:

Project Start Location End Location Description Estimated Time Financially
Name Cost Period Constrained

(2016 dollars)

project list

12099 (new | 1-205 Oswego Hwy Stafford Rd The Project would toll all $23,534,759 | 2018-2027 Yes
project) Tolling (OR 43) Interchange lanes of 1-205 on or near the
Project Interchange Abernethy Bridge and
(PE) Tualatin River Bridge. The

Project’s purpose is to raise
revenue to fund construction
of the I-205 Improvements
Project and manage
congestion between Stafford
Road and Oregon Route 213
(OR 213). The PE phase
includes completion of
environmental analysis under
the National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) and initial
design for toll infrastructure.
The NEPA process for the I-
205 Toll Project will analyze
the impacts of tolling on 1-205
between Stafford Road and
Oregon Route 213 (OR 213).

Page 4 of 4




Table 5-1

Respondent

Affiliation

Opinion

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

RTP Amendment-Specific Comments

Comment Summary

Response

1 Resident

Oppose

“I am opposed to this proposed RTP amendment.
While I support congestion pricing as a tool to reduce
VMT and to improve the environment, ... Expanding
freeways is not a smart investment. It leads to more
driving, people living and working further away, and
exacerbates existing inequities by limiting the options
of poor and other underserved populations. It is time
to put the brakes on the plans to expand I-205.
Implement congestion pricing first. Invest in high
quality transit. Encourage people to drive less. In
other words, please do all you can to help save our
planet.”

(See the table of online survey responses in Appendix
D for complete comments.)

Thank you for this comment and we share your
concerns related to inequities and the need for
transportation options. The project area
experiences a high crash rate and is a traffic
bottleneck that leads to back ups on I-205 and on
local streets near the highway. The nine bridges
in this section of I-205 are not built to current
seismic standards and also need to be rebuilt or
retrofitted. In addition to congestion pricing,
ODOT is investing in multimodal infrastructure
as part of a comprehensive approach to
improving mobility. The I-205 Improvements
Project, once fully built, will include
enhancements to bicycle and pedestrian
infrastructure. ODOT is investing in transit
improvements through the Statewide
Transportation Improvement Fund. Additional
transit and multimodal options also are under
consideration and could be funded by toll
revenue. No proposed change.

Page 1 of 12



Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Resident

Oppose

“I have read the document. This is not an amendment
that serves the public. This was not passed by the
public. The ballot measure was passed to improve
roads, and the funding the measure generated was
intended by the voters to be put directly into the road
improvements. ... It is fiscally irresponsible to kick the
payment of this toll project (which drivers don’t even
want) to drivers of the future, and dishonest to say
that the toll is for this project alone. Once a toll is in
place, it will not go away. If Metro needs more money,
it should propose a tax to increase revenue directly to
voters. ... If the project is begun as described, I will
not use 205 during the construction work. Instead I
will use the back roads I use currently when there is
some issue on 205. ... There will be many drivers who
join me, and we will see our neighborhood roads such
as Borland, 10th St, 65th, 99W, the Sellwood bridge
and Tacoma St, etc suddenly have much higher use
and wear. ... Please consider abandoning this tolling
project. With integrity, please consider bringing such a
project before voters with transparency and honesty.”

(See the table of online survey responses in Appendix
D for complete comments.)

Thank you for this comment. The State of Oregon
is exploring tolling as part of a comprehensive
approach to better manage congestion in the
Portland metro area. In 2017, the Oregon
Legislature approved House Bill 2017, known as
Keep Oregon Moving, which committed
hundreds of millions of dollars to projects that
will manage congestion and improve the
transportation system statewide, including
highway improvement projects, freight rail,
transit improvements, and bicycle and
pedestrian facilities. The bill, along with
clarification from the 2021 Legislature, directed
the Oregon Transportation Commission to
pursue and implement tolling I-5 and I-205 in the
Portland metro area for congestion management
and transportation improvements.

The Oregon Toll Program has two goals; funding
necessary roadway improvements in the short
term, and managing congestion in the long term.
The traditional sources of funding ODOT has
depended on to pay for transportation
infrastructure improvement projects, like the gas
tax, have not kept up with the needs and
demands of our transportation system. Once our
immediate revenue needs are met for the I-205
improvements project, revenue will continue to
be used in the corridor for further improvements,
and tolling will be used to continue to manage
congestion.

We know that some drivers currently use
neighborhood streets to avoid congestion on
highways. Changes to rerouting pagterns tnto




Respondent
Affiliation

Opinion

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Comment Summary

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Response

non-tolled local streets could take place with
drivers looking to avoid a toll; other drivers
might opt for a more reliable highway trip. As
highway travel becomes more reliable, and
transit service more accessible, a positive result
of variable rate tolling would be to reduce
existing rerouting. Overall, the objective of
variable rate tolling is to improve mobility by
managing the highway for freight and longer-
distance trips so that local streets can better serve
shorter, local trips. No proposed change.

Page 3 of 12



Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

The Street Trust

Conditional
Support

“The Street Trust does NOT support roadway tolling
as an instrument for funding infrastructure that
increases drive-alone trips. ... We encourage Metro
leadership to only support an amendment to the RTP
once you have established, with certainty that the
tolling revenue will be used to increase seismic
resilience; increase access to walking, biking, and
transit; and will reduce vehicle miles traveled and
greenhouse gas emissions. ... Only once this regional,
system-wide traffic demand management system has
been implemented should we consider the right (and
right-sized) infrastructure investments to increase
mobility for our state and region. In many cases,
expensive road widening projects may not be
necessary.”

(See entry in the Comment Log below for more
detailed comments and the attached letter from André
Lightsey-Walker in Appendix B for complete
comments.)

Thank you for this comment. When fully
constructed, the I-205 Improvements Project will
make the first earthquake-ready interstate
structure across the Willamette River, rebuild or
retrofit eight other bridges, and improve options
for biking and walking in the corridor. ODOT
has a goal to support multimodal transportation
choices, and one of the main goals of the Oregon
Toll Program is to reduce vehicular congestion
on the road. Revenue from the Oregon Toll
Program can be dedicated to projects or services
needed to address the significant, negative effects
of tolling. We will collaborate with transit
providers to support access and enhancements to
transit and other transportation services in the I-
205 corridor, especially for historically and
currently excluded and underserved
communities.

Additionally, ODOT will continue to coordinate
with the Transit and Multimodal Working
Group, as well as the Equity and Mobility
Advisory Committee, to identify strategies for
integrating transit and multimodal travel into the
Project.

The Oregon Toll Program will evaluate the
potential effects on greenhouse gas emissions
during project planning phases and will
incorporate project features to help Oregon meet
its climate-change goals. So far, we know that
variable rate (which will be used on I-205) tolling
may encourage some drivers to shift to modes of
travel (such as carpooling, taking public transit,

Page 4 of 12



Respondent

Affiliation

Opinion

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Comment Summary

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Response

or biking) that generate fewer greenhouse gas
emissions. Whether this reduces overall
transportation greenhouse gas emissions also
depends on how many individual drivers divert
to alternative, less efficient routes to avoid tolls.
No proposed change.

Page 5 of 12



Respondent

Affiliation
Resident

Opinion

Conditional
Support

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467
Comment Summary

“ODOT plans to add 14 lane-miles of freeway to this
region and planet, in addition to seismic strengthening
of the Abernethy Bridge and other related work. ...
Metro needs to direct ODOT to properly analyze the
project, and consider alternatives that take into
account the VMT suppression from tolling and
provide a robust transit alternative. Not because
NEPA requires this, but because this is the only way
to move toward compliance with regional and
statewide greenhouse gas reduction goals.

Metro should not move forward with an RTP
amendment, and should withhold subsequent MTIP
approval until ODOT agrees to do the needed analysis
of alternatives. ... One alternative to consider is a
frequent express bus connecting various points
between Clackamas Town Center and Beaverton
Transit Center along I-205, I-5, and Hwy 217, funded
by ODOT. ... A less satisfactory alternative would be
to modify the freeway in the non-tolled stretches to
allow Bus on Shoulder operation to bypass congestion.
When frequent express bus service is time-competitive
with auto travel, and is well-integrated with an
improved regional transit system, the need for
expanding freeways might be reduced.”

(See entry in the Comment Log below for more
detailed comments and the attached testimony from
Doug Allen in Appendix B for complete comments.)

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Response

Thank you for this comment. We recognize that
climate change is an urgent issue. We are using
modeling practices consistent with other
transportation projects in the region and
comparing what happens with and without the
tolling project in 2045. These results will be
available in the Environmental Assessment
published for review and comment in 2022. The
Oregon Toll Program will evaluate the potential
effects on greenhouse gas emissions during
project planning phases and will incorporate
project features to help Oregon meet its climate-
change goals. Greenhouse gas emissions and
VMT are already included as performance
measures in the environmental assessment
(NEPA analysis) and the Transportation
Methodology Memo (September 2021). Regional
VMT will also be provided from the regional
travel demand modeling results. Please note that
tolling is a complex project with many factors
involved, so greenhouse gas emissions and VMT
are only two of many variables in our traffic
models and decision making.

ODOT will continue to coordinate with the
Transit and Multimodal Working Group, as well
as the Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee,
to identify strategies for integrating transit and
multimodal travel into the Project.

No proposed change.

Page 6 of 12


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I205_PerformanceMeasures_Updated%2010-7-2021.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I205_PerformanceMeasures_Updated%2010-7-2021.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205_MethodMemo_Transportation.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205_MethodMemo_Transportation.pdf

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Multnomah
County

Conditional
Support

“Multnomah County supports ODOT’s efforts to build
a seismically resilient transportation system. ... At the
same time, [there are] additional steps that we think
should be taken to ensure the project can meet the
needs of the region. [We] strongly encourage ODOT to
consider the impact of the tolling project on low
income households and individuals to ensure that the
tolling system does not have a disproportionate
impact on those users of the transportation system.”

“In addition, the County offers two clarifications on
the language in the amendment proposal:

1. ODOT asserts that tolling will improve air
quality by decreasing congestion. We support
the use of traffic and air quality modeling to
confirm this, including high resolution
dispersion modeling to determine impacts
adjacent to the project.

2. The project description in the proposed
amendment narrowly defines the purpose of
the tolling as only funding the I-205
Improvements Project and managing
congestion. However, according to House Bill
3055, the project will also include mitigation
measures on adjacent, connected, or parallel
highways to address diversion and improve
safety. The tolling projects will also result in
ongoing revenue that will continue after the I-
205 Improvements Project is completed. The
project description should acknowledge the
broader funding authority.”

(See entry in the Comment Log below for more
detailed comments and the attached letter from

Thank you for this comment. Creating an
equitable toll system is a priority for the Oregon
Department of Transportation. We're working
with the Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee (EMAC) to identify and equitably
distribute the potential burdens and benefits of
tolling. Using the Oregon Toll Program Equity
Framework, we will consider the barriers that
historically excluded and underserved
communities face so that the design of the toll
projects improves access to jobs, goods, services,
and key destinations. ODOT is also directed by
HB 3055 to include an income-based tolling
solution; the logistics of such a program are still
being examined, and an income-based toll report
is due in 2022.

Over the next year, ODOT will need the help of
local and regional governments and stakeholders
to craft how equitable, income-based tolling will
work in Oregon.

Transportation modeling indicates that the daily
vehicle mile traveled (VMT) will be reduced
within the project API selected for the air quality
analysis which includes non-highway traffic.
Emissions modeling was conducted using EPA’s
Motor Vehicle Emission Simulator model
(MOVES) which uses VMT, speeds, and vehicle
mix to calculate emissions of each of FHWA's
nine priority mobile source air toxic pollutants
decreased as a result of the project. FHWA'’s
guidance for a quantitative MSAT analysis was

followed.
Page 7 of 12




Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Multnomah County in Appendix B for complete
comments.)

Dispersion modeling is done for certain projects
that require a carbon monoxide or particulate
matter hotspot analysis to meet conformity
requirements. These analyses are meant to
demonstrate that the project will not cause a new
violation or worsen an existing violation of the
National Ambient Air Quality Standards
(NAAQS). The project is located in an area that is
in attainment with all the NAAQs and therefore
dispersion modeling is not required and the
project is not expected to cause a new exceedance
of the NAAQS.

There is no approved methodology to perform
this type of dispersion modeling for mobile
source air toxics, and there are no standards to
determine if modeling results are considered an
adverse impact.

Amend the RTP to read:

“Preliminary design work is underway to widen
1-205 between OR 213 and Stafford Road and
improve the I-205/Abernethy Bridge to ensure it
remains functional after a catastrophic
earthquake. Construction financing for Phase 1A
including Abernethy Bridge and adjacent
intersections is identified in HB 3055 (2021
Session). Variable Rate Tolls priced to manage
travel demand as well as provide revenue will be
used to fund the rest of the project (Phase 1B, 1C,
1D and Phase 2).”

Regarding the project description, amend to
read: “The Project would toll all lanes of I-205 on

Page 8 of 12



Respondent

Affiliation

Opinion

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Comment Summary

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Response

or near the Abernethy Bridge and Tualatin River
Bridge. The Project’s purpose is to raise revenue
to fund construction of the I-205 Improvements
Project and manage congestion between Stafford
Road and Oregon Route 213 (OR 213). The PE
phase includes completion of environmental
analysis under the National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) and initial design for toll
infrastructure.”

Page 9 of 12



Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Clackamas
County

No
Indication

“We offer these comments and questions purely to
encourage transparency and to gain clarity of what
specifically ODOT is proposing. These comments are
not an indication of support for the proposed
amendment. First, we would like to know if ODOT
anticipates adding additional funds to the PE phase
for this project.

We also would like to know if ODOT would be
required to bring forward future RTP and MTIP
amendments for the construction phase of the I-205
Toll Project. Second, Clackamas County transportation
staff offer the following technical edits to clarify the
proposed RTP Amendment language.

e Revise language in Table 8.3 as follows:

As identified in HB 3055 (and ORS.383), Ttoll
revenue wil is expected to be needed to complete
construction of this project. A separate
Environmental Assessment for the I-205 Toll
Project began in August 2020; expected completion
in December 2022.

e C(larify that Phase 1A includes more than just
the Abernethy Bridge and update funding
language to match previous recommendation.
Also make a stronger connection to HB 3055
language in amendments to 8.3.1.8 by adding a
second paragraph that explains the I-205 Toll
Project as outlined below.

Construction financing for Phase 1A (including

Thank you for this comment. At this time ODOT
does not anticipate adding additional funds to
the PE phase for this project. Future RTP and
MTIP documents will need to include the
Construction (CN) phase for implementing
tolling infrastructure.

Amend language in Table 8.3 as follows:

“As identified in HB 3055 (and ORS.383), toll
revenue is expected to be needed to complete
construction of this project. A separate
Environmental Assessment for the 1-205 Toll
Project began in August 2020; expected
completion in December 2022.

Amend the RTP to read:

“...Construction financing for Phase 1A
(Abernethy Bridge) is identified in HB 3055 (2021
Session). Variable Rate Tolls priced to manage
travel demand as well as provide revenue are
expected to be used to fund the rest of the project
(Phase 1B, 1C, 1D, and Phase 2).”

Amend the RTP to add:

“The proposed 1-205 Toll Project would toll I-205
near the Abernethy and Tualatin River Bridges
(see figure 8.13b) to raise revenue for
construction of the planned 1-205 Improvements
Project and manage congestion between Stafford

Abernethy Bridge) is identified in HB 3055 (2021
Session). Variable Rate Tolls priced to manage
travel demand as well as provide revenue wit are
expected to be used to fund the rest of the project
(Phase 1B, 1C, 1D, and Phase 2).

Road and Oregon Route 213 to give travelers a
better and more reliable trip. Significant impacts
caused by tolling will need to be addressed as
part of this project through mitigation. More
information about the I-205 Toll Project can be

Fage 10U OT 1Z



Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

e Make a stronger connection to HB 3055
language in amendments to 8.3.1.8 by adding a
second paragraph that explains the I-205 Toll
Project as outlined below.

The proposed I-205 Toll Project would toll I-
205 near the Abernethy and Tualatin River
Bridges (see figure 8.13b) to raise revenue for

found at
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-
205-Tolling.aspx.”

Amend the project description on the RTP Project
List as follows: “The Project would toll all lanes
of I-205 on or near the Abernethy Bridge and
Tualatin River Bridge. The Project’s purpose is to

construction of the planned 1-205
Improvements Project and manage congestion

raise revenue to fund construction of the I-205
Improvements Project and manage congestion

between Stafford Road and Oregon Route 213

between Stafford Road and Oregon Route 213

to give travelers a better and more reliable
trip. Potential diversion onto local roads
caused by tolling will need to be addressed as

(OR 213). The PE phase includes completion of
environmental analysis under the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and initial

part of this project. More information about

design for toll infrastructure. The NEPA process

the 1-205 Toll Project can be found at
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-

for the I-205 Toll Project will analyze the impacts
of tolling on I-205 between Stafford Road and

205-Tolling.aspx.

e Remove the draft description on the RTP
Project List and replace it with a description
that more narrowly identifies what specifically
will be accomplished within the PE Phase of
the 1-205 tolling project. One concept could
look something like:

Conduct preliminary engineering and NEPA
review for the 1-205 Toll Project. The NEPA
process for the 1-205 Toll Project will analyze
the impacts of tolling on 1-205 between
Stafford Road and Oregon Route 213 (OR

213).”

(See entry in the Comment Log below for more
detailed comments and the attached letter from

Oregon Route 213 (OR 213).”

Page 1T of 12


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-205-Tolling.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-205-Tolling.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-205-Tolling.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-205-Tolling.aspx

Respondent

Affiliation

Opinion

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Comment Summary

Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions

Response

Clackamas County in Appendix B for complete
comments.)

Washington
County Board of
Commissioners

Support

“] am writing to express support from the Washington
County Board of Commissioners for Regional
Transportation Plan amendments for the 1-205
Improvement Project and 1-205 Toll Project. ... On
behalf of the Board, I must also add that we wish there
were other ways to fund this important project
without tolling. However, we accept that our support
for HB 2017 included a commitment to initiate tolling
in the region. We also recognize that a successful toll
program can improve travel speed and reliability on
our major throughways and must address equity,
include mitigation for diversion and include attractive
travel options to driving.

(See entry in the Comment Log below for more
detailed comments and the attached letter from
Washington County in Appendix B for complete
comments.)

Thank you for this comment. Creating an
equitable toll system is a priority for the Oregon
Department of Transportation. We're working
with the Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee (EMAC) to identify and equitably
distribute the potential burdens and benefits of
tolling.

ODOT will continue to coordinate with the
Transit and Multimodal Working Group, as well
as the Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee,
to identify strategies for integrating transit and
multimodal travel into the Project.

We recognize the importance of assessing
potential diversion impacts to local communities.
To do so, we are applying performance
measure(s) related to protecting quality of life for
local communities and will report on these
finding in an Environmental Assessment in 2022.
In the [-205 Corridor User Analysis (February
2021), we studied existing diversion patterns
along the corridor to assess how these patterns
could change with implementation of tolling. No
proposed change.

Page 12 of 12


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I205%20Corridor%20User%20Analysis%20Final.pdf

STAFF REPORT

IN CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 21-1467 FOR THE PURPOSE OF
AMENDING THE 2018 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN TO INCLUDE THE
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE OF THE I-205 TOLL PROJECT, AND TO
CLARIFY THE FINANCIAL CONNECTION OF THE 1-205 TOLL PROJECT TO THE I-205

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
Date: January 27,2022 Prepared by: Kim Ellis, Principal
Department: Planning, Development & Transportation Planner
Research
ISSUE STATEMENT

The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) is the state- and federally-required long-range
transportation plan for the Portland metropolitan area that guides planning and
investment for all forms of travel — motor vehicle, transit, biking, and walking — and the
movement of goods and freight. The plan was last updated in 2018; the next update is due
by Dec. 6, 2023, when the current plan expires.

In 2019, the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) initiated studying options for a
variable rate toll on all lanes of Interstate 205 (I-205) between Stafford Road and Oregon
Route 213 (OR-213), known as the [-205 Toll Project. Tolls would raise revenue to
complete financing for the planned 1-205 Improvements Project and manage congestion on
this section of I-205. In summer 2020, ODOT launched an education and engagement
period for the I-205 Toll Project to receive input on the draft purpose and need for the
project, the toll alternatives to be studied, and key issues for analysis as required by the
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). ODOT is now preparing to move the 1-205 Toll
Project forward in the NEPA review process. As part of this process, ODOT requested an
amendment to the 2018 RTP. The expectation is that amendments to the RTP follow the
same adoption process as RTP updates, consistent with Metro’s Public Engagement Guide
and RTP amendment procedures. The amendment process schedule is provided in
Attachment 1.

IDENTIFIED POLICY OUTCOMES
The requested amendment will:

e add the preliminary engineering phase for the [-205 Toll Project to the 2018 RTP
financially constrained project list to conduct NEPA activities needed to:
o design tolling operations to reach 30% design for the toll zone and gantry for
this segment of the I-205 corridor; and
o address key issues of concern raised about the toll project, consistent with
HB 3055 and the NEPA review process.
e clarify the financial connection of the [-205 Toll Project to the I-205 Improvement
Project in Chapter 8 of the 2018 RTP.

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467 Page 1 of 4


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-205-Tolling.aspx
https://www.i205corridor.org/
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-205-Tolling.aspx

ACTION REQUESTED
Approve Ordinance No. 21-1467.

POLICY OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION
1. Approve Ordinance No. 21-1467 as recommended.
2. Approve Ordinance No. 21-1467 with modifications.
3. Do not approve Ordinance No. 21-1467.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Ordinance No. 21-1467.

Metro staff has reviewed the information submitted by ODOT in Attachment 2 and finds
that the requested amendment to the 2018 RTP to add the preliminary engineering phase
of the I-205 Toll Project is regionally significant and appears consistent with the 2018 RTP
regional priority policy outcomes, goals, objectives and policies; statewide planning goals;
and federal fiscal constraint requirements. Furthermore, the process for public review and
consideration of the requested amendment followed Metro’s adopted Public Engagement
Guide and RTP amendment procedures. The amendment appears consistent with the 2018
RTP and related public engagement procedures for amendments to the RTP.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT AND FRAMING COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

In 2018, JPACT and the Metro Council adopted a significant update to the RTP following
three years of engagement that included more than 19,000 touch points with community
members, community and business leaders, and local, regional and state jurisdictional
partners. Reflecting the extensive engagement that shaped the plan, the 2018 RTP
established a vision and regional transportation policy direction for planning and
investment in the greater Portland transportation system. In addition to adequately
maintaining the transportation system, investments aim to improve outcomes toward
desired performance for the following priority policy outcomes:

Equity

Safety

Climate
Congestion relief

As the federally-designated metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for the Portland
metropolitan area, Metro is responsible for developing and maintaining the RTP. As the
regional government responsible for regional land use and transportation planning under
state law, Metro is also responsible for developing and maintaining a regional
transportation system plan (TSP), consistent with the Regional Framework Plan, statewide
planning goals, the Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), the Metropolitan
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Reduction Rule, the Oregon Transportation Plan (OTP), and by
extension the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP) and other state modal plans.

The Metro Council and JPACT jointly share responsibility for developing and adopting an
updated RTP every five years to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements.
Adoption or amendment of the RTP is a land use action under the statewide land use
planning program. As such, the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC) serves in an
advisory role to the Metro Council. The regional decision-making framework is shown in
Figure 1.

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467 Page 2 of 4



Figure 1. Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Decision-Making Framework

TPAC JPACT >

h 4

Metro Council

y

MTAC MPAC —»

Amendments to the RTP are considered in between scheduled updates when a sponsoring
agency requests changes to the funding, phasing, mode, function or general location of a
project in the plan. There are several general sources for RTP amendment requests,
including:

(1) ODOT requests that require an amendment to the RTP for specific projects or the
phasing of existing projects due to a funding decision by the Oregon State Legislature
or other action by the Oregon Transportation Commission;

(2) city or county requests involving transportation projects in local transportation
system plans (TSPs), area plans, concept plans or studies adopted through a public
process;

(3) transit agency requests to align transit plans or projects adopted through a public
process and the RTP; and

(4) amendments resulting from a NEPA review process, corridor refinement planning as
defined in the Oregon TPR, or other studies that involve additions or deletions to the
RTP financially constrained project list or a significant change in the mode, function or
general location of a project on the RTP financially constrained project list.

The expectation is that amendments to the RTP follow the same adoption process as RTP
updates. As described in Chapter 8 (Section 8.4) of the RTP, such amendments require
adoption by the JPACT and the Metro Council by Ordinance, accompanied by findings that
demonstrate consistency with:

e regional priority policy outcomes, goals, objectives and policies;
e statewide planning goals;
e federal fiscal constraint requirements; and

e Metro’s adopted Public Engagement Guide and RTP amendment procedures.

Attachment 1 provides a more detailed schedule of the process and timeline for
considering the requested RTP amendment and a subsequent MTIP amendment. Key dates
and milestones included:

e Oct.1toNov. 15,2021 - Metro held a 45-day public comment period. Comments
were accepted through an online comment form, email, mail, phone, and a public
hearing held by the Metro Council on Nov. 4, 2021. A report documenting all
comments received during the comment period is provided in Attachment 3.

e November 2021 to Jan. 2022 - Metro and ODOT staff reported back public
comments received to the Metro Technical Advisory Committee (MTAC), the
Transportation Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (TPAC), the Metro
Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC), JPACT and the Metro Council. The briefings
provided opportunity for discussion of the amendment and consideration of public
comments received as well as concerns raised by committee members and Councilors.

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467 Page 3 of 4


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2019/04/02/2018-RTP-Chapter-8-Moving-Forward.pdf

Concerns raised by committee members and Councilors included: the coordination
and timing of this project relative to ODOT’s Regional Mobility Pricing Project, future
opportunity for input to influence the project, and the timing of consideration of the
amendment relative to Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC) consideration of
Investment in Infrastructure and Jobs Act (IIJA) funding scenarios.

e Feb. to March 2022 - Continued discussion and consideration of final
recommendations from TPAC and MPAC, and action by JPACT and the Metro Council.

ANALYSIS/INFORMATION

Known opposition: Public comments in opposition to tolling, the I-205 Toll Project and
this proposed amendment are summarized in the public comment report provided in
Attachment 3.

Legal Antecedents:

e Ordinance No. 18-1421 (For the Purpose of Amending the 2014 Regional
Transportation Plan to Comply with Federal and State Law and Amending the
Regional Framework Plan), adopted by the Metro Council on Dec. 6, 2018.

e House Bill 3055 (2021), enacted on July 7, 2021.

e House Bill 2017 (2017), enacted on Aug. 18, 2017.

Anticipated Effects: Approval of the RTP amendment will allow the I-205 Toll Project to
continue to move forward in the NEPA review process that is underway. Projects and
programs must be in the RTP’s financially constrained system in order to be eligible for
federal and state funding, and to receive federal approvals during the NEPA review process.
If approved, the 2018 RTP financially constrained project list amendment allows a separate
amendment to the 2021-2024 Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP)
to move forward for consideration by JPACT and the Metro Council. The MTIP amendment,
if approved, programs funding for the preliminary engineering phase for the I-205 Toll
Project.

ODOT is committed to continuing public engagement on the [-205 Toll Project through
2022 (See the 1-205 Toll Project Public Involvement Plan) and to addressing key concerns
raised consistent with HB 3055 and the NEPA review process, including:

e Reducing traffic congestion and managing demand;

e Documenting the impacts of diversion of traffic onto local streets and bridges and
identifying transit and multimodal investments needed to reduce the impacts of
diversion;

¢ Improving safety;

e Meeting the state’s greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals;

e Minimizing impacts to historically and currently underrepresented and
disadvantaged communities; and

e Establishing equitable income-based toll rates to be paid by users of tollways.

The Metro Council and JPACT will continue to look for commitments from ODOT to address
these concerns as the NEPA process for the I-205 Toll Project continues.

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467 Page 4 of 4


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/metropolitan-transportation-improvement-program
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I205_Tolling_PIP_Draft%205_Clean%20%28002%29.pdf

Attachment 1 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

@ Metro

1/27/22

Coordinated Timeline for Proposed 1-205 Toll Project Amendments
September 2021 to March 2022

This document summarizes key milestones and decisions for consideration of proposed [-205
Toll Project amendments to the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and the 2021-24
Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP).

e RTP Amendment for I-205 Toll Project is in blue

e MTIP Amendment for I-205 Toll Project is in green

e Public notices and comment periods are in shaded grey
e Action items (votes) in bold*

2021 Dates

What

Sept. 16

Advance public notice of opening of public comment period for RTP Amendment
(published 15 days in advance of public comment period)

Oct. 1 DLCD Form 1 and proposed amendment submitted to DLCD via email

Oct.1to 45-day public comment period on proposed RTP amendment for I-205 Toll Project

Nov. 15 published by Metro at oreqonmetro.qov/

Oct. 1 TPAC — Introduce RTP amendment for 1-205 Toll Project

Oct. 21 JPACT — Introduce RTP amendment for I-205 Toll Project

Oct. 27 MPAC — Introduce RTP amendment for 1-205 Toll Project

Nov. 4 Metro Council (Meeting) — Introduce RTP amendment for I-205 Toll Project
Public hearing as part of public comment period/1st Read of
Ordinance No. 21-1467 on RTP amendment for I-205 Toll Project

Nov. 15 Close of 45-day public comment period on RTP amendment for I-205 Toll Project

Nov. 17 MTAC - Introduce RTP amendment for 1-205 Toll Project and discussion of public
comments and draft legislation for proposed RTP amendment

Nov. 30 to | 30-day public comment period on proposed MTIP amendment for I-205 Toll Project

Jan. 6 published by Metro

Dec. 3 TPAC — Discussion of public comments and draft legislation for proposed RTP
amendment for I-205 Toll Project
TPAC — Introduce MTIP amendment for 1-205 Toll Project

Dec. 8 MPAC — Discussion of public comments and draft legislation for proposed RTP
Amendment for I-205 Toll Project

Dec. 14 Metro Council (Work Session) — Discussion of public comments and draft
legislation for proposed RTP amendment for 1-205 Toll Project
Metro Council (Work Session) — Introduce MTIP amendment for I-205 Toll Project

Dec. 16 JPACT — Discussion of public comments and draft legislation for proposed RTP

amendment for I-205 Toll Project
JPACT — Introduce MTIP amendment for 1-205 Toll Project

* Actions are shown as proposed for discussion and consideration with actions at the discretion of each body to
approve, deny or defer

1



https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-205-Tolling.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-205-Tolling.aspx
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/regional-transportation-plan
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/metropolitan-transportation-improvement-program
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/metropolitan-transportation-improvement-program
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/news/public-notice-opportunity-comment-i-205-toll-project-amendment-regional-transportation-plan

Attachment 1 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

@ Metro

1/27/22
2022 Dates| What
Jan. 6 Close of 30-day public comment period on MTIP amendment for |-205 Toll Project
Jan. 19 MTAC — Discussion to provide feedback on proposed RTP amendment for I-205 Toll
Project for consideration by MPAC
Jan. 20 JPACT — Discussion of public comments and draft legislation for proposed RTP
amendment for 1-205 Toll Project
JPACT — Discussion on MTIP amendment for [-205 Toll Project
Jan. 26 MPAC — Discussion on RTP amendment for I-205 Toll Project
Feb. 4* TPAC - Discussion and consider action on RTP amendment for I-205 Toll Project
TPAC — Discussion and consider action on MTIP amendment for 1-205 Toll Project
Feb. 17* JPACT - Discussion and consider action on RTP amendment for I-205 Toll Project
JPACT - Discussion and consider action on MTIP amendment for 1-205 Toll
Project
Feb. 23* MPAC - Discussion and consider action on RTP amendment for 1-205 Toll Project
March 3* | Metro Council (Meeting) — Discussion or consider action on RTP amendment for

I-205 Toll Project; 2" Read of Ordinance No. 21-1467 on RTP amendment for I-205
Toll Project

Metro Council — Discussion or consider action on MTIP amendment for 1-205 Toll
Project

If approved, PAPA Adoption Notice with final action submitted to DLCD within 20 days after RTP
amendments adopted by the Metro Council; there is an opportunity for appeal period.

* Actions are shown as proposed for discussion and consideration with actions at the discretion of each body to
approve, deny or defer

2




Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

1-205 Toll Project

September 22,2021

Oregon
Department
of Transportation



1-205 Toll Project REBGATI TPl e i3 relAln PR KR ardingnce No. 21-1467

Page i
Contents
1 BACKGROUND .....uoiiitiitiniiniiniteiieniensesnessesessessessessssssssssesssessssssssssssssssssesss 1
2 REGIONAL SIGNIFICANCE DETERMINATION .....cccccevvuiiniennnecnsuensecnsneccnenes 26
3 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN CONSISTENCY.....ccocceevernvenineccnenns 27
4 FISCAL CONSTRAINT .....uoiiitinrintittiieniennennensnensssnessesssesssessssssssssesssesssesssssses 48
5 PERFORMANCE .....cooiiitiiiiiieniiniinreniniiennisnessesssessssssesssesssesssessssssssssesssesssesssssses 49
6 PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT .......ooiiiiiiiiinniinienienennnnennesssesssessssssssesssesssessssnes 54
Tables
Table 1. 1-205 Toll Project Major NEPA MileStones ..........ccccceviviviiiniiiiiniiiiiicicccccccnn 5
Table 2. Lead AGENCIES.....ccuovuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicece e 14
Table 3. Agencies and Tribes Invited to be Participating Agencies............ccccecevereririnnennene 15
Table 4. Change in Regional Daily Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) (2027) .......cccccoeveruiruenene 52
Table 5. Change in Regional Daily Vehicle Hours Traveled (VHT) (2027) ......ccccceeveuinuinnene. 52
Table 6. Change in I-205 Daily Vehicular Volumes (Relative to 2027 Baseline) .................... 52
Table 7. Change in Daily Person Trips by Mode (2027).......ccccoceverininininininiicicnccceeee 52
Table 8. Daily Percentage Change in Volume at Select I-205 Locations (2027)..........c.cc.c...... 53
Figure
Figure1.  1-205 Toll Project = DRAFT MAP........ccoiiiiiiiiiciececc e 3
Attachments

[-205 Toll Project Public Involvement Plan

I-205 Toll Project Equitable Engagement Plan

Agencies and Stakeholders Involved in the I-205 Toll Project
Oregon Transportation Commission Meeting Minutes

2018 RTP Public Engagement and Non-Discrimination Checklist

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project REBGATI TPl e i3 relAln PR KR ardingnce No. 21-1467

Page 1

1 Background

A short history about why/how the project emerged and its importance to the region.

A brief history of past actions and work that has been accomplished that has led to the
proposed amendment (purpose and need description).

In 2017, the Oregon Legislature authorized substantial funding to improve highways, transit,
biking and walking facilities, and use technology to make the state’s transportation system
work better through Oregon House Bill 2017 (HB 2017). As part of this comprehensive
transportation package, the legislature also directed the Oregon Transportation Commission
(Oregon Transportation Commission) to seek federal approval to implement value pricing (also
referred to as tolling or congestion pricing) on I-5 and I-205 in the Portland metropolitan area to
address congestion.

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) initiated the Portland Metro Area Value
Pricing Feasibility Analysis shortly after the passage of HB 2017 to:

e Explore the options available.

¢ Determine how and where value pricing could help improve congestion on I-5 or I-205
during peak travel times.

¢ Begin to understand potential benefits and impacts to travelers and adjacent communities.

ODOT convened a Policy Advisory Committee for the Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis, which
met from late 2017 through mid-2018. The Policy Advisory Committee developed a
recommendation to support the Oregon Transportation Commission’s efforts to implement
Section 120 of HB 2017, which directs it to pursue approval from the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA) to implement congestion pricing on I-5 and I-205 in the analysis area.

In December 2018, ODOT submitted an application to the FHWA. The application presented the
Oregon Transportation Commission’s application to implement freeway tolling projects, as
directed in HB 2017, and sought a response from the FHWA providing confirmation and
clarification of the following critical next steps:

e Eligibility and requirements under federal tolling programs
e Completeness of the proposed scope for additional analysis and project development

e FHWA ability to streamline required review under the National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA)

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/20180705_VP-PAC-Rec-to-OTC.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/20180705_VP-PAC-Rec-to-OTC.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/VP%20Final_FHWAApplication_Draft.pdf

1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁktéi%'ﬂm%l?s}}ar?atﬁﬁn@?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 2

The projects identified in the application were selected through the Value Pricing Feasibility
Analysis and reflect the majority recommendation of the Policy Advisory Committee. The
recommendation for tolling on both I-5 and I-205 constitutes Oregon’s proposed
implementation of freeway tolling.

FHWA responded to the application in January 2019, which kicked off the next phase of
analysis for the I-205 Toll Project.

In spring 2019, ODOT selected a consultant to begin planning for the environmental review
phase for tolling in the I-5 and I-205 corridors. In fall/winter 2019/20 initial screening of five
alternatives for the I-205 Toll Project was conducted to evaluate the performance of different toll
configurations. A summary of this analysis is posted on ODOT’s website.

In summer 2020, from August 3 to October 16, 2020, ODOT launched an education and
engagement period specifically for the I-205 Toll Project. During this time, ODOT hosted
numerous education and engagement activities to reach a broad audience. ODOT sought input
at the beginning of the environmental review process to help refine the draft purpose and need
for the Project, the toll alternatives to be studied, and key issues for analysis as required by
NEPA. (See the I-205 Toll Project Public Involvement Plan attachment.)

In August 2021, following the legislative session in Oregon, ODOT determined that toll revenue
was needed to complete construction of the [-205 Improvements Project. The governor signed
Oregon House Bill 3055 into law, which provides financing options that allow Phase 1A of the
I-205 Improvements Project (reconstruction of Abernethy Bridge plus OR 43 and OR 99E
interchanges) to be constructed beginning in spring/summer 2022. Toll funding will be needed
to complete the remaining phases of the [-205 Improvements Project (Phase 1B (OR 99E to OR
213), Phase 1C (10th Street to Sunset Bridge), Phase 1D (OR 43 to 10th Street), and Phase 2 (10th
Street to Stafford Road, including Tualatin River Bridges reconstruction); see Figure 1. Phase 1B
is tentatively planned for construction in 2023. If tolling is approved upon completion of the
environmental review process for the I-205 Toll Project, and pending development of a toll
program, tolls could be used long term to pay back loans for Phase 1A and to pay for
construction of the subsequent phases.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/19-01-08%20Oregon%20Tolling%20Letter.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/FINAL%20I-205%20Comparison%20of%20Screening%20Alternatives_wAddendum_090121.pdf
https://i205corridor.org/

1-205 Toll Project ﬁggi%“m%%l?s&@atﬁgn%gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 3

Figure 1. 1-205 Toll Project - DRAFT MAP

‘ " ” - - . ¥
Tualatin River Bridges Toll Gantry Area xﬁbemythy.pddge 'I'pll Gantry Area .
2 ] ;

Stafford

/ Abernethy Bridge

West Linn =
/ 99/
Legend 4 3 / Oregon City
1ol Gantry Area X 4
@ 0 025 05 74 A& -
| S M S T
Miles /) A\ = \}1\\\0“‘

The I-205 Toll Project Preliminary Engineering phase will include activities needed to reach 30%
design for the toll zone and gantry. The gantry designs will be developed for the Abernethy and
Tualatin River Bridges and will includes the following elements:

I-205 mainline (gantries spanning both directions of traffic).

Ramp toll zones at the NB on-ramp and SB off-ramp to and from I-205 at the OR 43
Interchange (Exit 8).

I-205 mainline (gantries spanning one direction of traffic in each direction).
These designs will include the following:
e Typical toll zone site layouts with parking accommodations.

e Gantry type and size alternate concepts with evaluation of constructability and costs for
selection by ODOT (standard Intelligent Transportation Systems sign truss with walkway,

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s&%@atﬁﬁ@?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 4

monotube with walkway, concrete vertical columns with trusses or monotube with
walkway).

e  Pre-cast concrete technical shelter design.

e Standards for lockable in-ground junction boxes and on-site, in-ground conduit.

¢ General provisions for data and power services, for electrical and generator requirements.
e HVAC standard requirements.

e Toll signage requirements and pavement markings recommendations.

e Plan for maintenance and protection of traffic during construction.

¢ General landscaping and aesthetic design requirements.

e Updated cost estimate for each standard toll zone type.

e Schedule requirements based on anticipated lead times for long-lead items and construction
times.

x] An overview of the primary purpose and secondary objectives for the project phase
being amended into the RTP and its major work elements and milestones (e.g. complete
NEPA and obtain the ROD, determine alternatives, selection of the agency preferred
alternative, complete design and PS&E package, etc.)

The Oregon state legislature, region, and ODOT identified the I-205 Improvements Project as a
priority project. The I-205 Improvements Project includes seismic bridge upgrades, adding the
missing third lane north and south, and interchange improvements. The project received NEPA
clearance in 2018; public engagement has been ongoing. In 2021, HB 3055 provided financing
tools that allow construction on the first phase (Phase 1A) of the I-205 Improvements Project to
begin in 2022, which includes replacement of the Abernethy Bridge and adjacent interchanges.
Tolls are needed to fund subsequent phases of the I-205 Improvements Project, and pending
completion of the Tolling Environmental Assessment, tolls would also be used as a payback
option for funds borrowed for Phase 1A.

The purpose of the I-205 Toll Project is to use variable-rate tolls on the I-205 Tualatin River
Bridges and Abernethy Bridge to raise revenue to complete the I-205 Improvements Project and
manage congestion. The full text of the Purpose and Need Statement can be found here.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205_PurposeAndNeed_2021-08-18.pdf

1-205 Toll Project REBEATIGPA s S8 et HRRP HriR dFdignce No. 21-1467

Page 5

Table 1 is a schedule of the major milestones for the 1-205 Toll Project.

Table 1. I-205 Toll Project Major NEPA Milestones

Major NEPA Milestone

NEPA Regional Transportation
Modeling & DTA Subarea
Modeling (2045 & 2027)

Traffic Analysis (data collection,
baseline, no-build and build)

Environmental Assessment Tech
Reports

Draft Environmental Assessment

Environmental Assessment Public
Comment Period

Environmental Assessment
Comment Response Matrix

Preferred Alternative Regional
Modeling and Traffic Analysis (as

Revised Transportation Tech
Report

Prepare Final Environmental
Assessment/FONSI

Final Environmental
Assessment/FONSI

Transportation Modeling

e Coordinate tolling modeling with agency, consultant, and Metro staff as well as the

Regional Modeling Group.

e Provide technical support to Metro in model development, calibration, validation, and

refinement.

e Support modeling work by refining tools and providing key inputs, including Regional
Travel Demand model refinements, support for Dynamic Traffic Assignment (DTA) subarea
model development, and refinement of the multi-criteria evaluation tool.

Oregon
Department
of Transportation

www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 6

Traffic Analysis
¢ Preliminary modeling to focus on addressing potential for through-trip rerouting via toll
gantry logic.

e Draft Environmental Assessment analysis with future horizons on a smaller set of
alternatives, supporting traffic and revenue projections.

e Transportation, multimodal, and traffic analysis in the Transportation Technical Report.

Environmental Assessment Technical Reports

e Air Quality e Noise

e Economics e Social Resources and Communities
¢ Energy and Greenhouse Gases e Visual Quality

¢ Environmental Justice e Cumulative Impacts

Draft Environmental Assessment

e TFocus on the evaluation of tolling impacts for the I-205 seismic retrofit and widening project
and must incorporate all construction-related impacts from the approved Documented
Categorical Exclusion (DCE) by reference.

¢ Include a notice of the intent to prepare a combined Final Environmental
Assessment/Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI).

e Technical work to serve as the technical basis and attached as appendices or incorporated as
sections.

e Additional technical analyses:

- Geology and Soils - Parks and Recreation/Section 4(f) and
- Hazardous Materials Section 6(f)
- Historic and Archaeological - Utilities
Resources - Vegetation, Wildlife, and Aquatic
- Land Use Species

-  Wetlands and Water Resources
Environmental Assessment Public Comment Period

e Draft, revised draft, and final Notice of Availability with date(s), time(s) and location(s) of
the public hearing and the dates of the Environmental Assessment comment period.

e Draft and final Environmental Assessment distribution letter with date(s), time(s) and
location(s) of the public hearing and the dates of the Environmental Assessment comment
period.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 7

¢ Open houses (serving as the draft Environmental Assessment Public Hearing[s] and an
opportunity for formal public testimony or written comment) and an online open house.

Comment Response Matrix

¢ Comments received on the published Environmental Assessment will be responded to in
summary format. Any changes to the analysis, impacts or mitigation based on comments
will be clearly identified in the revised Environmental Assessment and decision document.

Preferred Alternative Modeling and Analysis

e The final round of analysis focused on the preferred alternative identified in the draft EA.
¢ May include modeled evaluation for transit or other mitigation strategies.

e May include several model runs to refine the alternatives to address Project impacts.
Revised Transportation Technical Report
e Updated from the draft Environmental Assessment Transportation Technical Report to

address comments and new analysis identified as a result of public comments.

¢ Included as an appendix to the final Environmental Assessment.
Prepare Final Environmental Assessment

e Prepared in response to comments on the draft Environmental Assessment.
e Maximize the use of existing documentation prepared for the draft Environmental
Assessment.

Final Environmental Assessment/FONSI

e Combined final (revised) Environmental Assessment and FONSI.

e FONSI must include a description of the decision, selected alternative, alternatives
considered, criteria used to determine the selected alternative, proposed project funding,
Section 4(f) funding and mitigation commitments.

1-205 Toll Project Scope Of Work Summary

The I-205 Toll Project is scoped for work in the following areas: communications and outreach;
technical analysis and outputs; traffic and revenue, costs and net revenue, and financial
planning; I-205 Environmental Assessment Transportation Technical Report; and I-205 NEPA
documentation.

Communications and Outreach

Strategic Communications, Coordination and Public Involvement Plan

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 8

The Project will utilize Public Involvement Plan (PIP) incorporating knowledge of the Portland
Metro region and NEPA guidelines for public engagement. Elements of the PIP include:

¢ Key audiences, messages and types of communication.

e Public involvement goals, objectives and evaluation measures.

¢ Community and stakeholder demographic analysis.

¢ Environmental justice consideration strategies.

¢ Media and elected officiation coordination strategies.
Public Events and Community Outreach
Engagement activities are anticipated for the following project components:

e The purpose and need and range of alternatives.

¢ Increasing understanding of toll purpose, operations and benefits.
e The draft and final Environmental Assessment comment period.

¢ Refinement of the preferred alternative and equity strategies.

¢ Refinement of preferred alternative and equity strategies.

¢ The final Environmental Assessment/FONSI.

Materials to convey technical and complicated information will be prepared in accessible
formats and multiple languages.

A community-based outreach plan will facilitate connecting with community organizations and
participating in events across the region, including both tabling events and individual activities.
Coordination and education with community-based organizations will be ongoing.

Equity Strategy and Equity and Environmental Justice Outreach

An Equity Strategy and Environmental Justice Memorandum sets the basis for the internal work
session with the Project Team and the Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee (EMAC). The
Project team will also facilitate workshops or meetings with select equity framework-identified
groups. Equity outreach also involves bringing on community liaisons who are members of
marginalized communities in the Project area or who come from community-based
organizations that serve those marginalized communities.

Advisory Committee and Stakeholder Outreach

Transparency and informed decision-making are fundamental to the successful development of
tolling projects. The EMAC will provide input to the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC)
or the Project team on the Project equity framework, equity and mobility performance

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 9

measures, and equity and mobility strategies to improve Project outcomes. The EMAC also will
advise and support implementation of equitable engagement plans during the Project planning
process.

Outreach activities also include presentations for OTC, the Legislature, and other leadership
forums and jurisdictional briefings, such as city councils, county commissions, neighborhood
associations, business groups, community-based organizations and working groups. Project
technical analysis is supported by stakeholder engagement through the Regional Partner
Agency Staff, Community Work Sessions, the Regional Modeling Group, and the Transit and
Multimodal Work Group, among others, to provide points of input, including:

e Stated preference surveys.

e Evaluation criteria and performance measures.
e Alternatives development.

e Transit and multimodal findings.

¢ Community and Equity Mobility Strategies.

Technical Analysis and Outputs

Technical analyses focus on transit/multimodal, equity and Project alternatives, as well as
community mobility/equity strategy development.

Alternatives Analysis and Screening

Project alternatives will incorporate design options for the congestion pricing policy itself
(where, when, who, and how much to charge) as well as the technological solutions,
infrastructure requirements, legal framework and business models that represent the alternative
as deployed. Throughout the process, a no action / no pricing alternative will be evaluated. The
I-205 corridor user analysis will inform alternatives development and screening through
enhanced understanding of travel behavior and socioeconomic effects for existing and potential
users of the tolling project area. Additionally, the alternatives screening evaluation criteria and
input provided by all levels of engagement will be used to identify alternatives, document
assumptions, compare and document alternatives analyses, and perform initial screening
analysis modeling.

Alternatives Modeling

Model development and its application for Project alternatives involves calibration, validation
and refinement. The relationship between tolling on I-205 and existing transit and multimodal
transportation options will be evaluated to identify improvements to non-motorized travel
mode systems as a component of a successful tolling implementation.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s},%r?atﬁﬁn@%’ﬁ’ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 10

Equity Environmental Justice Analyses and Policy

The Project team will work with Agency, EMAC and Metro modelers to develop equity and
environmental justice draft and final evaluation criteria and performance measures for tolling
on I-205 that are aligned with Project goals and objectives related to equity and environmental
justice. The Equitable Toll Report will summarize the equity work prepared throughout the
course of the Project including:

e Equity strategy and framework developed for the Project and how these have been
implemented.

¢ Findings from equity and environmental justice outreach.

¢ Findings and mitigation measures from the equity analysis performed for the Social and
Environmental Justice Technical Reports.

Traffic and Revenue, Costs and Net Revenue, and Financial Planning

Traffic and Revenue Forecasts and Report

Annual traffic and revenue forecasts will be developed for the one or two build alternatives

carried forward in the NEPA process. The revenue estimates will be based on the weekday
modeling outputs for at least two forecast years for traffic on tolled sections I-205.

A draft and final I-205 Level 2 Traffic and Revenue Study report and slide deck will be prepared
based upon the travel demand modeling, traffic analysis, traffic and revenue forecasts, and net
revenue projections.

Cost Analysis and Net Revenue Projections

Annual operating and maintenance cost estimates will be developed for the in-lane roadway
toll system infrastructure on I-205 as well as the program-wide back-office toll collection
systems and customer service center functions for all-electronic toll collection, with costs
allocated proportionately to I-205 for alternatives that include pricing on both facilities.

Funding Strategies and Financial Planning and Support

Candidate non-toll funding sources, toll-financing options and other related funding strategies
will be analyzed and evaluated to help develop feasible financial plans for I-205 or preferred
alternatives carried forward in the NEPA process.

1-205 Environmental Assessment Transportation Technical Report

The Transportation Technical Report involves conducting traffic and multimodal forecasting
and operations analysis of the proposed alternatives. This includes revisiting the technical
foundation to document changes in travel demand and key traffic patterns, and identifying the

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 11

need for critical operational or safety enhancements to address potential congestion/mobility
and multimodal access impacts.

Data Review and Collection

The first step in documenting existing conditions will be a review of the multimodal
transportation data within the study area for other corridor planning efforts. The transportation
analysis will leverage available multimodal transportation and traffic data, including data
collected as part of the efforts, as well as other efforts to be identified in conjunction with ODOT
and their partners.

Existing and Future No Build Conditions

Once the transportation data review is complete and all data pieces have been compiled, the
existing conditions analysis will be initiated, including traffic conditions to gauge current levels
of delay during critical periods of the day (e.g., AM or PM peak period).

Build Alternatives Analysis

Future transportation access and mobility reflecting up to three build alternatives will be
analyzed for the I-205 Toll Project in comparison to the future No Build alternative. Since the
build alternatives will generally include tolling or capacity improvements (adding one or more
travel lanes plus other off-freeway improvement strategies, transit service enhancements or
multimodal safety projects), traffic volume projections must be developed for each alternative.

I-205 Draft and Final Environmental Assessment Transportation Technical Reports

To document the transportation analysis approach, analysis and findings, a technical report will
capture the analysis assumptions, approach, data, and alternatives assessment outcomes. The I-
205 draft Environmental Assessment Transportation Technical Report will be updated to
address comments and new analysis identified as a result of public comments. The revised
technical report will be included as appendix to the final Environmental Assessment.

1-205 NEPA Documentation

The NEPA documentation is needed to inform and document a federal decision on tolling on I-
205 and this Environmental Assessment will build on the I-205: Stafford Road to OR 213 DCE.
The construction impacts of widening I-205 and reconstruction of the Abernethy Bridge have
received environmental clearance under the DCE; therefore, the NEPA process conducted
under this task will only analyze those additional impacts that result from the tolling action.
Resources analyzed in technical reports include:

e Air Quality e Energy and Greenhouse Gases

e FEconomics e Environmental Justice

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 12
¢ Noise e Visual Quality
e Social Resources and Communities e Cumulative Impact

I-205 NEPA Early Public Engagement

A draft and final agenda and packet of materials will be prepared for an agency coordination
meeting with participating agencies. The consultant must attend and facilitate the participating
agency coordination meeting with ODOT staff, as determined by the Agency.

I-205 Draft Environmental Assessment Technical Reports and Memoranda

The level of analysis will be “right-sized” for each resource as guided by the ODOT
Environmental Impact Statement Template (2010). Stand-alone technical reports will be
prepared for resources with more extensive potential impacts anticipated or for which more in-
depth analysis is required as determined by ODOT and the FHWA.

I-205 Draft Environmental Assessment

A draft Environmental Assessment will be prepared in compliance with ODOT and FHWA
guidance. The technical work will serve as the technical basis for the draft EA and will be
attached as appendices or incorporated as sections of the draft Environmental Assessment
document.

I-205 Final Environmental Assessment/FONSI

A combined final Environmental Assessment (revised Environmental Assessment) and FONSI
will be prepared. It is assumed that a combined final Environmental Assessment/FONSI can be
prepared for the Project. The final Environmental Assessment will be prepared in response to
comments on the draft Environmental Assessment.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s&%@atﬁﬁ@?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 13

Include a short description of any major project challenges expected to be addressed
by the work elements and milestones.

There have been and will continue to be several challenges for the I-205 Toll Project. The project
conducted an engagement evaluation survey following the summer 2020 engagement to learn

how to improve. A summary of findings is posted online.
Some of the major challenges include:

e The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic — ODOT had to quickly adapt outreach and engagement
from in-person to virtual. The tools continue to be refined to support engagement.

e This will be the first toll project in Oregon. There is a lack of understanding around
modern/electronic tolling and the benefits of tolling.

e ODOT has formed an Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee and is the first toll program
that is centering equity at this level during the planning and environmental review phase.
This new approach reflects ODOT’s commitment to consider the following;:

- Persons experiencing low income who could be negatively affected financially
- Availability of transportation options
- Concern about diversion impacts to adjacent neighborhoods

- Frustration that roads have already been paid for; lack of understanding about the
current transportation funding environment

e Anticipated Timeline: 2020 — 2024. Initial I-205 Toll Project was identified at the end of the
Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis in 2018. In summer 2020, the I-205 Toll Project officially
initiated the NEPA process. The NEPA process is scheduled to be completed by quarter 4 of
2022. Starting in 2022 through 2024, ODOT will be developing toll technology and customer
service back-office operations. During this time, the Oregon Transportation Commission
will be undergoing a process to set toll rates. The earliest the I-205 Toll Project could begin
to collect tolls would be in late 2024.

A short description if there are other agencies or stakeholders involved in the project
and their basic roles and responsibilities.

There are many agencies and stakeholders involved in the I-205 Toll Project. Below is a list of
the agencies that were invited to formally participate in the environmental review process.
Some agencies who declined participating agency status are involved in other ways on the 1-205
Toll Project. Many stakeholders participate on the Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee,
Regional Partner Agency Staff monthly meetings, Regional Modeling Group meetings, and the
Transit and Multimodal Work Group meetings. The rosters of these groups are attached.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205Toll_EngagementSummary_Summer-Fall2020_Engagement_Evaluation_Memo_Final.pdf

1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%'?s&a@atﬁﬁnﬁ%’& Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 14

Federal regulations (23 USC 139) require that opportunities be provided for federal, state, and
local agencies that have jurisdiction by law or a special interest in the project to formally
participate in the project’s environmental review process. Three categories of agencies are
involved:

e Lead - FHWA is the lead federal agency for NEPA compliance on the 1-205 Toll Project.
Serving as a joint lead agency with FHWA, ODOT will share in the responsibility to prepare
the NEPA document.

e Cooperating — A cooperating agency is any federal agency, other than a lead agency, that
has jurisdiction by law or special expertise with respect to any environmental impact
involved in a proposed project or project alternative. No cooperating agencies have been
identified for the I-205 Toll Project.

e Participating — Participating agencies that are not cooperating agencies are those having a
specific interest in the I-205 Toll Project. Within this Coordination Plan, the term
“participating agencies” includes Tribes with an interest in the I-205 Toll Project. These
groups also to participate in the development of the Environmental Assessment.

Table 2. Lead Agencies

Agency Responsibilities

Federal Highway e Manage 23 USC 139 process; prepare Environmental Assessment;

Administration (FHWA) provide opportunity for public, participating and cooperating agency
involvement

Oregon Department of e Manage 23 USC 139 process; prepare Environmental Assessment;

Transportation (ODOT) provide opportunity for public, participating and cooperating agency
involvement

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁggi%“m%%l?s&@atagnﬁﬁgﬁ Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 15

Table 3. Agencies and Tribes Invited to be Participating Agencies

Responsibilities Status
Federal
National Marine |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Fisheries Service comments. response
(NMFS) e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.
e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: Water quality and
species protected under the Endangered Species Act.
u.s. e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Declined
Environmental comments.
Protection e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
Agency (US EPA) potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.
e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: environmental or
socioeconomic impacts.
U.S. Fish and e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Wildlife Service comments. response
(USFWS) e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.
e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: water quality and
species protected under the Endangered Species Act.
Tribes
Confederated e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Declined
Tribes of the comments.
Grand Ronde ¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
Community of potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
Oregon unresolved issues.
e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: archaeology, history,
and tribal interests.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁggi%“m%%l?s&@atagnﬁﬁgﬁ Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 16

Responsibilities ‘ Status

Confederated Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Tribes of Siletz comments. response
Indians Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s

potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on

unresolved issues.

Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;

and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the

special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: archaeology, history,

and tribal interests.
Confederated Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Tribes of the comments. response
Umatilla Indian Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
Reservation potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on

unresolved issues.

Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;

and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the

special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: archaeology, history,

and tribal interests.
Confederated Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Tribes of the comments. response
Warm Springs Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
Reservation of potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
Oregon unresolved issues.

Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;

and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the

special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: archaeology, history,

and tribal interests.
Confederated Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Tribes and Bands comments. response
of the Yakama Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
Nation

potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: archaeology, history,
and tribal interests.

Oregon
Department
of Transportation

www.OregonTolling.org

September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂgi‘%%?sﬁ‘a@atﬁﬁﬁﬁ?& Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 17

Responsibilities ‘ Status
Cowlitz Indian |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Tribe comments response

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: archaeology, history,
and tribal interests.

Nez Perce Tribe |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
comments. response

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: archaeology, history,
and tribal interests.

State
Oregon e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Department of comments.

Environmental e Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s

Quality (DEQ) potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: environmental impacts.

Oregon e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Department of comments. response
Fish and Wildlife |e  Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s

(ODFW) potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on

unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: water quality, fish and
wildlife species.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁggi%“m%%l?s&@atagnﬁﬁgﬁ Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 18

Responsibilities ‘ Status
Oregon e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Department of comments. response
Land e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
Conservation and potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
Development unresolved issues.
(DLCD)

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: land use, statewide
land use goals.

Oregon e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No

Department of comments. response

Energy (ODOE) |e Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: energy.

Oregon e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Declined

Department of comments.

State Lands (DSL) | Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: wetlands and
waterways, state-owned lands.

Oregon State e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Historic comments.

Preservation e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s

Office (SHPO) potential impacts and provide timely input on unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: Historic Resources,
Archaeological Resources, and Historic Preservation Act Section 106
compliance.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂgi‘%%?sﬁ‘a@atﬁﬁﬁﬁ?& Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 19

Responsibilities ‘ Status
Oregon Tourism |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Commission comments. response

(Travel Oregon) |e Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: tourism economics.

Washington State |[¢  Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted

Department of comments.

Transportation e  Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s

(WSDOT) potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency: transportation and
transportation planning.

Regional

C-TRAN e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency.

Metro e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁggi%“m%%l?s&@atagnﬁﬁgﬁ Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 20

Responsibilities ‘ Status

Port of Portland |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency.

Port of e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted

Vancouver comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency.

Southwest e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Washington comments.

Regional ¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s

Transportation potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on

Council (RTC) unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency.

TriMet e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies for the following technical topics based on the
special expertise or jurisdiction of the agency.

Local
Clackamas ¢ Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
County comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂgi‘%%?sﬁ‘a@atﬁﬁﬁﬁ?& Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 21

Responsibilities ‘ Status

Clark County e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
Marion County |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
comments. response

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
Multnomah e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
County comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
Washington e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
County comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of Camas ¢ Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
comments. response

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂgi‘%%?sﬁ‘a@atﬁﬁﬁﬁ?& Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 22

Responsibilities ‘ Status
City of Canby e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
comments. response

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of Dutham |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
comments. response

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

City of Gladstone ¢ Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

City of Gresham |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of Happy ¢ Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Valley comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂgi‘%%?sﬁ‘a@atﬁﬁﬁﬁ?& Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 23

Responsibilities ‘ Status
City of Johnson |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
City comments. response

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of Lake e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Oswego comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of King City |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
comments. response

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of Maywood |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Park comments. response

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of ¢ Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Milwaukie comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂgi‘%%?sﬁ‘a@atﬁﬁﬁﬁ?& Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 24

Responsibilities ‘ Status

City of Oregon |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted

City comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

City of Portland |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Rivergrove comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of Sherwood |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
comments. response

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of Tigard ¢ Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
comments. response

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂgi‘%%?sﬁ‘a@atﬁﬁﬁﬁ?& Erﬁ%nqmé%@“ce No. 21-1467

Page 25

Responsibilities ‘ Status

City of Tualatin |e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Vancouver comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of e Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide No
Washougal comments. response

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

City of West Linn ¢ Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
comments.

e Identify any issues of concern regarding the I-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of

the agency.
City of ¢ Review Environmental Assessment for sufficiency and provide Accepted
Wilsonville comments.

¢ Identify any issues of concern regarding the 1-205 Toll Project’s
potential environmental impacts and provide timely input on
unresolved issues.

e Provide comments on the purpose and need; range of alternatives;
and methodologies based on the special expertise or jurisdiction of
the agency.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project REBEATIGPA s S8 et HRRP HriR dFdignce No. 21-1467

Page 26

2 Regional Significance Determination

X] The transportation project is located on a facility designated in one or more of the RTP
network maps.

Within the 2018 RTP, I-205 is designated:

e Throughway on the regional motor vehicle network map (Figure 3.13)

e Frequent bus and future high-capacity transit on the regional transit network map (Figure
3.16)

¢ Main roadway route on the regional freight network map (Figure 3.21)

x] The transportation investment requires permission or approval(s) from the U.S.
Department of Transportation or project level NEPA review.

The I-205 Toll Project is currently in a project-level NEPA review, currently classified as an
Environmental Assessment, which is anticipated to be completed in 2022.

x] Other information for Metro staff to consider (please describe):

This is the first toll project in Oregon and will be foundational to providing a revenue stream to
fund highway and multimodal congestion relief projects in the corridor, including funds
toward the construction of the I-205 Implementation Project. Variable-rate tolls will help
manage travel demand, resulting in reduced traffic congestion and benefiting those who pay
the toll with a faster, more reliable trip.

FHWA has requested this RTP update, to clarify the financial connection between the 1-205
Improvements Project and the I-205 Tolling Project. In addition, FHWA requires NEPA analysis
to be completed under the preliminary engineering phase.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%l?s&%@atﬁﬁﬁ:‘?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 27

3 Regional Transportation Plan Consistency

Identify the RTP Chapter 2 regional goals and objectives being addressed by this
transportation investment — and provide a brief description of how.]

GOAL 1: Vibrant Communities

The greater Portland region is a great and affordable place to live, work and play where people can easily
and safely reach jobs, schools, shopping, services, and recreational opportunities from their home by
walking, biking, transit, shared trip or driving.

Objective 1.4 Access to Community Places1 — Increase the number and variety of community places
that households, especially households in historically marginalized communities, can reach within a
reasonable travel time for all modes of travel.

Response:

The 1-205 Toll Project performance measures will specifically measure access from households
in our Equity Framework-identified communities, which includes and expands upon Metro’s
equity definition of historically marginalized communities, to jobs, parks, and social resources
(health services, community centers, grocery stories, schools, places of worship, etc.). The goal
tied to these performance measures is to “provide benefits for historically and currently
underserved communities.”

GOAL 2: Shared Prosperity
People have access to jobs, goods and services and businesses have access to workers, goods and markets in
a diverse, inclusive, innovative, sustainable and strong economy that equitably benefits all the people and
businesses of the greater Portland region.
Objective 2.1 Connected Region — Build an integrated system of throughways, arterial streets, freight
routes and intermodal facilities, transit services and bicycle and pedestrian facilities, with efficient
connections between modes that provide access to jobs, markets and community places within and
beyond the region.

Objective 2.2 Access to Industry and Freight Intermodal Facilities — Increase access to industry and
freight intermodal facilities by a reliable and seamless freight transportation system that includes air

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 28

cargo, pipeline, trucking, rail, and marine services to facilitate efficient and competitive shipping
choices for goods movement in, to and from the region.

Response:
The I-205 Toll Project Purpose and Need Statement specifically identifies the following goals:

e Support safety, regardless of mode of transportation.
e Support multimodal transportation choices.

e Support interoperability with other toll systems.

e Support regional economic growth.

I-205 Toll Project performance measures go into greater detail about how the analysis on
impacts to bicycle and transit is being done with a similar rigor to that for automobiles and
freight movement. In coordination with Metro staff, we are developing a travel demand model
that extends out of the Metro Urban Growth Boundary to understand impacts on areas within
and beyond the region. Our performance measures also call out the specific regional and local
impacts to movement of freight and commercial transportation.

GOAL 3: Transportation Choices
People throughout the region have safe, convenient, healthy and affordable options that connect them to
jobs, school, services, and community places, support active living and reduce transportation-related
pollution.
Objective 3.1 Travel Choices — Plan communities and design and manage the transportation system
to increase the proportion of trips made by walking, bicycling, shared rides and use of transit, and
reduce vehicle miles traveled.

Objective 3.3 Access to Transit — Increase household and job access to current and planned frequent
transit service.

Response:
The I-205 Toll Project Purpose and Need Statement specifically identifies the following goals:

e Support safety, regardless of mode of transportation.
e Support multimodal transportation choices.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s},%r?atﬁﬁn@%’ﬁ’ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 29

¢ Maximize interoperability with other transportation systems.

I-205 Toll Project performance measures go into greater detail about how the analysis on
impacts to bicycle and transit is being done with a similar rigor to that for automobiles and
freight movement.

Through the work of our Transit Multimodal Work Group, which comprises representatives
from most of the region’s transit providers, we have been discussing how the fare and
technology system between tolling and transit can be integrated and seamlessly interoperable
for the customer.

Through the work of our Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee, we have been providing
research on how tolling has been coordinated with transit and multimodal transportation
investments from around the United States and the world. Their work in communicating
preferred policy and strategies for ODOT and the Oregon Transportation Commission will help
inform and further the conversation for commitments to address transit and multimodal
transportation needs in developing the I-205 Toll Project and the Oregon Toll Program, which
has statewide impacts.

GOAL 4: Reliability and Efficiency

The transportation system is managed and optimized to ease congestion, and people and businesses are

able to safely, reliably and efficiently reach their destinations by a variety of travel options.
Objective 4.1 Regional Mobility — Maintain reasonable person-trip and freight mobility and reliable
travel times for all modes in the region’s mobility corridors, consistent with the designated modal
functions of each facility and planned transit service within the corridor.

Objective 4.2 Travel Management — Increase the use of real-time data and decision-making systems
to actively manage transit, freight, arterial and throughway corridors.

Objective 4.5 Demand Management — Increase the number of households and businesses with access
to outreach, education, incentives and other tools that increase shared trips and use of travel options.

Objective 4.6 Pricing — Expand the use of pricing strategies to manage vehicle congestion and
encourage shared trips and use of transit.

Response:
The I-205 Toll Project Purpose and Need Statement specifically identifies the following goals:

e Support safety, regardless of mode of transportation.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 30

e Support multimodal transportation choices.
e Support interoperability with other toll systems.
e Support regional economic growth.

1-205 Toll Project performance measures go into greater detail about how the analysis on
impacts to bicycle and transit is being done with a similar rigor to that for automobiles and
freight movement. Person throughput in the corridor is a specific measure. ODOT is
collaborating with Metro on the regional travel demand model, which includes all of the
transportation and transit assumptions in the fiscally constrained Regional Transportation Plan
project list, to inform the impacts analysis.

After the I-205 Toll Project completes the Environmental Assessment, a toll-rate setting process
will begin. This process will identify the real-time data and decision-making process for future
adjustments to the toll rate schedule. Based on the modeling data and feedback in the
environmental review process, ODOT will propose a variable rate, and set the schedule for
congestion pricing on the I-205 Toll Project that is intended to manage vehicle congestion,
encourage shared trips, and increase transit use.

Through the work of our Transit Multimodal Work Group, which comprises representatives
from most of the region’s transit providers and Transportation Management Agencies, we have
been discussing how to increase the number of households and businesses with access to
outreach, education, incentives and other tools that increase shared trips and use of travel
options.

GOAL 5: Safety and Security
People’s lives are saved, crashes are avoided and people and goods are safe and secure when traveling in
the region.
Objective 5.1 Transportation Safety — Eliminate fatal and severe injury crashes for all modes of
travel.

Objective 5.2 Transportation Security — Reduce the vulnerability of the public and critical passenger
and freight transportation infrastructure to crime and terrorism.

Objective 5.3 Preparedness and Resiliency — Reduce the vulnerability of regional transportation
infrastructure to natural disasters, climate change and hazardous incidents.

Response:
The I-205 Toll Project Purpose and Need Statement specifically identifies the following goals:

e Limit additional traffic diversion from tolls on I-205 to adjacent roads and neighborhoods.

e Support safety, regardless of mode of transportation.

e Contribute to regional improvements in air quality and support the State’s climate-change
efforts.

e Support multimodal transportation choices.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s},%r?atﬁﬁn@%’ﬁ’ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 31

I-205 Toll Project performance measures go into greater detail about how we are measuring the
impacts to safety for all modes of travel on the highway and roadways within the Area of
Potential Impact. Additionally, through the review of performance measures with our Equity
and Mobility Advisory Committee, we revised and updated our performance measures t0
understand impacts to neighborhood air quality, heat islands, and stress on the bike/walk system
(e.g., using Level of Traffic Stress as a measure).

As the I-205 Toll Project is needed to fully deliver the I-205 Improvements Project, the seismic
upgrade of the Abernathy Bridge and Tualatin River Bridges will provide an essential
enhancement to the region’s and state’s infrastructure. This route is on crucial freight and
emergency response route.

Additional bridges will either be upgraded or replaced to accommodate widening and
withstand a major earthquake at the following locations over I-205:

o  West A Street

e Sunset Avenue

e Tualatin River

e Borland Road

¢  Woodbine Road

e Main Street

e 10th Street

¢ Blankenship Road

GOAL 6: Healthy Environment

The greater Portland region’s biological, water, historic and cultural resources are protected and
preserved.

Objective 6.5: Habitat Connectivity — Improve wildlife and habitat connectivity in transportation
planning and design to avoid, minimize and mitigate barriers resulting from new and existing
transportation infrastructure.

Response
The 1-205 Toll Project performance measures will measure and avoid, minimize, or mitigate
barriers through design to biological, water, historic and cultural resources.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 32

GOAL 7: Healthy People

People enjoy safe, comfortable and convenient travel options that support active living and increased
physical activity, and transportation-related pollution that negatively impacts public health are
minimized.

Objective 7.2 Clean Air — Reduce transportation-related air pollutants, including criteria pollutants
and air toxics emissions.

Objective 7.3 Other Pollution Impacts — Minimize air, water, noise, light and other transportation-
related pollution health impacts.

Response
The I-205 Toll Project Purpose and Need Statement specifically identifies the following goals or
objectives:

¢ Contribute to regional improvements in air quality and support the State’s climate-change
efforts.

e Support equitable and reliable access to health promoting activities (e.g., parks, trails,
recreation areas) and health care clinics and facilities.

e Support multimodal transportation choices.

1-205 Toll Project performance measures go into greater detail about how the analysis will help
analyze impacts to air pollutants, emissions, and minimize impacts to air, water, and noise, so
that we can avoid, minimize, or mitigate.

Through the review of performance measures with our Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee, we revised and updated our performance measures to understand impacts to
neighborhood air quality, heat islands, and stress on the bike/walk system (e.g., using Level of
Traffic Stress as a measure).

GOAL 8: Climate Leadership

The health and prosperity of people living in the greater Portland region are improved and the impacts of

climate change are minimized as a result of reducing transportation-related greenhouse gas emissions.
Objective 8.1 Climate Smart Strategy Implementation — Implement policies, investments and actions
identified in the adopted Climate Smart Strategy, including coordinating land use and
transportation; making transit convenient, frequent, accessible and affordable; making biking and
walking safe and convenient; and managing parking and travel demand.

Objective 8.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction — Meet adopted targets for reducing
transportation-related greenhouse gas emissions.

Objective 8.3 Vehicle Miles Traveled — Reduce vehicle miles traveled per capita.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 33

Objective 8.5 Energy Conservation - Reduce transportation-related consumption of energy and
reliance on sources of energy derived from petroleum and gasoline.

Response
The I-205 Toll Project Purpose and Need Statement specifically identifies the following goals or
objectives:

¢ Contribute to regional improvements in air quality and support the State’s climate-change
efforts.

e Support management of congestion and travel demand.

1-205 Toll Project performance measures go into greater detail about how the analysis will help
analyze and reduce impacts to energy use, vehicle miles traveled, and greenhouse gas
emissions.

Additionally, the I-205 Toll Project performance measures go into greater detail about how the
analysis on impacts to bicycle and transit is being done with a similar rigor to that for
automobiles and freight movement.

Through the work of our Transit Multimodal Work Group, which comprises representatives
from mostly all of the region’s transit providers, we have been discussing how the fare and
technology system between tolling and transit can be integrated and seamlessly interoperable
for the customer.

Through the work of our Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee, we have been providing
research on how tolling has been coordinated with transit and multimodal transportation
investments from around the United States and the world. Their work in communicating
preferred policy and strategies for ODOT and the Oregon Transportation Commission will help
inform and further the conversation for commitments to address transit and multimodal
transportation needs in developing the 1-205 Toll Project and the Oregon Toll Program, which
has statewide impacts.

GOAL 9: Equitable Transportation
The transportation-related disparities and barriers experienced by historically marginalized communities,
particularly communities of color, are eliminated.
Objective 9.1 Transportation Equity — Eliminate disparities related to access, safety, affordability and
health outcomes experienced by people of color and other historically marginalized communities.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 34

Objective 9.2 Barrier Free Transportation — Eliminate barriers that people of color, low income
people, youth, older adults, people with disabilities and other historically marginalized communities
face to meeting their travel needs.

Response

The I-205 Toll Project Purpose and Need Statement specifically identifies the goal of provide
benefits for historically and currently excluded and underserved communities. How this would
be accomplished is further defined in the I-205 Toll Project objectives and performance
measures for this goal, as well as the Oregon Toll Program’s Equity Framework. The Equity
Framework is a document that was developed in coordination between ODOT and the Equity
and Mobility Advisory Committee. Key elements of this document include the following:

e Articulation of a trauma-informed approach.

e A more iterative step-by-step process that is changing the way ODOT conducts the
environmental review process.

e Definition for equity groups that goes beyond what is traditionally required by
Environmental Justice analysis.

e Pushing ODOT to commit to actions that advance equity, not just mitigate impact.

e Recognizing ODOT’s historical and current role in furthering inequality.

Building upon the work of the Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis, the Oregon Transportation
Commission has directed ODOT and the Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee to develop
options that address equity in tolling by increased transit and transportation options,
addressing impacts of diversion on neighborhood health and safety, and impacts to
affordability. Additionally, through the Oregon Legislature, ODOT will be required to report
back on an equitable, income-based toll rate by September 2022.

GOAL 10: Fiscal Stewardship.
Regional transportation planning and investment decisions provide the best return on public
investments.

Objective 10.2 Sustainable Funding — Develop new revenue sources to prepare for increased demand
for travel on the transportation system as our region grows.

Response

The quality of our transportation infrastructure and availability of funds are not keeping pace
with population and jobs growth in our region. The federal gas tax that funds transportation
projects has not increased since 1993, and Oregon state transportation funds have been
primarily dedicated to maintaining aging infrastructure. Allowing the system to continue on its

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 35

current trajectory will result in a severely diminished economy, reduce quality of life, and
deepen current inequities.

ODOT’s Urban Mobility Office is charged with advancing ODOT’s mission to comprehensively
address some of the region’s most pressing transportation challenges, including equity, climate
change, safety, congestion, and reliable funding. The Urban Mobility Office is working on a
plan to manage congestion for decades to come through implementation of congestion pricing,
targeted elimination of highway bottlenecks, and strategic multimodal investments across the
transportation network, in close coordination with partner agency efforts. The Oregon Toll
Program is foundational to delivering this strategy. Tolling can manage congestion through
variable-rate tolls, while also providing revenue for strategic transportation improvements.
Together, the investments and strategies will provide people with faster and more efficient
travel using the transportation mode of their choice. The I-205 Toll Project is the first toll project
in the metropolitan region and can be the beginning of the larger Oregon Toll Program
implementation.

The I-205 Toll Project will implement tolls in the vicinity of the Abernethy Bridge and Tualatin
River Bridges in Clackamas County to fund the I-205 Improvements Project. As considered, tolls
would help fund construction of the planned [-205 Improvements Project while giving travelers
a better and more reliable trip. The I-205 Toll Project will also fund equity and mobility
strategies that contribute to a more equitable toll project. Toll collection can continue in
perpetuity, after the debt commitment for construction of the I-205 Improvements Project is
paid. This ongoing revenue source can continue to pay for transportation investments into the
future.

GOAL 11: Transparency and Accountability

Regional transportation decisions are open and transparent and distribute the benefits and burdens of our

investments in an equitable manner.
Objective 11.1 Meaningful Public and Stakeholder Engagement — Engage more and a wider diversity
people in providing input at all levels of decision-making for developing and implementing the plan,
particularly people of color, English language learners, people with low income and other historically
marginalized communities.

Objective 11.2 Performance-Based Planning — Make transportation investment decisions using a
performance-based planning approach that is aligned with the RTP goals and supported by
meaningful public engagement, multimodal data and analysis.

Objective 11.3 Coordination and Cooperation — Improve coordination and cooperation among the
owners and operators of the region’s transportation system.

Response

ODOT is employing many strategies to ensure engagement and transparency around decisions
and the decision-making process. All of the engagement plans provide the various strategies we
are employing to communicate information. A summary of the early project engagement for the

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%gn?s},%r?atﬁﬁnﬁﬁ&? Erﬁ%n(ah?é’ﬂ?“ce No. 21-1467

Page 36

Purpose and Need Statement, alternatives and goals and objectives can be found in the I-205
Engagement Summary.

Additionally, the Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee developed _the Equity Framework
that guides the entirety of this project, including the technical analysis and the public
engagement strategies. The goals of the toll projects' equity framework are to:

e Gain better outcomes for communities who have been historically and are currently

underrepresented and underserved by transportation projects

e Be transparent, inclusive and intentional when engaging communities in solutions

In addition, the I-205 Toll Project conducted an initial demographic assessment, based on a
review of US Census Bureau and American Community Survey data, for public engagement to
identify people experiencing low income and other historically and currently excluded or
underserved communities. The following findings and actions resulted from the demographic
analysis:

e For the I-205 project area corridor, specifically, project engagement should focus on reaching
seniors, people experiencing low income, and people with disabilities at the northern edge
of the project area. Additionally, the I-205 project area corridors contain linguistically
isolated households that speak Spanish and Asian languages, including Chinese.

e Maps for the demographic analysis were developed and provided to the Equity and
Mobility Advisory Committee for their recommendation process.

e Early traffic results combined with census tract analysis of people experiencing low incomes
has led to planning focused engagement in areas where traffic impacts could affect
historically and currently excluded or underserved communities, particularly Canby and
Gladstone. This work is ongoing.

A more rigorous demographic analysis at the census tract level is ongoing to support
Environmental Assessment development.

Identify the RTP investment priorities being addressed by this transportation
investment — improving safety, advancing equity, reducing greenhouse gas emissions
and/or managing congestion — and provide a brief description of how.

THE CHALLENGE

Congestion in the Portland metropolitan area has steadily increased in the past decade, with
regional growth trends showing that these increases are likely to be sustained and expanded for
the foreseeable future. The impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in reduced traffic on the
transportation system during the past year, but we are experiencing traffic levels return to near
pre-pandemic levels on many regional roadways. May 2021 traffic volumes on the region’s
freeway network approached 92% of pre-pandemic levels.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205_Engagement%20Summary_Final_508.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205_Engagement%20Summary_Final_508.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/Toll_Projects_Equity_Framework_with_AppendixA.pdf
https://portland.pbid.com/ODOTCongestionPricing/Task2/2.01%20Strategic%20Communications%2C%20Coordination%2C%20and%20PIP/Demographic%20Analysis/CP_DemographicAnalysis_FINAL_DRAFT_081119_toODOT.pdf?Web=1
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/ODOT_I-205_Toll_Projects_Factsheet_ChineseTraditional.pdf

1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%rﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 37

Significant population and employment growth in the region are straining the region’s
roadways. The population growth trajectory in the Portland metropolitan area is anticipated to
accelerate in the coming decades, with a 23% population growth from 2.5 million to over

3 million residents between 2018 and 2040, followed by a 43% increase to 3.5 million residents
by 2060.! Job growth in greater Portland continues to outpace that of the United States average,
with job growth in Portland occurring at an average annual rate of 2% in 2019, which was
greater than the nationwide average of 1.6%.>

ODOT has observed severe congestion throughout the region’s freeway network. In 2019,
evening peak travel times on the most congested portions of I-5 and I-205 approached three
times that of the “freeflow” duration without congestion. Sections of I-5 and I-205 with older
designs, sudden lane reductions or on-ramps with significant demand have resulted in these
segments operating as “bottlenecks,” with average travel times falling below 75% of freeflow
speed (45 miles per hour). While the daily economic impact of delayed vehicles on regional
freeways in 2019 is $1.2 million, congestion also spurs increased air pollution and collisions.

The quality of our transportation infrastructure and availability of funds are not keeping pace
with population and jobs growth in our region. The federal gas tax that funds transportation
projects has not increased since 1993, and Oregon state transportation funds have been
primarily dedicated to maintaining aging infrastructure. Much of the region’s infrastructure is
at risk of failing in a significant earthquake and needs updating. Transportation emissions are
Oregon’s largest single source of greenhouse gas emissions, and our transportation system
contributes to inequities experienced by historically and currently underrepresented and
underserved communities.

Allowing the system to continue on its current trajectory will deepen current inequities,
severely diminish the economy, reduce quality of life, and result in increased greenhouse gas
emissions.

A region cannot build its way out of congestion. Countless locations across the world have tried
and failed to do so. Oregon is rightly proud of our investments in multimodal infrastructure.
We know that highways are only one part of a thriving transportation network.

OUR CHARGE

ODOT’s Urban Mobility Office is charged with advancing ODOT’s mission to comprehensively
address some of the region’s most pressing transportation challenges, including equity, climate
change, safety, congestion, and reliable funding. The Urban Mobility Office is working on a
plan to manage congestion for decades to come through implementation of congestion pricing,

1 Census Reporter. 2018. Accessed June 17, 2021. https://censusreporter.org/profiles/16000U54159000-

portland-or/.
2 Portland Business Alliance. 2020. Value of Jobs State of the Economy. Accessed March 15, 2021.

https://portlandalliance.com/assets/pdfs/economic-reports/2020-VO]-State-of-Economvy-WEB.pdf.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 38

targeted elimination of highway bottlenecks, and strategic multimodal investments across the
transportation network.

The Oregon Toll Program is foundational to delivering this strategy. Tolling can manage
congestion through variable-rate tolls, while also providing revenue for strategic transportation
improvements. Together, the investments and strategies will provide people with faster and
more efficient travel using the transportation mode of their choice. The I-205 Toll Project is the
first toll project in the metropolitan region and can be the beginning of the larger toll program
implementation.

¢ Advancing equity
- Established Equity Framework and Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee, which
deepens relationships and partnerships with historically and currently
underrepresented and underserved communities.

- The Equity Framework is changing the way ODOT would normally do the
environmental review process to one that is more transparent and iterative.

- The Equity Framework is pushing ODOT to commit to actions that advance equity, not
just mitigate impact. For example, the I-205 Toll Project will evaluate strategic
investments to advance equity for transit and multimodal transportation options,
neighborhood health and safety, and affordability

- Tolling is one funding tool that can more accurately reflect the true cost of those
contributing to peak-hour congestion and benefit low-income drivers who value a
reliable trip and easier access to more jobs.

- Congestion pricing coupled with improvements around bottlenecks provides congestion
relief that can improve air quality in communities adjacent to the highway, which are
disproportionally historically marginalized or excluded communities.

- Through the Oregon Legislature, ODOT will be required to report back on an equitable,
income-based toll rate by September 2022.

e Improving safety
- Through variable toll rates, better congestion management reduces the large speed
differences in stop-and-go traffic that backs up at peak travel hours and leads to severe
injury crashes or deaths.

- Evaluating strategic safety and health investments in areas affected by I-205 toll-based
diversion as to determine what investments would advance equity through safety
improvements.

- 1205 Improvements Project, which includes crucial seismic upgrades, is made possible
with tolling.

- New roundabout with the I-205 Improvements Project will improve safety and
operations for northbound travelers accessing 1-205.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s&%@atﬁﬁ@?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 39

- Auxiliary lanes will be lengthened and improved to address substandard merging and
reduce traffic weaving.

¢ Climate
- Reduces greenhouse gas and vehicle miles traveled through mode shifts. Project
evaluating expanded transportation options.

- Reduces greenhouse gas emissions by managing congestion so that fewer hours are
spent waiting in highway congestion.

- Abernathy Bridge improvements will construct the first earthquake-ready interstate
structure across the Willamette River and seismic upgrades will be done to eight other
corridor bridges, with the I-205 Improvements Project.

¢ Congestion
- Tolling can manage congestion through variable-rate tolls, while also providing revenue
for strategic transportation improvements.

- Supports improved travel time, reliability, and efficient movement of goods.

- Supports movement of regional and statewide economic development by opening access
to a wider range of jobs and improving predictability of travel times.

- Evaluating strategic investments made to advance equity through safety improvements
in areas affected by toll-based diversion.

- 1205 Improvements Project, which includes crucial seismic upgrades, is made possible
with tolling.

x] Describe how project is consistent with and supports implementation of RTP System
and Regional Design policies (see RTP Chapter 3, Section 3.2 through Section 3.11).

3.2 OVERARCHING SYSTEM POLICIES
3.2.1 Safety and security policies
3.2.1.1 Regional Transportation Safety Strategy (2018)

3.2.1.4 Safety and security policies

Response
The I-205 Toll Project meets the safety strategy and safety and security policies in the following
ways:

e The I-205 Toll Project is relying on the regional travel demand model and also more refined
modeling with the Dynamic Traffic Analysis and Multi Criteria Evaluation tool to analyze
traffic patterns.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 40

e For roadway safety, the NEPA analysis will assess the change in roadway safety conditions
(based on Highway Safety Manual Part C Methodology) as well as change in roadway
queues that could affect safety

e For bicycle and pedestrian modes, safety will be qualitatively addressed based on changes
in Level of Traffic Stress (LTS) for each mode based on ODOT’s bicycle and pedestrian
documented LTS calculation methodology

e Through variable toll rates, better congestion management reduces the large speed
differences in stop-and-go traffic that backs up at peak travel hours and leads to severe
injury crashes or deaths.

e Evaluating strategic safety and health investments in areas impacted by I-205 toll-based
diversion as to determine what investments would advance equity through safety
improvements.

e New roundabout with the I-205 Improvements Project will improve safety and operations
for northbound travelers accessing I-205.

e Auxiliary lanes will be lengthened and improved to address substandard merging and
reduce traffic weaving.

3.2.2 Transportation equity policies
3.2.2.1 Metro’s Strategic Plan to Advance Racial Equity, Diversity, and
Inclusion (2016
3.2.2.2 Transportation equity and the Regional Transportation Plan

3.1.2.4 Transportation equity policies (7 policies)

Response

ODOQOT’s strategic plan and Urban Mobility Office implementation of the plan includes the
charge to serve all Oregonians equitably. The voices of our community matter and influence the
work we do. A focus on equity ensures that we look beyond merely improving the system to
improving the quality of life of every Oregonian. This includes being mindful of the benefits
and burdens created by our work and ensuring they are distributed equitably. The equity goal
includes focusing on workforce diversity and opportunities for advancement, expanding
economic opportunities for minority groups, climate-change equity, and creating more
representative public engagement processes.

e Advancing equity in the I-205 Toll Project
- Established Equity Framework and Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee, which
deepens relationships and partnerships with historically and currently
underrepresented and underserved communities.

- The Equity Framework is changing the way ODOT would normally do the
environmental review process to one that is more transparent and iterative.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 41

- The Equity Framework is pushing ODOT to commit to actions that advance equity, not
just mitigate impact. For example, the I-205 Toll Project will evaluate strategic
investments to advance equity for transit and multimodal transportation options,
neighborhood health and safety, and affordability

- Tolling is one funding tool that can more accurately reflect the true cost of those
contributing to peak-hour congestion and benefit low-income drivers who value a
reliable trip and easier access to more jobs.

- Congestion pricing coupled with improvements around bottlenecks provides congestion
relief that can improve air quality in communities adjacent to the highway, which are
disproportionally historically marginalized or excluded communities.

- Through the Oregon Legislature, ODOT will be required to report back on an equitable,
income-based toll rate by September 2022.

The I-205 Toll Project conducted an Initial demographic assessment, based on a review of U.S.

Census Bureau and American Community Survey data, for public engagement to identify
people experiencing low income and other historically and currently excluded or underserved
communities. The following findings and actions resulted from the demographic analysis:

e For the I-205 project area corridor, specifically, project engagement should focus on reaching
seniors, people experiencing low income, and people with disabilities at the northern edge
of the project area. Additionally, the I-205 project area corridors contain linguistically
isolated households that speak Spanish and Asian languages, including Chinese.

e Maps for the demographic analysis were developed and provided to the Equity and
Mobility Advisory Committee for their recommendation process

e Early traffic results combined with census tract analysis of people experiencing low incomes
has led to planning focused engagement in areas where traffic impacts could affect
historically and currently excluded or underserved communities, particularly Canby and
Gladstone. This work is ongoing.

e A more rigorous demographic analysis at the census tract level is ongoing to support
Environmental Assessment development.

3.2.3 Climate leadership policies
3.2.3.1 Climate Smart Strategy (2014)
3.2.3.2 Climate Smart Strategy policies (9 policies — note Policy 4 safety and
reliability and Policy 5 Managed system)
3.2.3.3 Climate Smart Strategy toolbox of potential actions (Appendix ])
3.2.3.4 Climate Smart Strategy monitoring
3.2.3.5 Transportation preparedness and resilience

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://portland.pbid.com/ODOTCongestionPricing/Task2/2.01%20Strategic%20Communications%2C%20Coordination%2C%20and%20PIP/Demographic%20Analysis/CP_DemographicAnalysis_FINAL_DRAFT_081119_toODOT.pdf?Web=1
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/ODOT_I-205_Toll_Projects_Factsheet_ChineseTraditional.pdf

1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s},%r?atﬁﬁn@%’ﬁ’ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 42

Response

Greenhouse gas emissions from cars and trucks have been rising since 2013 and represented
39% of total statewide emissions in 2016 (Oregon Global Warming Commission 2018). Idling
vehicles sitting in congested conditions contribute to these emissions. In March 2020, the
governor signed an executive order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 45% below 1990 levels
by 2035 and 80% below 1990 levels by 2050.

The I-205 Toll Project is consistent with the RTP policies related to climate change because it will
result in greenhouse gas reduction through reduced vehicle miles traveled resulting from mode
shifts. The project is evaluating expanded transportation options. The project will also reduce
greenhouse gas emissions by managing congestion so fewer hours are spent waiting in in
highway congestion.

3.2.4 Emerging technology policies
3.2.4.1 Emerging Technology Strategy (2018)
3.2.4.2 Emerging technology principles
3.2.4.3 Emerging technology policies

Response

The I-205 Toll Project will be all electronic tolling. The full technology design has not been
developed, but ODOT plans to utilize and leverage applicable emerging technology as design of
the toll collection technology is developed.

3.3 REGIONAL DESIGN AND PLACEMAKING VISION AND POLICIES

3.3.3 Designs for safe and healthy transportation for all ages and abilities

Response

The Oregon Toll Program is committed to minimizing burdens and maximizing benefits to
communities historically and currently excluded or underserved by the transportation system. These
communities include varying ages, abilities and other factors. To achieve equitable outcomes and
an equitable process in the I-205 Toll Project, ODOT seeks to actively engage these communities. The
Oregon Toll Program will consistently and intentionally inform, listen to, learn from, and
empower these communities throughout the 1-205 Toll Project’s development, implementation,
monitoring, and evaluation processes. The I-205 Toll Project is still in NEPA evaluation, and the
input described above will inform the project design.

3.4 REGIONAL NETWORK VISIONS, CONCEPTS AND POLICIES
3.4.1 Regional mobility corridor concept

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s},%r?atﬁﬁn@%’ﬁ’ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 43

Response

The I-205 Toll Project will operate on the designated I-205 throughway, an element of the
regional mobility corridor concept that “integrates throughways, high capacity transit, arterial
streets, frequent bus routes, freight/passenger rail and bicycle parkways into subareas of the
region that work together to provide for regional, statewide and interstate travel” (RTP, page 3-
55). ODOT seeks to implement the I-205 Toll Project on one of the top reoccurring throughway
bottlenecks in the region (2013 —2015) (RTP, Figure 4.41) to help manage congestion in this area
and raise revenue to construct the I-205 Improvements Project. The 1-205 Toll Project will
contribute to the purpose of the regional mobility corridor concept by easing congestion on this
critical throughway to move people and goods more efficiently through the region. As the I-205
Toll Project is developed and evaluated, it is considering opportunities to support bicycling,
walking and access to transit in the corridor.

3.5 REGIONAL MOTOR VEHICLE NETWORK VISION AND POLICIES
3.5.1 Regional motor vehicle network vision
3.5.2 Regional motor vehicle network concept
3.5.3 Regional motor vehicle network policies
(Throughways)

3.5.5 Congestion management process — (also called out 4% bullet — next section)

Response

The I-205 Toll Project is part of the comprehensive congestion management strategy that ODOT
is implementing. The Urban Mobility Office was established to oversee, align, and implement
ODOT’s core urban mobility projects to achieve regional congestion relief, mobility, and safety
for all users of the highway and interstate system. In addition, the Urban Mobility Office is
implementing the Oregon Toll Program that will contribute to regional congestion relief and
secure sustainable funding to modernize, not just maintain, the transportation system.

In line with ODOT’s mission, the Urban Mobility Office envisions an Oregon where all people
have access to the mode of transportation that works best for them. ODOT is committed to
supporting and investing in projects that provide a modern transportation system for all users.
This includes multimodal transportation investments like public transportation, bicycle and
pedestrian facilities, and safety enhancements like seismic upgrades to bridges, bottleneck
alleviation to reduce potential crashes, and more protected facilities for all users. This
commitment comes in two forms: delivering projects and supporting partner projects.

The I-205 Toll Project will implement tolls in the vicinity of the Abernethy Bridge and Tualatin
River Bridges in Clackamas County to fund the I-205 Improvements Project and manage
congestion. The toll project is currently being evaluated for benefits and impacts. As considered,
tolls would help fund construction of the planned I-205 Improvements Project while giving
travelers a better and more reliable trip.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 44

Managing congestion on throughways will contribute to overall motor vehicle network
efficiencies in the region. Implementing the I-205 Toll Project on the segment of the I-205
throughway between Stafford Road and the OR 43 interchange, will ease congestion at this top
reoccurring regional throughway bottleneck, by:

e Providing funds to construct the I-205 Improvements Project, which includes seismic
upgrades to bridges and a third travel lane in each direction among other improvements,
and

e Shifting some drivers to either change their time of travel to less congested times of day; to
other modes of travel like bus, biking or walking; or to not make their trip at all.

The implementation of the I-205 Toll Project is in direct support of the following regional motor
vehicle network policies:

e Policy 1 — Preserve and maintain the region’s motor vehicle network system in a manner that
improves safety, security and resiliency while minimizing life cycle cost and impact on the
environment. Tolls will allow ODOT to actively manage capacity on the segment of 1-205
throughway to allow for continues travel. The easing of stop/start traffic will result in a safer
travel environment and result in less rear-end crashes. Further, the I-205 Toll Project will
implement tolls in the vicinity of the Abernethy Bridge and Tualatin River Bridges in
Clackamas County to fund the I-205 Improvements Project, which includes seismic
upgrades to the Abernethy Bridge and Tualatin River Bridges, and several other bridges in
the project area, contributing to the region’s resiliency in the event of a large earthquake.

e Policy 3 — Actively manage and optimize capacity on the region’s throughway network for longer,
regional, statewide and interstate travel. The I-205 Toll Project will actively manage and
optimize capacity on this segment of the I-205 throughway.

e Policy 5 - Strategically expand the region’s throughway network up to six travel lanes plus auxiliary
lanes between interchanges to maintain mobility and accessibility and improve reliability for regional,
statewide and interstate travel. The I-205 Toll Project will implement tolls in the vicinity of the
Abernethy Bridge and Tualatin River Bridges in Clackamas County to fund the I-205
Improvements Project, which includes a third travel lane in each direction between Stafford
Road and the OR 43 interchange.

e Policy 6 — In combination with increased transit service, consider use of congestion pricing to
manage congestion and raise revenue when one or more lanes are being added to throughways. The
I-205 Toll Project will implement tolls (synonymous with the term congestion pricing in this
case), in the vicinity of the Abernethy Bridge and Tualatin River Bridges in Clackamas
County to fund the I-205 Improvements Project, which includes a third travel lane in each
direction between Stafford Road and the OR 43 interchange. The I-205 Toll Project is
considering and evaluating opportunities to support transit investments in the corridor.

e Policy 10 — Address safety needs on the motor vehicle network through coordinated
implementation of cost-effective crash reduction engineering measures, education, and

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s},%r?atﬁﬁn@%’ﬁ’ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 45

enforcement. The I-205 Toll Project will reduce crashes through interchange improvements
that reduce conflicts between drivers entering and exiting the through traffic.

3.6 REGIONAL TRANSIT NETWORK VISION AND POLICIES
3.6.1 Regional transit network vision
3.6.2 Regional transit network concept
3.6.3 Regional transit network functional classifications and map
3.6.4 Regional transit network policies (8 Policies)

Response
ODOT is working closely with local jurisdiction partners and transit providers to better
understand how to support the transit policies.

3.7  REGIONAL FREIGHT NETWORK VISION AND POLICIES
3.7.1 Regional freight network concept facilities.
3.7.2  Regional freight network policies (7 Policies)
3.7.3 Regional freight network classifications and map

Response
The I-205 Toll Project is located in the Clackamas Industrial Area freight regional freight
network.

Movement of people and goods is critical to support a growing economy. Freight tonnage in the
Portland region is expected to double by 2040, with 75% of total freight tonnage moved by
truck. I-205 is a designated north—south interstate freight route in a roadway network that links
Canada, Mexico and major ports along the Pacific Ocean. Trucks represent 6% to 9% of total
traffic on I-205.

Congestion on 1-205 affects the ability to deliver goods on time, which results in increased costs
and uncertainty for businesses. The cost of congestion on I-205 increased by 24% between 2015
and 2017, increasing to nearly half a million dollars each day in 2017 (ODOT 2018b). Increasing
congestion and demand and for goods will result in more delay, costs, and uncertainty for all
businesses that rely on I-205 for freight movement.

The I-205 Toll Project supports regional freight policies by improving travel reliability and
reducing congestion. The I-205 Toll Project shows the potential to improve traffic conditions in
the transportation system during peak hours. The project shows an overall vehicle-hours
travelled reduction due to travel-time savings on the freeway.

The I-205 Toll is expected to reduce vehicle throughput on tolled segments of I-205 because of
the toll diversion. Tolling causes some drivers to divert their trips to other routes (rerouting) or
destinations, other modes (mode shift), or other times of day. Daily traffic volumes are reduced.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s},%r?atﬁﬁn@%’ﬁ’ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 46

Response
ODOT is working closely with local jurisdiction partners to better understand how to support
the regional active transportation network vision.

Response:
ODOT is working closely with local jurisdiction partners to better understand how to support
the regional bicycle network concept and policies.

Response
ODOT is working closely with local jurisdiction partners to better understand how to support
the regional pedestrian network concept and policies.

3.11 TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS VISION AND
POLICIES
3.11.1 Transportation system management and operations concept
3.11.2 Transportation system management and operations policies (7 policies, #1 is
about pricing)

Response:

The 1-205 Toll Project will be the first pricing project in the Portland metropolitan area and will
be the catalyst for developing a regional system of pricing. Congestion pricing is a strategy that
supports the RTP’s transportation system management and operations concept to:

e Improve safety and travel time reliability.

e Improve transit on-time arrival and speeds.

e Reduce travel delay.

e Decrease vehicle miles traveled and drive alone trips.

e Reduce fuel use and corresponding air pollution and greenhouse gas emissions.

The implementation of the I-205 Toll Project is in direct support of the following transportation
system management and operations policies:

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s},%r?atﬁﬁn@%’ﬁ’ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 47

e Policy 1 - Expand use of pricing strategies to manage travel demand on the transportation system in
combination with adequate transit service options. The 1-205 Toll Project will be the first pricing
project in the Portland metropolitan area and will be the catalyst for developing a regional
system of pricing. ODOT is working closely with local jurisdiction partners and transit
providers to better understand how to support the transit policies.

e Policy 2 — Expand use of access management, advanced technologies and other tools to actively
manage the transportation system. The 1-205 Toll Project will be the first congestion pricing
project in the Portland metropolitan area and will be the catalyst for developing a regional
system of pricing.

Describe how identification of the project followed the RTP congestion management
process policies (See RTP Chapter 3, Section 3.5.5) by considering the transportation
strategies as described in Section 3.5.5 and Metro Code section 3.08.220.A.

The RTP calls for implementing system and demand management strategies and other
strategies prior to building new motor vehicle capacity, consistent with the federal Congestion
Management Process, Oregon Transportation Plan policies (including Oregon Highway Plan
Policy 1G), and Section 3.08.220 of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan. In some parts
of the greater Portland region, the transportation system is generally complete, while in other
parts of the region, especially those where new development is planned, significant amounts of
infrastructure will be added. In both contexts, management strategies have great value. Where
the system is already built out, such strategies may be the only ways to manage congestion and
achieve other objectives. Where growth is occurring, system and demand management
strategies can be integrated before and during development to efficiently balance capacity with
demand.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project REBEATIGPA i3l HRe KR idrdingnee No. 21-1467

Page 48

4 Fiscal Constraint

X] Provide estimated total project cost in 2016 dollars for each phase through construction,
and anticipated cost and timing for each project phase.

X] Identify source of cost estimate to identify the confidence level of project costs (select
one of the following):

- Conceptual estimate: These cost estimates are used where a significant need has been
identified but a detailed project scope has not been developed. These cost estimates
have the potential to change significantly as the project scope becomes more defined.

- Planning-level estimate: These cost estimates are based on a generally defined scope.
Cost estimates are usually based on limited field-work and general cost assumptions.
No actual design work has been done prior to the development of these cost estimates.
The cost estimate could still change significantly as design work begins, but the
estimate is more reliable than the conceptual estimates. (e.g., comprehensive plan, TSP,
Metro cost estimate worksheet, corridor plan).

- Engineer’s estimate: These cost estimates are based on actual preliminary design work.
If done for all facets of the project and there are no further additions to the project
scope, these estimates should represent a fairly accurate cost for the project. (e.g.
detailed planning report, preliminary engineering, final design, NEPA documentation,
etc.)

Construction costs will be part of the statewide program development costs. The preliminary
engineering phase will cost an estimated $27,257,890 in 2021 dollars. Construction phase costs
are unknown prior to preliminary engineering efforts, including NEPA, but would come from
the statewide toll program, which is new revenue and therefore would not affect the fiscal
constraint. The funding source for the preliminary engineering phase is additional federal
money that was greater than anticipated and therefore new money that was not forecast by
ODOT and not included in the RTP financial forecast.

x] Describe and provide documentation of relevant funding sources to be considered
and/or secured for the project or changes to existing RTP financially constrained
revenue assumptions.

New funds that were not previously anticipated will be used for this project. ODOT had a
federal funding assumption and the federal authorization was greater than anticipated. See the
attached Oregon Transportation Commission meeting minutes.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s&%@atﬁﬁ@?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 49

5 Performance

Describe how the project or program advances one or more of the RTP investment
priorities — improving safety, advancing equity, reducing greenhouse gas emissions
and/or managing congestion.

The 1-205 Toll Project is currently in the environmental review phase. Performance measures for
all four of the RTP investment priorities are included in the metrics that will be analyzed during
the NEPA process. The following performance measures have been developed with input from
regional and local partners, as well as the Toll Program’s Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee:

e Improving Safety
- An assessment of the potential for additional diversion onto the surrounding street
system, especially onto neighborhood streets designed for low speed, low volume
conditions.

¢ Advancing Equity
- Consideration of equity and mobility strategies to ensure people of all demographics
receive travel benefits.

¢ Reducing Greenhouse Gas Emissions
- An assessment of the potential to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the corridor by
reducing start/stop traffic.

- Congestion pricing is widely viewed as one tool that can likely help Oregon meet
statewide greenhouse reduction goals. House Bill 3055 amended ORS 383.001 to
explicitly acknowledge Oregon’s congestion issue and the role tolling has in alleviating
the issue and supporting climate goals: “Significant traffic congestion adversely impacts
Oregon’s economy and the quality of life of Oregon’s communities. Where appropriate,
variable-rate tolls should be applied to reduce traffic congestion and support the state’s
greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals.”

¢ Managing Congestion
- Inclusion of a variable-rate toll that is higher during peak hours.

- An assessment of whether improved reliability on I-205 will make bus service on the
highway a viable option to improve the currently limited public transportation options
between West Linn, Oregon City and the I-5 corridor.

- An evaluation of existing transit during peak periods to accommodate any shift in travel
modes.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/Mobility-Equity.aspx

1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s&%@atﬁﬁ@?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 50

Describe how the project or program contributes one or more of the federal and/or
regional performance targets (RTP Chapter 2) for the transportation system.

Affordability

- Working under the Equity Framework developed by the Oregon Toll Program’s Equity
and Mobility Advisory Committee, affordability is a key topic of interest. ODOT will
prepare a report for the legislature in September 2022 on equitable income-based toll
rates.

Safety
- A multimodal safety analysis will be conducted as part of the NEPA analysis and
disclosed in the Environmental Assessment scheduled to be released summer 2022.

Multimodal travel

- An assessment of multimodal travel changes will be conducted as part of the NEPA
analysis and disclosed in the Environmental Assessment scheduled to be released
summer 2022.

- A multi-agency transit and multimodal working group is meeting regularly to support
project development.

Mode share and Regional non-drive alone modal targets
- A mode share assessment will be conducted as part of the NEPA analysis and disclosed
in the Environmental Assessment scheduled to be released summer 2022.

System completion (bicycle and pedestrian)

- Opportunities to complete bicycle and pedestrian facilities on or adjacent to impacted
roadways will be explored as part of the NEPA analysis and disclosed in the
Environmental Assessment scheduled to be released summer 2022.

Congestion and Regional mobility policy (volume/capacity ratio)

- Midday 1-hour peak target is 0.9 and the PM 2-hour peak target is 0.99. A volume to
capacity analysis will be conducted as part of the NEPA analysis and disclosed in the
Environmental Assessment scheduled to be released summer 2022; however, volume to
capacity ratio is expected to be below the maximum targets as congestion along 1-205 is
managed.

Freight delay
- Delay for freight is expected to be reduced as congestion is managed.

- An assessment of multimodal travel changes, including to truck freight, will be
conducted as part of the NEPA analysis and disclosed in the Environmental Assessment
scheduled to be released summer 2022.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ’ﬁggi%tﬂm%%l?s&éatagn%?gﬁ Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 51

¢ C(lean air
- An assessment of air quality impacts and benefits will be conducted as part of the NEPA
analysis and disclosed in the Environmental Assessment scheduled to be released
summer 2022.

¢ Greenhouse gas emission reduction
- An assessment of greenhouse gas emissions will be conducted as part of the NEPA
analysis and disclosed in the Environmental Assessment scheduled to be released
summer 2022.

Describe whether this is a safety project, consistent with criteria used to determine
eligibility for state and federal safety program funding (e.g. HSIP or ARTS). This
element aims to identify projects with the primary purpose of addressing a
documented safety problem at a documented high injury or high risk location with one
or more proven safety countermeasure(s).1

While ODOT anticipates this I-205 Toll Project to result in overall safer travel conditions, this
project is not addressing a documented safety problem at a documented high injury or high risk
location.

Provide links to reports or other documents that support the above descriptions.

¢ Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee:
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/Advisory-Committee.aspx

e Equity Framework:
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/Toll Projects Equity Framework with A

ppendixA.pdf

e 1-205 Toll project draft performance measures:
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205%20T0l1%20Project%20DRAFT%20E
valuation%20Performance%20Measures.pdf

e 1-205 Toll Project Methodology Memos for all NEPA disciplines is within the project's
resource library, here: https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/Library.aspx

Submit RTP modeling details for projects that include bicycle infrastructure and/or
roadway capacity, if needed.

ODOQOT is partnering with Metro to complete the modeling for the I-205 Toll Project. For the
NEPA analysis, the “Build” alternative includes a toll on the Abernethy Bridge and Tualatin
River Bridges and the construction of the I-205 Improvements Project (called the I-205 South

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project REBEATIGPA s S8 et HRRP HriR dFdignce No. 21-1467

Page 52

project and the I-205 Abernethy Bridge and I-205 Northbound and Southbound Widening
projects in the 2018 RTP). Roadway capacity is added with the addition of the missing third lane
between OR 213 and Stafford Rd.

Analysis was conducted on this alternative (referred to as Alternative 3) and is presented in the

1-205 Toll Project Final Comparison of Screening Alternatives Technical Report (March 31, 2021)
and Final Addendum (September 1, 2021). The following tables summarize a few select regional
modeling findings:

Table 4. Change in Regional Daily Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) (2027)

Type of VMT | VMT Change
Freeway -413,000
Non-Freeway +179,000
Total -234,000

Table 5. Change in Regional Daily Vehicle Hours Traveled (VHT) (2027)

Type of VHT ’ VHT Change
Freeway -13,300
Non-Freeway +8,900
Total -4,400

Table 6. Change in I-205 Daily Vehicular Volumes (Relative to 2027 Baseline)

Stafford Road to 10th Street -36%
10th Street to OR 43 -24%
OR 43 to OR 99E -33%
OR 99E to OR 213 -19%

Table 7. Change in Daily Person Trips by Mode (2027)

Trip Type ’ Trips
Single-Occupancy Vehicle -5,500
High-Occupancy Vehicle +4,500
Transit <+500
Active (Bicycle, Pedestrian) +1,000

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/FINAL%20I-205%20Comparison%20of%20Screening%20Alternatives_wAddendum_090121.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/FINAL%20I-205%20Comparison%20of%20Screening%20Alternatives_wAddendum_090121.pdf

1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm‘%‘?&?s&@atﬁﬁﬁ%’& m%n(amm@nce No. 21-1467

Page 53

Table 8. Daily Percentage Change in Volume at Select 1-205 Locations (2027)

1-205 Locations | Volume Change
I-205 between I-5 and Stafford Road -20 to -30%
I-205 north of 82nd Drive Overcrossing -5 to -10%

X] Submit GIS shapefile of project, following 2018 RTP GIS submission instructions.

Shapefile is included.

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s&%@atﬁﬁ@?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 54

6 Public Engagement

Describe the transportation planning and decision-making process through which the
project was identified, how interested/affected stakeholders2 were meaningfully
engaged, and the opportunities for public feedback that were available during the
process.

Planning and environmental review for the I-205 Toll Project builds on direction from the
Oregon Legislature and the results of a feasibility analysis. In 2017, Oregon House Bill 2017
(“Keep Oregon Moving”) was passed to improve area highways; enhance transit, biking, and
walking facilities; and use technology to make the transportation system work better. As part of
this comprehensive transportation package, the Oregon Transportation Commission was
directed to study tolling on I-5 and I-205 in the Portland metropolitan area. In response, ODOT
initiated the Portland Metro Area Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis (Value Pricing Feasibility
Analysis) to explore toll options, determine how and where tolling could help improve
congestion on I-5 or I-205 during peak travel times, and discuss potential benefits and impacts
to travelers and adjacent communities. During this time period, the location for the I-205 Toll
Project was identified as feasible and a priority for further study and analysis.

In summer 2020, from August 3 to October 16, 2020, ODOT launched an education and
engagement period for the I-205 Toll Project. During this time, ODOT hosted numerous
education and engagement activities to reach a broad audience. The agency sought input at the
beginning of the environmental review process to help refine the draft purpose and need for the
1-205 Toll Project, the toll alternatives to be studied, and key issues for analysis as required by
NEPA. ODOT received more than 4,600 survey responses, letters, emails, voicemails, and
comments at meetings and briefings between August 3 and October 16, 2020.

A few engagement activities occurred in July 2020 prior to the start of the formal comment
period. At these presentations, participants were notified of the starting date for the formal
comment period, and the launches of the online open house and online survey, which were
August 3, 2020.

This engagement was an opportunity for agencies, community groups, corridor travelers, and
the public to provide their input on the following:

e Draft Purpose and Need Statement, including 1-205 Toll Project goals and objectives.
¢ Recommended alternatives as potential tolling strategies to study in depth.

e Concerns and potential impacts to consider during the environmental review.

e Strategies to make a toll system work for better for all travelers and local residents.

Because of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, all engagement activities were conducted
virtually to maintain physical distancing and protect public health. The I-205 Toll Project team

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021



1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%l?s},‘aﬁatﬁﬁn@ﬁ&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 55

actively sought out comments from local, regional, and regulatory agencies; residents and
businesses that rely on or are located next to I-205; and members of communities who have
been historically and currently excluded and underserved in planning processes and
underserved by the transportation system.

Below is a summary of the engagement that informed the I-205 Toll Project (with links to
relevant reports):

¢ Decision-making process:
- The need for tolling for congestion management and revenue generation was identified
as part of HB 2017 legislative process

- Result of Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis: I-205 near the Abernethy Bridge was
selected both by the Policy Advisory Committee and by the Oregon Transportation

Commission

e Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis Stakeholder engagement — 2017 to 2018
Policy Advisory Committee

- 50 Presentations/briefings to local governments and community organizations

- Notification through news releases/newsletters, social media, digital advertising, media
coverage

- 8 open houses, two online open houses (winter 2018 and spring 2018)

- 6 discussion groups with historically excluded communities

e I-205 Toll Project stakeholder engagement — 2020 to present
- 1-205 Toll Project Public Involvement Plan (attached)

- 1-205 Toll Project Equitable Engagement Plan (attached)

- Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee (May 2020 to present) — Charter is located
here.

- DPresentations/briefings to local governments and community organizations (summer
2020, late fall 2021, summer 2021)

- Regular updates to partner agency staff at monthly or bi-monthly meetings

- Online open house (also in Spanish) and webinar series, summer 2020

- Notification of comment period via Enewsletter, news release, print and digital
advertising, social media, radio ad, media coverage (See Chapter 4 and Appendix B of
the engagement summary.)

- Outreach to historically and currently excluded or underserved communities with flyers
at gathering places and direct outreach via engagement liaisons in summer 2020 (See
Chapter 4 of engagement summary.)

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/VP%20Final_FHWAApplication_Draft.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/VP%20Final_FHWAApplication_Draft.pdf
https://odotopenhouse.org/portland-metro-area-value-pricing-feasibility-analysis
https://odotopenhouse.org/congestion
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/Advisory-Committee.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/EMAC_Charter_Final.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/EMAC_Charter_Final.pdf
https://odotopenhouse.org/i205toll
https://odotopenhouse.org/i205toll-esp
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QjiFsa4fXOw
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205_Engagement%20Summary_Final_508.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I205Toll_B.5_Public%20Notifications.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205_Engagement%20Summary_Final_508.pdf

1-205 Toll Project 'ﬁLtEi%'ﬂm%PJn?s},%r?atﬁﬁnFﬁ&’rP Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 56

- Planned: Outreach to historically and currently excluded or underserved communities,
neighborhoods and business groups in fall 2021 on impact analysis (attached)

e Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis Opportunities for feedback
- Public comment period at each Policy Advisory Committee meeting

- Winter 2018 survey on traffic problems and concerns.

- Environmental justices survey and discussion groups

- Spring 2018 survey on concepts and potential mitigation

—  Qregon Transportation Commission listening session in July 2018, which was
summarized in the summer 2018 report

- Comment form on website; project email and voice mail

e 1-205 Toll Project opportunities for feedback
- Public comment period or breakout group at each Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee meeting

- Ongoing conversations with partner agencies on purpose and need, alternatives,
technical analysis through formal meetings and briefings, including:

o Monthly Regional Partner Agency Staff Meetings — senior staff from metro region
and Southwest Washington

o Region 1 Area on Transportation Commission, and now the Region 1 Area on
Transportation Commission Toll Work Group

o Regional Modeling Group — technical and policy staff from regional and Southwest
Washington Agencies

o Transit and Multimodal Working Group - transit staff from regional partner
agencies and transit providers

- Summer 2020 survey in five languages on project purpose and need; recommended

alternatives

- Comment form on website; project email and voice mail

Describe how feedback from the public was incorporated into the development of the
project.

The public engagement from the Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis informed the approach
taken for the I-205 Toll Project. The I-205 Toll Project has requested formal and informal
comments from the public and stakeholders, including historically excluded populations, since
February 2020.

Development of the I-205 Toll Project is ongoing; an Environmental Assessment is currently
underway to evaluate the impacts of implementing a toll on I-205 at Abernethy Bridge and
Tualatin River Bridges. There will be additional opportunities for the public to engage,

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/WinterOutreach_FeedbackSummary.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/3_EJ_Engagement_Summary.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/2018_0511_SpringOutreachSummary.PDF
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/SummerReport_AppendixB_VerbalComments.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/ResourcesHistory/2018_0807_VP_SummerCommentSummaryReport_FINAL.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205_Engagement%20Summary_Final_508.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I205Toll_B.2_Online%20Surveys.pdf

1-205 Toll Project ﬁgéi%'ﬂm%%?s&%@atﬁﬁ@?&? Erﬁ%nqmgﬂ?nce No. 21-1467

Page 57

including a formal 45-day comment period after the Environmental Assessment publication in
spring 2022. There are several ways feedback was included:

e Edits to the Purpose and Need Statement, goals and objectives to reflect stakeholder
feedback with additional focus on the needs of historically excluded communities, diversion
and climate change.

e The I-5 Toll Project was expanded to the Regional Mobility Pricing Project to reflect
stakeholder desires for a regional project on larger sections of I-5 and I-205.

e Traffic analysis and intersection locations for further analysis reflect diversion concerns
from local residents and partner agencies; this effort is continuing through 2021 as the
Environmental Assessment is developed.

e ODOT added performance measures recommended by Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee and partner agencies to better quantify effects of the toll project to local
community.

x] Describe what demographic assessment was done to identify communities of color,
people with limited English proficiency, people with low income and other historically
marginalized communities as stakeholders.

The I-205 Toll Project conducted an Initial demographic assessment, based on a review of U.S.
Census Bureau and American Community Survey data, for public engagement to identify

people experiencing low income and other historically and currently excluded or underserved
communities. The following findings and actions resulted from the demographic analysis:

e For the I-205 project area corridor, specifically, project engagement should focus on reaching
seniors, people experiencing low income, and people with disabilities at the northern edge
of the project area. Additionally, the I-205 project area corridors contain linguistically
isolated households that speak Spanish and Asian languages, including Chinese.

e Maps for the demographic analysis were developed and provided to the Equity and
Mobility Advisory Committee for their recommendation process

e Early traffic results combined with census tract analysis of people experiencing low incomes
has led to planning focused engagement in areas where traffic impacts could affect
historically and currently excluded or underserved communities, particularly Canby and
Gladstone. This work is ongoing.

A more rigorous demographic analysis at the census tract level is ongoing to support
Environmental Assessment development.

Submit the 2018 RTP Public Engagement and Non-Discrimination Checklist.

e See attached

Oregon
Department .
of Transportation www.OregonTolling.org September 22, 2021


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/I-205%20Toll%20Project%20DRAFT%20Evaluation%20Performance%20Measures.pdf
https://portland.pbid.com/ODOTCongestionPricing/Task2/2.01%20Strategic%20Communications%2C%20Coordination%2C%20and%20PIP/Demographic%20Analysis/CP_DemographicAnalysis_FINAL_DRAFT_081119_toODOT.pdf?Web=1
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/ODOT_I-205_Toll_Projects_Factsheet_ChineseTraditional.pdf

ttachmeny 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 2

I-205 Toll Project

Public Involvement Plan

Updated: April 23, 2021

PURPOSE

This plan will inform and guide the project team during the environmental review for the 1-205
Toll Project (Project). It describes goals, objectives, performance measures, audiences, and tools
to guide the public information and engagement activities that will be used to support ongoing
project development and key decisions during the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
process. More detailed implementation plans will be written before each stage of the technical
analysis to identify which tools will be used to ensure transparent delivery of information and
public engagement that supports decision-making.

This plan seeks to apply the principles and approach detailed in the{Oregon Toll Program’s |
[Equity Framework]| (See Attachment A.) The Oregon Toll Program has made the development
of community mobility and equity strategies key components of successful toll projects. The
Oregon Toll Program is committed to minimizing burdens and maximizing benefits to
historically and currently excluded and underserved communities. The Oregon Toll Program
will engage these communities so that it can intentionally inform, listen to, learn from, and
empower them throughout the Project’s development, implementation, monitoring, and
evaluation processes.

Equitable engagement considerations and approach

Tolling improves travel reliability and provides revenue to finance improvements in the
transportation system. However, tolling may result in greater impacts to historically and
currently excluded and underserved communities due to the potential for disproportionately
higher transportation costs, more limited transportation options in lower cost housing areas,
limited schedule flexibility, and additional traffic rerouting through their neighborhoods by
drivers attempting to avoid tolls. See Attachment B, 1-205 Toll Project Equitable Engagement
Plan, for a detailed approach to engage affected communities who have been historically and
currently excluded and underserved.

OVERVIEW AND CONTEXT

Oregon House Bill 2017— “Keep Oregon Moving”—directed the Oregon Transportation
Commission (OTC) to develop a proposal for value pricing (tolling) on I-5 and 1-205 in the
Portland metro area to reduce congestion and raise revenue for bottleneck improvements. The
Portland Metro Area Value Pricing Feasibility Analysis concluded in late 2018 with an
application to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) to proceed with tolling. FHWA
responded with the steps necessary to proceed. The application describes the study areas on I-5
and 1-205 and serves as a guide for two projects: 1-205 Toll Project and I-5 and 1-205 Regional

dgcm
E of Transpartetion I-205 Toll Project | Page 1


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/Toll_Projects_Equity_Framework_with_AppendixA.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/Toll_Projects_Equity_Framework_with_AppendixA.pdf

Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Toll Project. (Note: The environmental review and public input process for the 1-5 and 1-205
Regional Toll Project will occur in parallel with the 1-205 Toll Project.)

In 2020, the ODOT Urban Mobility Office created the Comprehensive Congestion Management
and Mobility Plan (CCMMP) to meet the direction of House Bill 2017. The CCMMP outlines
priority projects that collectively improve urban mobility across the Portland metro area, with
tolling as an essential funding strategy.

Projects in the CCMMP are underway and include:
e 1-205 Improvements Project

e |-5Rose Quarter Improvement Project

e Oregon Toll Program Implementation

e Interstate Bridge Replacement

e |-5Boone Bridge Improvement Project

Description of the Project

ODOT is studying options with a variable rate toll on all lanes of 1-205 between Stafford Road
and OR 213. Tolls will raise revenue to complete financing for the planned 1-205 Improvements
Project and manage congestion. The I-205 Improvements Project includes seismic upgrades to
the Abernethy Bridge and eight other bridges on 1-205 and the extension of a third lane in each
direction.

Tolls will be paired with strategies that:

o Help improve affordability of the transportation system.

¢ Identify opportunities and improve access to multi-modal options; including transit

e Address community health, including strategies to reduce negative effects to neighborhoods
from changed traffic patterns, i.e. diversion.

Because the Project is the first toll project in the Portland metro area, some decisions and
policies made through the development of this Project will also apply to future toll projects
developed as part of the Oregon Toll Program.

Current status

The Project is currently in the environmental review and public input phase to identify toll
endpoints and equity and mobility strategies. Two alternatives, plus a “no build” alternative,
are under review.

Tolling is not expected to be implemented in the Portland metro area before 2024. The OTC, as
the toll authority, will establish toll rates after the conclusion of the environmental review and
installation of toll equipment and collection systems.

Oragan
E of Transportation I-205 Toll Project | Page 2



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

I-205 TOLL PROJECT SCHEDULE

2020 | 2021 2022 | 2023 | 2024
I-205 Improvements Project design and bid Construction (4 years) >

I-205 Toll Project

Environmental review

Earliest tolls begin

Equity

ADVISORY AND ENGAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Oregon Legislature

HB 2017 and Toll Statutes

Oregon Transportation Federal Highway Admin ODOT Toll Program

Commission
ODOT

Equity Framework

NEPA Documentation (Purpose !
Equitable Toll Report

Toll Policies and Rates & Need, Alternatives, . | _

Equity and Mobility Strategies Performance Measures, Technical analysis & reporting

Use of Toll Revenue Mitigation, Preferred Engagement & reporting
Alternative)

)

Equity discussion groups, community workshops, regional forums, open houses, surveys, engagement liaisons
(virtual and in-person)

Oragan

of Transportation 1-205 Toll Project | Page 3



Public engagement scope

Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Public engagement will inform key decisions and activities for the environmental review phase.
Decisions related to the Project and toll policies are made at multiple places, as shown above.

The 15-member Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee convened for the Oregon Toll
Program in mid-2020 provides an important forum for connecting to community members who
understand the needs of those historically and currently excluded and underserved by
transportation projects and are our ambassadors to their communities. In addition, ODOT will
engage regularly with agency partners and regional policy committees to ensure community

needs are considered.

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

Equitable engagement plan and
activities

Primary Engagement Methods

Stakeholder interviews
Community Based Organization
interviews

Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee

Workshop with community
engagement liaisons

Toll Program

Equity framework

Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee
Equity strategy group

Toll Program

Evaluation criteria and
performance measures for
process equity

Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee

ODOT. FHWA provides process
oversight.

NEPA analysis:
e Statement of purpose and
need, goals and objectives
e Range of alternatives
e Evaluation criteria and
performance measures for
analysis

Regional policy committees (Region 1
ACT, JPACT)

Direct engagement of partner
agencies

Technical working groups
Online open houses/webinars
Online survey

Community engagement liaison
outreach

Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee

ODOT; FHWA provides process
oversight.

Toll policies and strategies
related to mobility and equity

Equity discussion groups (in-person or
online)

Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee

Technical working groups

Regional policy committees (Region 1
ACT, JPACT, RTC)

Online survey/webinars

Community engagement liaison
outreach

oTC

Selection of equity and mobility
strategies for preferred
alternative

Technical working groups

oDOoT

Oragan
Dapartrment
af Transpartation

I-205 Toll Project | Page 4



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Key Decisions Primary Engagement Methods Decision Maker
e  Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee
NEPA analysis: e Regional policy committees (Region 1 |ODOT
e Preferred alternative ACT, JPACT)
e Direct engagement of partner
agencies

e Technical working groups

e Website/info sharing
Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee

Draft Environmental Assessment| e  Regional policy committees (Region 1 | ODOT; FHWA provides process
ACT, Metro) oversight

e Open houses
e  Online open houses/webinars
e Comment form
e Community engagement liaison
outreach
Refinement of preferred e  Equity and Mobility Advisory ODOT
alternative to include community Committee
mobility and equity strategies e Technical working groups
and mitigation e Direct engagement of partner
agencies
e Community workshops
NEPA Decision FHWA

Note: Toll Program refers to the project team for the toll projects. ODOT refers to the agency and includes staff outside the Toll
Program.

STAKEHOLDER ASSESSMENT

Audiences and stakeholders
Primary audiences for engagement are those who are directly affected by the Project. They
include:

Historically and currently excluded and underserved communities dependent on or affected
by 1-205: People experiencing low-incomes, youth, older adults, Black, Indigenous, multi-racial,
and people of color, people who speak a language other than English, people living with
disabilities, people who do not use or have access to traditional financial services (unbanked),
and people who are experiencing houselessness, who may face challenges accessing
employment and other services.

o Equity thought leaders; community-based organizations and faith-based organizations

¢ Community Engagement Liaisons

e Senior centers

e Transit providers

e Ride share services for people experiencing disabilities.

[+

regan
E of Transportation I-205 Toll Project | Page 5



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Local and state elected officials and agency staff in the Portland metro area, including

Southwest Washington:

e Metro Regional Government, Southwest Washington Regional Transportation Council, four
counties (Clackamas, Washington, Multnomah, Clark), City of Portland, City of Vancouver,
cities/communities affected by congestion or rerouting from 1-205 near Abernethy Bridge
(Oregon City, West Linn, Tualatin, Lake Oswego, Canby, Gladstone, Milwaukie, Stafford
and Wilsonville)

¢ Oregon and Washington state senators and representatives in the Portland metro area

e Transit providers (TriMet, SMART, C-TRAN. Clackamas CC)

Commuters/travelers through the 1-205 corridor where tolls are being considered:
e People who use transit, bike, and walk in and through the corridor

¢ Multimodal transportation advocacy organizations

¢ Non-profits providing transportation, carpooling groups

e Transit providers

e |-205 corridor drivers from Oregon and Southwest Washington

e Transportation advocacy organizations, e.g AAA

¢ Ride sharing organizations

Communities along corridors where tolls are being considered and could benefit from, or be
negatively affected by, the Project:

¢ Neighborhood associations, homeowner associations and residents at large

e School districts in the project area, PTA groups

e Health care agencies

Freight operators and businesses operating through and near potential tolled corridors:

e Freight shippers and businesses

o Small businesses - especially auto dependent (e.g. health care workers) and those along the
corridor from both Oregon and Southwest Washington

o Non-emergency medical transportation providers

o Workforce development groups and the individuals they represent (e.g., trade schools,
community colleges, students and administration).

e Business advocacy organizations (e.g. Chambers)

e Businesses outside of Portland metro area that depend on Portland mobility

Additional important stakeholders include:

e Advisory committee specifically provided a role in project development, including the
Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee and Region 1 ACT

o Federal Highway Administration

e Tribal governments

o Regulatory agencies

e Environmental/climate organizations and advocates

o People interested in the project

Oragan
E of Transportation I-205 Toll Project | Page 6



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Demographics overview

A review of the demographic data is intended to enhance the understanding of the diversity
and broad engagement needs of the populations living in and traveling through the 1-205
corridor. A demographic overview is presented in Attachment C.

Ethnicity and language needs — The 1-205 corridor population is 78 percent white (about 1.5
mile radius around the roadway from the Columbia River to where it connects with I-5). In the
1-205 corridor, approximately 13 percent of the population along I-205 identify as Hispanic or
with Latin American roots and 9 percent of the population identify as Asian in the 1-205
corridor. This is a higher proportion than the rest of the region.

Spanish is the most common language spoken at home besides English throughout the region
and is spoken by about 5% of the regional population. Other spoken languages include Chinese,
Vietnamese, Russian, , Japanese, and Arabic . The proportion of linguistically isolated
households is slightly higher along the entirety of the 1-205 corridor than the rest of the
state/region.

Income =Slightly over one third of residents in the region earned $50,000 per year or less.

The 2013-2017 median income for households in the Portland metro area is about $66,657.

The Federal poverty level for 2017 was $24,600 for a family of four. Higher median incomes are
concentrated south and east of 1-205 (Happy Valley and parts of West Linn).

Disability -- In the region, just over 10% of residents live with a disability.
The most common types of disabilities along the highway corridors include ambulatory (5-
6 percent), cognitive (5 percent) and independent living difficulties (4-5 percent).

Note: Demographic data is based on the U.S. Census prior to 2020. It is for informational purposes to
guide engagement planning only. Additional analysis will be conducted as part of the environmental
review process.

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PRINCIPLES, GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND
PERFORMANCE MEASURES:

ODOT seeks to build trust in the community with the agency’s planning and stewardship of the
state’s transportation system and its decision process. Trust is built by continually engaging a
community and stakeholders throughout an entire phase, ensuring information is accessible to
all and closing the loop by communicating to stakeholders how their feedback was incorporated
in the project process. Consistent engagement coupled with a racial equity lens can help shape
transportation policies, programs, and projects that better serve historically excluded and
underserved populations.t

1 TransForm. (2019). Pricing Roads, Advancing Equity. Transform. Retrieved from:
http://www.transformca.org/sites/default/files/Pricing Roads Advancing Equity Combined FINAL 190314.pdf

Oragan
E of Transportation I-205 Toll Project | Page 7



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Building trust requires time and repetition. Engagement efforts related to the Oregon Toll
Program, in isolation, cannot achieve the goal of a trust relationship between ODOT and
stakeholders. With active attention to the project’s engagement goals, objectives and
performance measures, progress will be made. By striving to achieve the principles, goals and
objectives listed below, ODOT will work to achieve process equity, as defined in the Equity
Framework, and enhance public trust in the agency’s stewardship of the highway system and
the decision process.

The following will apply:

Principles

The following six of the seven principles are taken from the Equity Framework relate to process
equity and will guide implementation of all public engagement and communications for this
phase:

¢ Incorporate a trauma-informed perspective in our current context by recognizing the
trauma associated with multiple historic and current events, including the ongoing killings
of African Americans by police, the COVID-19 pandemic, the economic ramifications from
these events, as well as the impacts of past transportation and land use investments. While
the future is uncertain, there is opportunity to demonstrate how ODOT can shift power to
impacted community members to improve outcomes for all. Embracing this trauma-
informed perspective in policy making can begin to address past harms, minimize burdens,
and maximize benefits for historically and currently underserved community members.

e Begin with a racial analysis. By being explicit about race and systemic racism, the 1-205 Toll
Project can develop solutions that maximize benefits to all historically and currently
excluded and underserved communities. By beginning with race, the Oregon Toll Program
ensures that race will not be ignored or diminished as part of an overall analysis of equity in
the system.

e Acknowledge historic context. Communities which have been historically affected by the
transportation system should be explicitly acknowledged and involved in a direct and
meaningful way in project development and follow-up.

e Prioritize input from impacted historically and currently excluded and underserved
communities. The Oregon Toll Program is committed to identifying communities that have
historically been excluded in transportation planning and who have been underserved or
negatively impacted by prior transportation investments and plans, as well as those at
highest risk of being negatively affected by the Project. ODOT commits to prioritizing the
voices of impacted, excluded, and underserved communities and ensuring that their
concerns, goals, and experiences shape the design of the Project. This focus will help
produce greater overall benefits throughout the system.

e Attend to power dynamics among stakeholders. The Oregon Toll Program aims to elevate
the needs and priorities of historically marginalized communities through this process. To
do this requires that the Oregon Toll Program recognizes, understands, and shifts existing

Oragan
E of Transportation I-205 Toll Project | Page 8



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

power dynamics within ODOT, other government agencies, groups, the community, and
the Project teams.

e Maintain a learning orientation. A focus on equity and implementing an all lanes toll
application are innovative nationally and new for ODOT. The Oregon Toll Program
commits to letting equity drive its approach to the planning process, including National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) studies and community participation. The Oregon Toll
Program commits to striving for continuous improvement and to creating space conducive
for growth and collective learning.

The following additional communications priorities also apply:

e Be available: Be available and responsive to stakeholders to ensure they have timely
information they need to provide informed input.

e Focus on the congestion problem: The mobility problems facing the region and the tools to
address it must be a part of all communications with the public.

e Build on past work: Build on public input provided during earlier phases and communicate
how it informs our current work.

e HB 2017: Fulfill requirements of HB 2017 from the state legislature.

e Meet ODOT standards: Apply ODOT’s adopted communication standards to the Project
which calls for being data driven, having goals focused on outcomes and using an ODOT
voice. In addition, ODOT standards call for the creation of clear and accessible materials for
middle school reading level, multiple languages and screen readers.

Goals, Objectives, Evaluation Criteria and Performance Measures
This section describes how the Toll Program will measure and evaluate progress toward
process equity during the environmental review.?

Goal 1: Historically and currently excluded and underserved communities’ concerns and aspirations are
consistently understood and considered throughout the environmental planning process.

Objective 1.1:

Broadly and consistently share Toll Program vision, project purpose, benefits and impacts, and
ways to participate with historically and currently excluded and underserved communities and
corridor users to promote understanding and awareness.

Evaluation Criteria:

Availability of information about:

e Tolling and the rationale for tolling
e Program vision

e Project analysis and results

2 These goals and objectives are specific to the Public Involvement Plan and consistent with the goals and objectives in the Purpose
and Need Statement for the 1-205 Toll Project.

Oragan
E of Transportation I-205 Toll Project | Page 9



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Engagement opportunities, including EMAC meetings
Decision processes and decision-makers

Performance Measures:

Opportunities to participate in project planning are publicized to potentially affected
parties with at least 14 days advanced notice of comment period deadlines via print,
digital and verbal channels, including social media, community liaisons and other
trusted sources, Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee members, email, traditional
media, and other channels.

Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee meeting schedule, location and topics are
distributed via the web, news release and email. Notices include the availability of
public comment opportunity and the role of the Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee as an advisory body to the Toll Program and OTC.

More than three ethnic media outlets publish balanced articles before each milestone.
Project reach improves bi-annually as indicated by growth in email list, increased web
visits, and reduction in bounce rate.

Evaluation Criteria:
Accessibility of information about:

Tolling and the rationale for tolling

Program vision

Project analysis and results

Engagement opportunities, including EMAC meetings
Decision processes and decision-makers

Performance Measures:

Information about project and engagement opportunities is delivered to potentially
affected parties through trusted community sources (e.g. liaisons or Equity and Mobility
Advisory Committee members)

Key materials are developed to meet the region’s information needs, language needs,
Americans with Disabilities Act guidelines and an 8t grade literacy level.

o0 Public materials clearly explain trade-offs, benefits and impacts of choices under
consideration.

o0 Public materials identify contact information, decision timelines, how decisions
can be influenced and who will be making the decisions.

0 Public project materials are presented at an 8t grade reading level. For technical
materials for which this is not feasible, summaries are prepared at an 8" grade
reading level.

o0 Public project materials are translated and co-created locally for the five
languages most prevalent in the region. Translation services are available upon
request for other languages.

Oragan

I:

o

of Transportation 1-205 Toll Project | Page 10



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

o All public project materials are accessible for persons living with a disability
consistent with Section 508 of the Americans with Disabilities Act (e.g. paper
copies, closed captioning on videos, project documents are screen-reader
friendly).

o People with specific questions about the project obtain responses within five business
days from project staff in preferred language and format (e.g. telephone call).

e Greater than 50% of participants express satisfaction with the accessibility of information
presented at public events, advisory committee meetings or online as measured by an
evaluation survey.

Evaluation Criteria:
Level of understanding of project context and status

Performance Measures:

o Debrief discussions with community liaisons and Equity and Mobility Advisory
Committee members within 30 days after engagement activities demonstrate that ODOT
reached representatives from historically and currently excluded and underserved
communities and they were able to understand the information.

e Greater than 50% of participants express satisfaction with the clarity, quality and
relevance of information presented at events, meetings or online as measured by an
evaluation survey.

Objective 1.2

Meaningfully engage historically and currently excluded and underserved communities
throughout the project or program design, development, implementation, monitoring, and
evaluation processes.

Evaluation Criteria:
Ability of historically excluded and underserved communities to share their input in
culturally-preferred ways.

Performance Measures:

e Engagement with community members use outreach tactics recommended by
community-based organizations, Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee members,
and community engagement liaisons.

e Qualitative assessment of Project staff resources shows priority of engaging historically
and currently excluded and underserved communities.

o Community engagement liaisons and Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee
members engage in regular conversations and outreach activities with their
communities and provide this input to the toll project team.

Oragan
E of Transportation I-205 Toll Project | Page 11



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Evaluation Criteria:
Participation levels demonstrate interest in project engagement activities

Performance Measures:

e Number of meeting participants, comments and questions tallied is similar or larger to
previous phases

e Participants engage repeatedly over time as documented by sign-in sheets for committee
meetings, discussion groups, community groups.

e Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee and community leaders report they shared
information about project and engagement opportunities with networks at project
milestones.

Evaluation Criteria:
Participant input reflects demographic and geographic diversity of people affected by

project.

Performance Measures:
¢ Significant proportion of comments and outreach event attendees are representative of

the population in the region and toll project corridor(s) and at least proportional
representation from historically and currently excluded and underserved communities.
e Input obtained is representative of the population in the region and toll project
corridor(s) and contains at least proportional representation from historically and
currently excluded and underserved communities.
e Comments are received from affected corridor users living outside the Portland metro
area.

Evaluation Criteria:
Participant satisfaction with engagement opportunities

Performance Measures:
o Over time, participants express satisfaction with their opportunity to be heard during

engagement activities as measured by surveys or other methods conducted during or
after engagement activities.

e Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee meeting evaluations reflect satisfaction with
guality of facilitation and the committee’s ability to incorporate needs of historically and
currently excluded and underserved communities into project or program plans.

Goal 2: Historically and currently excluded and underserved communities view Toll Program Team as a
transparent partner when planning the toll system.

Objective 2.1:
Regularly report how input from historically and currently excluded and underserved
communities has been considered and incorporated into project development.

Oragan
E of Transportation I-205 Toll Project | Page 12



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Evaluation Criteria:
Modifications are made to the project based on input from historically and currently
excluded and underserved communities.

Performance Measures:

o Decision makers actively review, consider and discuss input from historically and
currently excluded and underserved communities separate from the population at large.

e The project team can point to community priorities identified during outreach to
historically and currently excluded and underserved communities and demonstrate that
they are being considered and implemented in the toll program or project.

Evaluation Criteria:
Project decisions are clearly communicated directly to stakeholders and commenters.

Performance Measures:

e After decisions or changes in the toll program or project are made, the Toll Program
proactively reaches out using a variety of communication channels and languages to
inform stakeholders and commenters how their input was considered and influenced
the decision or change, for example through community liaisons and e-news.

e Changes to the program or project are communicated via community/committee
meetings, e-news, at workshops and public events.

¢ Input received from regular conversations with community liaisons and Equity and
Mobility Advisory Committee members indicate historically and currently excluded and
underserved communities understand how their input was used for decision-making.

Evaluation Criteria:
Project staff regularly communicates what has been heard and learned related to equity.

Performance Measures:
e Periodic project evaluations are published to show the toll program and project
performance on integrating equity and principles detailed in the equity framework.

Goal 3: Regional agency partners and stakeholders collaborate with project staff in the development of the
projects to create robust and supported project alternatives. Multiple jurisdictions oversee the
comprehensive transportation system in the Portland metro area. A well-functioning system
relies on effective coordination between entities that manage local roads, regional roads and
highways, transit services, land use planning and transportation funding. An effective toll
system will require travelers to have choices to use the toll road or other options that may be
provided by another transportation authority.

Objective 3.1:

Create opportunities to collaborate with regional agency partners throughout project
development to incorporate community values and concerns.

Oragan
E of Transportation 1-205 Toll Project | Page 13



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Performance Measures:

e Regular attendance and active engagement from partner agencies and stakeholders at
and between technical working group meetings.

e Agency partner staff review, discuss and share input before moving ahead to next step
in environmental review process.

¢ Regional partners provide opportunities for project briefings to facilitate dialog and
partner input before key decision milestones.

o Regional partners distribute project information through their networks at key
milestones.

e Project staff regularly report back on how partner input was considered and how/if
used.

PRIMARY COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT TOOLS
Communications and engagement tools are divided into three categories in the table below:

e Tools to share information: Project staff deliver information to audience groups; one-
way communication with the primary goal of informing.

e Tools to collect and compile input: Project staff deliver new information about project
choices and ask for input or feedback from audience groups to help improve future
decisions. The primary goal is to consult with stakeholders

e Tools to bring people together: Project staff host or engage in activities where there is
multi-way communication and relationship building to promote involvement and
collaboration by stakeholders to advance project development.?

At various points in the Project, different tools will be used to align with the needs and desires
of the audience and Project team. For example, elected officials may have a role in maintaining
the transportation system and require a deeper level of understanding and engagement. A
resident who rarely drives on I-205 may be satisfied with reading information and completing a
survey, but not participating in public meetings or committees.

3 These definitions are based on the Spectrum of Public Participation from the International Association of
Public Participation.
[https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.iap2.org/resource/resmar/pillars/Spectrum 8.5x11 Print.pdf|

Oragan
E of Fransaartatton 1-205 Toll Project | Page 14


https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.iap2.org/resource/resmgr/pillars/Spectrum_8.5x11_Print.pdf

Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

Primary Outreach and Communications Tools

Tools to collect and Tools to share information

compile input

Tools to bring
people
together

Group, Stakeholder or
Community

Adv. committee
Workshops/events
Equity discussion
presentations
Open houses,
Project email/VM
Online surveys
Stakeholder
interviews

Printed materials
(incl translation)
Website tools (i.e.
videos)

Social media
Newsletter text for
community orgs
Fairs, festivals,
News release/e-
outreach/mail

Briefings,

Historically, currently
excluded & underserved
communities (EJ, LEP,
disabled, low income)

City, county, regional
electeds (OR/WA)

Agency staff from city,
county, regional
agencies (OR/WA)

I-5 and 1-205 drivers,
commuters (OR/WA)

Bicyclists & pedestrians

Transit users

Project area residents

Neighborhood coalitions

School districts

Freight operators

Businesses, business
orgs stakeholders

X | X X|X|X|X|X] X
X | X XXX X|X] X
X O X|IX|X|X|X|X] X
X | X X|X|X|X|X] X

Transportation focused
advocacy organizations

Environmental advocacy
organizations

Tribal governments X X

OR/WA state legislators X X X X

OR/WA federal

ORI X | X X
elegation

Regulatory, FHWA X X X

Rural, agricultural
businesses (outside X X X
Project area)

Oragan
1 of Transpartetion 1-205 Toll Project | Page 15



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

REPORTING AND EVALUATION:

Following each major decision milestone, Toll Program staff will report on the methods used to
communicate and engage with stakeholders, the input received from different interest groups,
and how that input influenced the project. In practice, project staff will develop a written report
with information about notification strategies, engagement activities, who was reached and a
summary of what was heard. Project staff will then provide that information to the decision-
makers listed on page 3 and 4 of this plan before decisions are made. Finally, once decisions are
made, those decisions will be reported back out in writing through the website and e-news and
verbally through stakeholder briefings and committee meetings.

In addition, an evaluation will be conducted to gauge satisfaction and effectiveness of the
engagement related to the decision milestone. The evaluation will use both quantitative tools
(e.g. surveys and website analytics) and qualitative data (debrief meetings with engagement
liaisons). The evaluation report will focus on the performance measures contained in this plan
and will be used as the Toll Program plans the next phase of the project. The goal is to further
improve engagement practices and relationship building.

Reports and evaluations will, at a minimum, be conducted at the following milestones:
e Start of the NEPA process

¢ Release of the Environmental Assessment for public review and comment

o Refinement of preferred alternative to include community mobility and equity strategies
and mitigation before completion of the NEPA process

Additional informal reports will be conducted for any interim decisions. This includes monthly
reporting to EMAC and Toll Program staff on the input and questions received from
stakeholders on an ongoing basis.

Oragan
E of Transportation 1-205 Toll Project | Page 16



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467

ATTACHMENTS:
A. Equity Framework — Adopted Dec. 10, 2020
B. Equitable engagement plan - Finalized April 23, 2021
C. Demographics - Final Dated Sept. 6, 2019
D. Community Outreach Plan (latest draft May 1, 2020 - to be updated)
E. Government and Media Relations (latest draft March 2021)
F. Social Media Plan (latest draft June 5, 2020 - to be updated)

G. Public Involvement Schedule (April 20, 2021)

Oragan
E of Fransaartatton I-205 Toll Project | Page 17



Updated April 23, 2021

PURPOSE

The Oregon Toll Program is committed to minimizing burdens and maximizing benefits to
communities historically and currently excluded or underserved by the transportation system.
To achieve equitable outcomes and an equitable process in the 1-205 Toll Project, the Oregon
Department of Transportation seeks to actively engage these communities. The Oregon Toll
Program will consistently and intentionally inform, listen to, learn from, and empower these
communities throughout the Project’s development, implementation, monitoring, and
evaluation processes.

ODOT seeks to built trust in the community with the agency’s planning and stewardship of the
state’s transportation system and its decision process. Trust is built by continually engaging a
community and stakeholders throughout an entire phase, ensuring information is accessible to
all and closing the loop by communicating to stakeholders how their feedback was incorporated
in the project process. Consistent engagement coupled with a racial equity lens can help shape
transportation policies, programs, and projects that better serve historically excluded and
underserved populations.t

Building trust requires time and repetition. Engagement efforts related to the Oregon Toll
Program, in isolation, cannot achieve the goal of a trust relationship between ODOT and
stakeholders. With active attention to the project’s engagement goals, objectives and
performance measures, progress will be made.

[-205 TOLL PROJECT SCHEDULE

[-205 Improvements

Project design and bid Construction (4 years) >

[-205 Toll Project : .
Environmental review

Earliest tolls begin

Equity

Equitable engagement

1 TransForm. (2019). Pricing Roads, Advancing Equity. Transform. Retrieved from;
http://www.transformca.org/sites/default/files/Pricing_Roads_Advancing_Equity Combined FINAL_190
314.pdf

); "' S 1-205 Toll Project | Page 1



Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 21-1467
1-205 Toll Project Equitable Engagement Plan
April 23, 2021

This plan is focused on the environmental review process for the 1-205 Toll Project from early
engagement in 2020 through the comment period on the draft Environmental Assessment,
scheduled for mid-2022. A final decision based on public input is slated for early 2023. After the
environmental review, equitable engagement will continue to inform future project phases.

INTEGRATION WITH OTHER PLANS

The 1-205 Toll Project Public Involvement and Communications Plan and the Oregon Toll
Program Equity Framework provide details on overarching principles, definitions, goals,
objectives, performance measures, and messaging for all engagement activities. This Equitable
Engagement Plan provides additional details and guidance for planning, engagement methods
and timing.

The following principles, further discussed in the|§quitv Framework]| will guide

implementation of all public engagement and communications:

e Incorporate a trauma-informed perspective in our current context.

e Begin with a racial analysis.

¢ Acknowledge historic context.

¢ ldentify disparities.

e Prioritize input fro